THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.
IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO THE COURSE OF ACTION TO BE TAKEN, YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR
STOCKBROKER, SOLICITOR, ACCOUNTANT, BANK MANAGER OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER IMMEDIATELY.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE LEAP MARKET OF BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES BERHAD (“BURSA SECURITIES”)
THE LEAP MARKET HAS BEEN POSITIONED AS A MARKET DESIGNED TO ACCOMMODATE CORPORATIONS TO
WHICH A HIGHER INVESTMENT RISK MAY BE ATTACHED THAN OTHER CORPORATIONS LISTED ON THE ACE
MARKET OR MAIN MARKET OF BURSA SECURITIES. IT IS A QUALIFIED MARKET WHICH IS MEANT MAINLY FOR
SOPHISTICATED INVESTORS ONLY. ONLY EXISTING SECURITIES HOLDERS AND SOPHISTICATED INVESTORS
ARE ALLOWED TO PARTICIPATE IN CORPORATE EXERCISES UNDERTAKEN BY REDPLANET BERHAD
(‘REDPLANET” OR THE “COMPANY”). SOPHISTICATED INVESTORS SHOULD BE AWARE OF THE POTENTIAL RISKS
OF INVESTING IN SUCH CORPORATIONS AND SHOULD MAKE THE DECISION TO INVEST ONLY AFTER DUE AND
CAREFUL CONSIDERATION.

THIS CIRCULAR HAS BEEN REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY SIERAC CORPORATE ADVISERS SDN. BHD., BEING THE
APPROVED ADVISER TO REDPLANET FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (AS DEFINED HEREIN).

BURSA SECURITIES DID NOT PERUSE THIS CIRCULAR PRIOR TO ISSUANCE AND TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONTENTS OF THIS CIRCULAR, VALUATION CERTIFICATE AND REPORT, IF ANY, MAKES NO
REPRESENTATION AS TO ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY
WHATSOEVER FOR ANY LOSS HOWSOEVER ARISING FROM OR IN RELIANCE UPON THE WHOLE OR ANY PART
OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS CIRCULAR.
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via an application known as Zoom from No. 1-8, Level 8, The Boulevard, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia on Friday, 17 November 2023 at 11.00 a.m. or immediately upon the conclusion of
the Fourth Annual General Meeting (‘4" AGM”) of the Company scheduled to be held on the same day at 10.30 a.m.,
whichever is later or at any adjournment thereof. The Notice of EGM together with the Form of Proxy are enclosed herein.
This Circular, Notice of EGM and Form of Proxy can be downloaded at Bursa Securities’ website at www.bursamalaysia.com
and RedPlanet’s website at https://redplanetgrp.com.

A member entitled to attend, participate, speak and vote at the EGM is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend,
participate, speak and vote on his/her behalf. In such event, the completed and signed Form of Proxy must be lodged at the
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Last date and time for lodging the Form of Proxy : Wednesday, 15 November 2023 at 11.00 a.m., or
at any adjournment thereof
Date and time of the EGM : Friday, 17 November 2023 at 11.00 a.m., or

immediately upon the conclusion of the 4" AGM of
the Company scheduled to be held on the same
day at 10.30 a.m., whichever is later

This Circular is dated 1 November 2023




DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following abbreviations and definitions shall apply

throughout this Circular:

“1st Guarantee Period”

“1st Guaranteed Profit”

“2nd Guarantee Period”

“2nd Guaranteed Profit”

“3d Guarantee Period”

“3d Guaranteed Profit”
“5D-VWAMP”

uACtn

“All Guarantee Periods”

“Alpha Zaicon”

“‘AZTI”

“Azti Engineering”

“AZTI Group”
“B2B”

“B2C”
“Board”

“Bursa Securities”

“Cash Consideration”

“Circular”

“Comparable Companies”

“Consideration Shares”

“Directors”

6-month FPE 30 June 2024 covering the period from 1 January
2024 to 30 June 2024

Unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1.25 million

12-month FYE 30 June 2025 covering the period from 1 July
2024 to 30 June 2025

Audited consolidated PAT of RM2.50 million

6-month FPE 31 December 2025 covering the period from 1
July 2025 to 31 December 2025

Unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1.25 million
5-day volume weighted average market price

Companies Act, 2016 including any amendments thereto from
time to time

the 24-month period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2025, comprising 1t Guarantee Period, 2" Guarantee Period
and 3 Guarantee Period

Alpha Zaicon Technology International Inc
(Registration No.: C 1226856)

AZTI Technology Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 201401020333 (1096419-X))

AZTI| Engineering (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 200601014858 (734610-H))

AZTI and its subsidiaries
Business to business

Business to consumer

Board of Directors of RedPlanet

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(Registration No.: 200301033577 (635998-W))

Cash consideration of RM5.36 million

This Circular dated 1 November 2023 in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition

Companies listed on Bursa Securities that are deemed broadly
comparable to AZTI by virtue of their involvement in the
provision of ICT, software and services

10,928,571 new RedPlanet Shares at the Issue Price

Directors of RedPlanet



DEFINITIONS (cont'd)

“EGM”

“‘EPS”

“‘FPE”

‘FYE”

“‘GBTEK”

uG IS”

“ICT”

“Interested Parties”

“Issue Price”

“‘LAT”

uLBTu

“LEAP Market”

‘LMLR”

“‘LPD”

‘LTD”

“LTT”

“stu

“NA”

“‘NCSB”

“PATH

“PBTH

“PE”

“PIES”

“‘PPSB”

“Profit Guarantee”

Extraordinary General Meeting
Earnings per share

Financial period ended
Financial year(s) ended

GBTEK Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 201601009810 (1180738-T))

Geographic information system

Information and communications technology

LWS, LTT and Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd., collectively
Issue price of RMO0.21 per share

Loss after tax

Loss before tax

LEAP Market of Bursa Securities

LEAP Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

30 September 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this Circular

6 September 2023, being the last trading day prior to the date
of the SPA and Announcement

Low Ting Ting, spouse of LWS
Lian Wah Seng
Net assets

Newventures Capital Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 201501010536 (1135871-U))

Profit after tax

Profit before tax

Price to earnings

Platform intrusion emergency stop

Puncak Prospek Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 202101007453 (1407752-X))

The Vendors guarantee that AZTI will achieve RM5.0 million
consolidated PAT for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2025, based on the consolidated financial
statements of AZTI



DEFINITIONS (cont'd)

“Proposed Acquisition”

“Purchase Consideration”

“R&D”
“RedPlanet Shares”

“RedPlanet” or “Company”

“Retained Cash Consideration”

“RM” and “sen”
“Sale Shares”

“SCA” or “Approved Adviser”

“SHA”

“Share Consideration”

“SPA”

“Total Guaranteed Profit”

“Strategic” or “Independent
Adviser”

“Vendors”

Proposed acquisition of 51% equity interest in AZTI by
RedPlanet for a Purchase Consideration of RM7.65 million to
be satisfied via a combination of Cash Consideration of RM5.36
million and Share Consideration of RM2.29 million via issuance
of 10,928,571 new RedPlanet shares at the Issue Price

Purchase consideration of RM7.65 million to be satisfied via a
combination of Cash Consideration of RM5.36 million and
Share Consideration of RM2.29 million via issuance of
10,928,571 new RedPlanet Shares at the Issue Price
Research & Development

Ordinary shares in RedPlanet

RedPlanet Berhad
(Registration No. 201901014292 (1323620-A))

Retained cash consideration of RM2.55 million from the Cash
Consideration retained by RedPlanet as a security for AZTI to
achieve the Profit Guarantee

Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively

1,020,000 ordinary shares in AZTI

Sierac Corporate Advisers Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 200001013247 (515853-A))

Conditional shareholders’ agreement dated 7 September 2023
entered into between RedPlanet, the Vendors and AZTI in
conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition

Share consideration of RM2.29 million

Conditional share purchase agreement dated 7 September
2023 entered into between RedPlanet and the Vendors in
relation to the Proposed Acquisition

A minimum aggregate consolidated PAT of not less than RM5.0
million to be achieved by AZTI during All Guarantee Periods on
a combined basis based on the consolidated financial results of
AZTI

Strategic Capital Advisory Sdn. Bhd.
(Registration No.: 199901003253 (478153-U))

LWS, NCSB and PPSB, collectively



DEFINITIONS (cont'd)

References to “our Company” in this Circular are to RedPlanet and references to “our Group” are to
our Company and our subsidiaries. References to “we”, “us”, “our” and “ourselves” in this Circular are
to our Company and where the context otherwise requires, shall include our subsidiaries. All references

to “you” or “your(s)” in this Circular are to our shareholders.

Words denoting the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa and words
denoting the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and/or neuter genders and
vice versa. References to persons shall include corporations.

Any reference in this Circular to the provisions of any statute, rules, regulation or rules of stock exchange
shall (where the context admits) be construed as a reference to the provisions of such statute, rules,
regulation or rules of stock exchange (as the case may be) as modified by any written law or (if
applicable) amendments to the statute, rules, regulation or rules of stock exchange for the time being
in force.

Any reference to a time of day and date in this Circular shall be a reference to Malaysian time and date
respectively, unless otherwise specified.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included herein have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Any discrepancy between the figures shown herein and figures published by our Company, such as in
our semi-annual results or annual audited accounts, is due to rounding.

Certain statements in this Circular may be forward-looking in nature, which are subject to uncertainties
and contingencies. Forward-looking statements may contain estimates and assumptions made by our
Board after due enquiry, which are nevertheless subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from
the anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed or implied in such forward-looking
statements. In light of these and other uncertainties, the inclusion of a forward-looking statement in this
Circular should not be regarded as a representation or warranty that our Group’s plans and objectives
will be achieved.

[The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This executive summary highlights only the salient information of the Proposed Acquisition. You are
advised to read this Circular in its entirety for further details and not to rely solely on this executive
summary in arriving at a decision on the Proposed Acquisition before voting at the forthcoming EGM.

Key Information Description Reference to Circular
Details of the Proposed | The Proposed Acquisition entails the Section 2
Acquisition acquisition by RedPlanet of 10,928,571

ordinary shares in AZTI, representing 51%
equity interest in AZTI for the Purchase
Consideration of RM7.65 million.

The Purchase Consideration of RM7.65
million is to be satisfied via a combination of
cash consideration of RM5.36 million and
share consideration of RM2.29 million via the
issuance of 10,928,571 Consideration Shares
at the Issue Price of RM0.21 per share.

Pursuant to the SPA, the Vendors guarantee
and undertake that AZTI shall achieve a
minimum unaudited consolidated PAT of
RM1.25 million for the 1st Guarantee Period,
audited consolidated PAT of RM2.50 million
for the 2" Guarantee Period, and unaudited
consolidated PAT of RM1.25 million for the 3
Guarantee Period.

Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition,
AZTI will become a subsidiary of RedPlanet.

Rationale for the | The Proposed Acquisition offers an Section 3
Proposed Acquisition opportunity for RedPlanet to expand its current
portfolio of technology operations.

The acquisition of AZTI, which is also involved
in the technology business represents a
strategic investment and is undertaken in-line
with RedPlanet’s objectives and strategy to
diversify its customer base.

RedPlanet specialises in GIS solutions, which
have wide-ranging applications and is a
valuable resource for comprehending and
overseeing geographical information.
RedPlanet deems that the full ownership of the
PIES system by AZTI coupled with its proven
track record shall provide the enlarged
RedPlanet Group the competitive edge in
securing future railway related projects.

Risk factors The risk factors pertaining to the Proposed Section 5
Acquisition include but are not limited to the
following:

(i)  Non-completion risk;

(i)  Achievability of the Profit Guarantee;

(i) Investment and integration risk; and

(iv) Political, economic and regulatory
considerations.

Vi



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Key Information

Description

Reference to Circular

Approvals required

The Proposed Acquisition is subject to the
following being obtained:

(i) the approval of Bursa Securities for the
listing of and quotation for the
Consideration Shares on the LEAP
Market of Bursa Securities;

(i) the approval of the shareholders of
RedPlanet at the EGM to be convened;
(i) a waiver by the shareholders of the
Company of their pre-emptive rights
pursuant to Section 85(1) of the Act to be
first offered the Consideration Shares
which will result in a dilution to their
shareholdings in the Company; and

(iv) the approval, consent and/or sanction of
any other relevant authorities/parties, if
required.

Section 7

Interests of directors,
major shareholders,
chief executive and/or
person connected with
them

As at the LPD, LWS is the Non-Executive
Chairman and major shareholder of
RedPlanet. He is also the director and major
shareholder of AZTI. Presently, LWS holds the
entire equity interests of AZTI via his personal
capacity as well as his shareholdings in NCSB
and PPSB and indirect shareholdings via his
spouse, LTT in NCSB.

LWS, LTT and Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd.
are collectively known as the “Interested
Parties”.

The Interested Parties and person connected
with them will abstain from voting in respect of
his/her direct and/or indirect shareholdings in
RedPlanet on the resolution pertaining to the
Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the EGM
to be convened.

Section 10

Directors’ statement and
recommendation

After taking into consideration the rationale,
terms, conditions, evaluation from the
Independent Adviser and effects of the
Proposed Acquisition, the Board (save for the
Interested Parties who have abstained from
deliberating and voting in respect of the
Proposed Acquisition at the relevant Board
meetings) is of the opinion that the Proposed
Acquisition is in the best interest of RedPlanet
and not detrimental to the interest of the non-
interested shareholders of RedPlanet.

Section 11

vii




PART A

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REDPLANET IN RELATION TO
THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION




OREDPLANET"

REDPLANET BERHAD
(201901014292 (1323620-A))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registered Office

Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A

Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi

59200 Kuala Lumpur

Wilayah Persekutuan

1 November 2023

Board of Directors

Lian Wah Seng (Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman)
Panjetty Kumaradevan Senthil Kumar (Executive Director)
Mohamad Azhar Bin Ahmad (Executive Director)

Phong Hon Wai (Independent Non-Executive Director)

To:

The Shareholders of RedPlanet

Dear Sir/Madam,

PROPOSED ACQUISITION

1.

INTRODUCTION

On 7 September 2023, SCA had, on behalf of the Board, announced that the Company had on
even date entered into a conditional SPA with the Vendors in relation to the acquisition by
RedPlanet of the Sale Shares from the Vendors for a total purchase consideration of RM7.65
million to be satisfied via a combination of cash consideration of RM5.36 million and share
consideration of RM2.29 million via issuance of 10,928,571 new RedPlanet Shares at an Issue
Price of RMO0.21 per share. In conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition, RedPlanet has, on even
date, entered into a SHA with the Vendors and AZT] for the purpose of regulating their relationship
with each other upon completion of the SPA.

In view of the interests of the Interested Parties in the Proposed Acquisition, details of which are
set out in Section 10 of this Circular, the Proposed Acquisition is deemed as a related party
transaction pursuant to Rule 7.06 of the LMLR of Bursa Securities and requires the Company’s
non-interested shareholders’ approval at the EGM to be convened. Accordingly, Strategic has
been appointed as the Independent Adviser on 4 August 2023 to advise the non-interested
Directors and non-interested shareholders of the Company with:

(i) an opinion as to whether the Proposed Acquisition is fair and reasonable so far as the non-
interested shareholders are concerned and whether the Proposed Acquisition is to the
detriment of the non-interested shareholders of the Company; and

(i)  arecommendation as to whether the non-interested shareholders of the Company should
vote in favour of the Proposed Acquisition.

Further details on the Proposed Acquisition are set out in the ensuing sections of this Circular.



THE PURPOSE OF THIS CIRCULAR IS TO PROVIDE YOU WITH DETAILS OF THE
PROPOSED ACQUISITION AND TO SEEK YOUR APPROVAL FOR THE RESOLUTION
PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION TO BE TABLED AT THE FORTHCOMING
EGM. THE NOTICE OF EGM AND FORM OF PROXY ARE ENCLOSED HEREIN.

YOU ARE ADVISED TO READ AND CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE CONTENTS OF THIS
CIRCULAR TOGETHER WITH THE APPENDICES CONTAINED HEREIN BEFORE VOTING
ON THE RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION TO BE TABLED
AT THE FORTHCOMING EGM.

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

2.1. Proposed Acquisition

The Proposed Acquisition entails the acquisition by RedPlanet of 1,020,000 ordinary
shares in AZTI, equivalent to 51% of the issued capital of AZTI from the Vendors at the
Purchase Consideration. In conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition, RedPlanet has, on
even date, entered into the SHA with the Vendors and AZTI for the purpose of regulating
their relationship with each other upon completion of the SPA. The Vendors will sell the
Sale Shares to RedPlanet and receive the Purchase Consideration in the following manner:

Columnl | Column2 [ Column 3 Column4 [ Column5
Purchase Consideration

Vendors No. of Sale Purchase Cash No. of
Shares Consideration Consideration Consideration

(RM) (RM) Shares

NCSB 535,500 4,016,251 2,811,376 5,737,500
PPSB 255,000 1,912,500 1,338,750 2,732,143
LWS 229,500 1,721,249 1,204,874 2,458,928
Total 1,020,000 7,650,000 5,355,000 10,928,571

The Sale Shares will be acquired by RedPlanet free from all encumbrances and with all
rights and benefits of whatsoever nature attaching thereto with effect from the completion
date of the Proposed Acquisition.

Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, AZTI will become a subsidiary of RedPlanet.
The Cash Consideration is expected to be funded by internally generated funds.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]



2.2.

Profit Guarantee

In consideration of RedPlanet agreeing to purchase 51% equity interest in AZTI from the
Vendors in accordance with the terms of the SPA, the Vendors covenant with and
undertake to RedPlanet that the actual consolidated PAT of AZTI for the 24-month period
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025, based on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, shall be cumulatively not less than RM5.0 million on an
aggregate basis, which shall be achieved as below:

0] unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1.25 million for the 15t Guarantee Period;
(i)  audited consolidated PAT of RM2.50 million for the 2" Guarantee Period; and
(i)  unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1.25 million for the 3 Guarantee Period;

or a minimum aggregate consolidated PAT of not less than RM5.0 million (being the Total
Guaranteed Profit) for the total 24-month period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2025, (being the All Guarantee Periods), on a combined basis based on the consolidated
financial results of AZTI.

2.2.1. Reasonableness of the Profit Guarantee

The Profit Guarantee was arrived at after taking into consideration, the following:

0] in view that RedPlanet shall hold 51% equity interestin AZTI upon Completion,
the Total Guaranteed Profit attributable to the 51% equity interest held by
RedPlanet amounts to RM2.55 million only (i.e. RM5.0 million x 51%);

(i)  the Profit Guarantee is backed by collateral in the form of the Retained Cash
Consideration, which will be held by the purchaser as a security for AZTI to
achieve the Profit Guarantee;

(i)  the parties agree that the Retained Cash Consideration shall be paid by
RedPlanet to the Vendors in three (3) tranches upon AZTI achieving the
guaranteed profit for the following periods in accordance with the Profit
Guarantee mechanism as stipulated in Section 1.5 of the Appendix | of this
Circular;

(iv)  AZTI Group’s existing secured project with a total contract sum of RM31.27
million with outstanding billings of approximately RM12.16 million as at the
LPD; and

(v)  AZTI Group’s tender book of approximately RM35.71 million as at the LPD.

The Board (save for the Interested Parties) after having considered the above, is of

the view that the Total Guaranteed Profit and All Guarantee Periods is reasonable
and realistic.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]



2.3. Mode of payment

The Purchase Consideration will be paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in the following manner:

Cash Share Total
Tranche Payment Payment Milestone Consideration Consideration® Consideration Percentage
(RM) (RM) (RM) (%)
Deposit Upon execution of SPA 765,000 - 765,000 10.00
Balance Payment Upon completion of SPA 2,040,000 (2)2,295,000 4,335,000 56.67
1st Tranche of Retained Cash | Upon fulfilment of 1%t 637,500 - 637,500 8.33
Consideration®) Guaranteed Profit
27 Tranche of Retained Cash | Upon fulfilment of 2nd 1,275,000 - 1,275,000 16.67
Consideration®) Guaranteed Profit
3 Tranche of Retained Cash | Upon fulfilment of 3 637,500 - 637,500 8.33
Consideration®) Guaranteed Profit
Total 5,355,000 2,295,000 7,650,000 100.00
Notes:

(1) For avoidance of doubt, 45% of the Consideration Shares, which is 4,917,857 shares or RM1.03 million, will be held under moratorium to be
in compliance with Rule 3.07 of the LMLR.

(2) RM2.29 million share consideration shall be settled by allotting and issuing a total of 10,928,571 new RedPlanet Shares to the Vendors.
(3) Notwithstanding completion, the parties agree that a total sum of RM2.55 million (“Retained Cash Consideration”) from the Cash
Consideration shall be retained by RedPlanet as a security for AZTI to achieve the Profit Guarantee as discussed in Section 2.2 of this Circular.

The Retained Cash Consideration shall be released and paid to the Vendors in three (3) tranches upon AZTI’s fulfilment of Profit Guarantee
in accordance with Clause 5A of the SPA.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]



2.4.

Information on AZTI

AZTI was incorporated in Malaysia on 4 June 2014 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1965 and is deemed registered under the Act. As at the LPD, the issued
share capital of AZTI is RM2.0 million, comprising of 2.0 million ordinary shares.

AZTl is principally engaged in the business of research and development of platform safety
system through the PIES system, which utilises a series of flexible mounted sensor panels
located between running rail in front of platforms and attached a proprietary strain sensitive
cable to these sensor panels and developed electronic circuitry to eliminate environmental
effects while still able to detect human intrusion. The PIES system has been successfully
implemented in 4 countries, namely 20 stations in Canada, 14 stations in the United States,
8 stations in Australia and 88 stations in Malaysia. In addition, AZTI is undertaking a pilot
railway project in Taiwan.

Further details of AZTI and its subsidiaries are set out in Appendix Il of this Circular.
2.4.1. Information on NCSB
NCSB was incorporated as a private limited company on 18 March 2015 under the
Companies Act 1965 and is deemed registered under the Act, as an investment
holding company. As at the LPD, the issued share capital of NCSB is RM10

comprising 10 ordinary shares.

The directors and shareholders of NCSB are as follows:

2.4.2.

Name | Director/ Nationality No. of ordinary | Shareholdings
Shareholder shares held (%)

LWS Director and Malaysian 8 80.00
shareholder

LTT Director and Malaysian 2 20.00
shareholder

Total 10 100.00

Information on PPSB

PPSB was incorporated as a private limited company on 3 March 2021 under the
Act, as an investment holding company. As at the LPD, the issued share capital of
PPSB is RM100 comprising 100 ordinary shares.

The director and shareholder of PPSB is as follows:

Name | Director/ Nationality No. of ordinary Shareholding
Shareholder shares held (%)

LWS Director and Malaysian 100 100.00
shareholder

Total 100 100.00

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]




2.5.

2.4.3. Date and original cost of investment by the Vendors

The date and original cost of investment by the Vendors are set out in Section 5 of
the Appendix Il of this Circular.

Basis and justification for the Purchase Consideration

The Purchase Consideration of RM7.65 million was arrived at on a willing-buyer willing-
seller basis, after taking into consideration, among others, the following:

0] the Profit Guarantee of RM5.0 million provided by the Vendors;

(i)  the rationale and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition, as set out in Section 3 of this
Circular;

(i)  the prospects of AZTI and the technology industry in Malaysia, as set out in Section
4 of this Circular;

(iv)  AZTI Group’s existing secured project with a total contract sum of RM31.27 million
with outstanding billings of approximately RM12.16 million as at the LPD. Further
information of AZTI Group’s project details are set out in Appendix Il of this Circular;
and

(v)  AZTI Group’s tender book of approximately RM35.71 million as at the LPD.

To justify the reasonableness of the Purchase Consideration, a comparative analysis was
carried out to benchmark the implied PE multiple of 6 times for the Purchase Consideration
of RM7.65 million against the PE multiple of selected comparable companies carrying out
similar business activities as AZTI.

For information purposes only, the table below sets out the PE multiple of Comparable
Companies to AZTI by virtue of their involvement in the provision of ICT, software and
services.

None of these companies or any other companies listed on Bursa Securities are exactly
similar or directly comparable to AZTI in terms of, among others, composition of business,
scale of operations, track record and future prospects. The PE multiple of the Comparable
Companies as at the LPD are set out below solely for illustrative and comparison purposes
only.
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As at the LPD

Comparable Principal activities PAT attributable to the Market @PE
Companies owners of the company Mcapitalisation multiple
(RM’000) (RM’000) (times)

EVD Berhad Providing ICT system solutions focusing primarily on 5,207 57,723 11.08

the transportation system solutions, healthcare and

security system solutions
OpenSys (M) Providing solutions to the financial services industry in 12,236 156,393 12.78
Berhad the areas of self-service machines and delivery

systems primarily in Malaysia
Willowglen MSC | Providing technological solutions for business, 14,422 174,523 12.10
Berhad residential, commercial and industrial infrastructure
Average 11.99
Median 12.10
Low 11.08
High 12.78
Purchase Consideration (Implied PE multiple) 6.00

Notes:

(1) Calculated based on the closing market prices per share as at LPD, multiplied by the number of shares in issue, less treasury shares of
respective companies as at the LPD.

(2) Calculated based on the closing market prices as at the LPD and the EPS, which is derived from PAT attributable to the owners of the company
extracted from the announced quarterly reports of the respective companies for the period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 (trailing twelve
months) divided by the number of shares in issue, less treasury shares of respective companies as at the LPD.



2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

The implied PE multiple for the Proposed Acquisition of 6.00 times is derived based on
Purchase Consideration for 100% ordinary shares in AZT| of RM15.00 million against 12-
month Profit Guarantee of RM2.50 million. The implied PE Multiple of 6.00 times is:

0] lower than the average PE multiple of 11.99 times and median PE multiple of 12.10
times of the Comparable Companies; and

(i)  below the lowest PE multiple of 11.08 times of the Comparable Companies.

Premised on the above, the Board is of the view that the Purchase Consideration is
justifiable and reasonable. The Board is also of the opinion that the Proposed Acquisition
of AZTI will be beneficial to the Company considering the appraised value of the entire
equity interest in AZTI and the potential future earnings contribution by AZTI.

Basis and justification of the Issue Price of the Consideration Shares

The Issue Price of the Consideration Shares of RM0.21, representing a 5.00% premium
from the 5D-VWAMP of RedPlanet Shares up to LPD of RMO0.20. The Board is of the
opinion that the Issue Price is reasonable, after taking into consideration the Issue Price
represents:

(i) a premium of 110.00% to the NA per share of RM0.10 based on the audited
consolidated accounts of RedPlanet as at 30 June 2022;

(i) a premium of 5.00% to the 5D-VWAMP of RedPlanet Shares up to the LTD of
RMO0.20; and

(i) a premium of 5.00% to the closing price of RedPlanet Shares of RM0.20 as at the
LTD.

Ranking and listing of Consideration Shares

The Consideration Shares shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank equally in all respect
with the existing RedPlanet Shares except that they will not be entitled to any dividends,
rights, allotments and/or other distributions, the entitlement date of which is before the date
of allotment of the Consideration Shares.

An application will be made to Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the
Consideration Shares on the LEAP Market of Bursa Securities.

Liabilities to be assumed and estimated financial commitments pursuant to the
Proposed Acquisition

Save for all the liabilities arising from or in connection with the SPA, RedPlanet will not
assume any liabilities, contingent liabilities and/or guarantees pursuant to the Proposed
Acquisition. The existing liabilities of AZTI will be settled by AZTI in the ordinary course of
business.

However, upon the completion of the Proposed Acquisition and the transfer of the Sale
Shares, RedPlanet may be required to provide corporate guarantees to AZTI and/or its
subsidiary, in place of the Vendor to secure credit facilities granted to AZTI and/or its
subsidiary. For information, RedPlanet may provide additional financial commitment of up
to RM2.0 million to AZTI for working capital purposes, if required.



RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

The Proposed Acquisition offers an opportunity for RedPlanet to expand its current portfolio of
technology operations. The acquisition of AZTI, which is also involved in the technology business
represents a strategic investment and is undertaken in-line with RedPlanet’s objectives and
strategy to diversify it customer’s base.

As at LPD, AZTI owns the PIES system which includes patents, trademarks, all relevant technical
know-how and business goodwill as well as industry certifications. The PIES system utilises a
series of flexible mounted sensor panels located between running rail in front of platforms and
attached a proprietary strain sensitive cable to these sensor panels and developed electronic
circuitry to eliminate environmental effects while still able to detect human intrusion.

RedPlanet reckons that the full ownership of the PIES system by AZTI coupled with its proven
track record shall provide AZTI the competitive edge in securing future railway related projects.
In addition, RedPlanet specialises in GIS solutions, which have wide-ranging applications. GIS
technology enables the capture, analysis, interpretation, and visualisation of geographic or
spatial data. It integrates various types of information, such as maps, satellite images, and tabular
data, to provide a powerful tool for understanding and managing geographical information.

Given that the GIS solution of RedPlanet has wide application, RedPlanet hopes to leverage on
AZTI's market presence to further expand its solutions offering and customer’s base. This
strategic partnership can be harnessed through various means, among others, customised GIS
solutions, geospatial data enhancement, GIS training and support, as well as collaborative
projects.

The Board believes that issuance of Consideration Shares as part payment of the Purchase
Consideration will allow RedPlanet to conserve its cash flow for reinvestment and/or operational
purposes for further growth.

OVERVIEW, OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
4.1. Overview and outlook of the Malaysian economy

In the second quarter, Malaysia’s economy grew by 2.9%, showing resilience despite
challenges. Factors behind this growth include, increased household spending up to 4.3%
and higher inbound tourism with services exports rising to 41.4%. Investment activity
remained strong. Unemployment steadied at 3.5%, and real wages increased to 1.0%,
remaining stable compared to the previous quarter.

Inflation decreased to 2.8% due to lower food prices, reducing the food inflation to 5.6%
for Q2 compared to 6.9% in Q1 and reduced fuel costs (fuel inflation was -2.5% for Q2
versus 0.2% in Q1). The Malaysian Ringgit depreciated against the US dollar by 5.8%,
while the US dollar index slightly increased by 0.4%. Overall, Malaysia’s economy
displayed resilience and positive growth during Q2, driven by various factors including
increased spending, a recovering tourism sector, and steady investments.

(Source: Bank Negara Malaysia Quarterly Bulletin Vol. 38, No. 2, Second Quarter 2023)



The global GDP growth in 2022 moderated to 3.4% reflecting the economic slowdown in
advanced economies as well as emerging market and developing economies.

Despite the softened global growth, Malaysia’s economy recorded a strong growth of 8.7%
in 2022, exceeding the initial projection of 6.5%-7%, whereby real output value reached
above the pre-pandemic level. The commendable performance was driven by domestic
demand and improved labour market in line with the transition to the endemic phase.
These resulted from an increase in economic activities which include household spending,
investment and tourism.

Subsequently, encouraging expansion in all economic sectors primarily the services and
manufacturing sector have also provided continuous impetus to the significant economic
growth in 2022. Furthermore, the growth was attributed to robust external demand,
especially among Malaysia’s major trading partners.

On the supply side, all economic sectors are expected to remain in the positive growth
trajectory in 2023, driven by the services and manufacturing sectors. Other sectors,
namely agriculture, mining and construction are also expected to grow further in line with
the improvement in economic activities. However, downside risks such as prolonged
geopolitical conflict, climate related disasters and persistently high inflation are expected
to further hampering the global economic growth, hence, affecting Malaysia’s performance.
Overall, the nation’s GDP is forecast to grow approximately 4.5% in 2023.

(Source: Economic & Fiscal Outlook and Federal Government Revenue Estimates 2023,
Ministry of Finance Malaysia)

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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4.2.

Overview and outlook of the ICT and e-commerce economy in Malaysia

ICT usage recorded an increase of 7.6 percentage points to 93.8%, followed by internet
(increase 5.4 percentage points to 90.6%), and web presence (increase 9.4 percentage
points to 63.3%). Information & Communication, Financial & Takaful / Insurance, and Real
Estate sectors fully utilised the use of the internet and computers in their businesses.

The income generated from e-commerce experienced a remarkable 23.9% surged in 2021
compared to 2019, reaching RM1,037.2 billion. Examining the e-commerce income by
market segment, the local market segment, which includes sales conducted within
Malaysia, recorded a substantial increase of 25.5%, amounting to RM932.7 billion in 2021.
In contrast, the international market segment increased by 11.9%, reaching RM104.5
billion.

Furthermore, analysing the e-commerce income based on the type of customer, B2C
transactions experienced a significant growth, rose 26.2% to RM308.9 billion. B2B
transactions increased 25.9% to RM713.1 billion. These statistics highlight the substantial
growth and economic impact of e-commerce in Malaysia, with strong performances in the
local market segment, B2B transactions, and B2C transactions.

E-Commerce expenditure recorded an increase of 23.6% to RM460.8 billion. The local
market segment surged 25.8% to RM426.8 billion, while the international market grew 3.2%
to RM34.0 billion. E-Commerce expenditure by type of market via B2B rose 20.5% to
RM403.1 billion, followed by B2C with 85.0% to RM50.8 billion.

On quarterly basis, the first quarter of 2022 recorded an income of RM264.3 billion, which
increased to RM273.8 billion in the second quarter. The upward trend continued, with e-
commerce income registering RM274.6 billion in the third quarter of 2022 and RM287.1
billion in the fourth quarter of the same year.

(Source: Usage of ICT and E-Commerce by Establishment, Department of Statistics
Malaysia, 6 July 2023)

Malaysia's Department of Statistics released data indicating a substantial surge in e-
commerce income, which reached RM1.1 trillion in 2021. This marked an exceptional 21.8%
increase compared to the previous year's figures.

The Malaysia Digital Economy Corporation (“MDEC”) is actively pursuing an ambitious
objective of achieving an e-commerce market size of RM1.65 trillion by 2025. Building
upon the momentum generated by previous movement control orders, there is strong
confidence that e-commerce income will surpass the RM1 trillion milestone this year.

The trajectory towards the RM1.65 trillion goal is significantly driven by the National E-
commerce Strategic Roadmap (“NESR”), spearheaded by MDEC.

Additionally, the anticipated ratification of the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Cooperation Agreement (“RCEP”) promises substantial benefits for Malaysia's digital trade.
Malaysia stands as one of the 15 RCEP member countries, collectively forming the world's
largest Free Trade Agreement (“FTA”).

(Source: Malaysia’s E-Commerce Revenue To Reach RM1.65Tril by 2025, Ministry of
Communications and Digital Malaysia)
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5.

4.3.

Future prospects of RedPlanet

The enlarged RedPlanet Group stands to capitalise on the growing landscape of GIS
technology as GIS has a wide range of applications in various fields, including urban
planning, environmental management, agriculture, transportation, disaster management,
and many others. It helps users make informed decisions by helping users understand
where objects are located in relation to each other and their physical surroundings and
reveal recurring patterns or trends in geographical data. It can identify clusters of similar
data points (e.g., hotspots of disease outbreaks or areas with high crime rates) and assess
how these patterns change over time. This analysis aids in decision-making, resource
allocation and urban planning, among other applications.

The enlarged RedPlanet Group is set to new horizons both within Malaysia and on the
international stage. In the Malaysian market, the enlarged RedPlanet Group plans to
cultivate connections through knowledge sharing sessions and seminars with influential C-
level executives within potential client organisations as well as participation in technology
roadshows and marketing events. Furthermore, the enlarged RedPlanet Group aims to
seize opportunities by tendering for GIS projects, expanding its presence within the local
market.

Beyond domestic borders, the enlarged RedPlanet Group is collaborating closely with
product leaders and partners as well as active participation in key GIS conferences to
instrumental its growth outside Malaysia. The enlarged RedPlanet Group’s established
relationships with key clients and partners serve as a strong foundation for success,
notably, its role in designing, developing, and maintaining customer’s GIS systems for
ongoing collaborations.

Based on the industry’s landscape, the growth prospects of the enlarged RedPlanet Group
is positive. The GIS solutions industry in Malaysia and the broader ASEAN region is on an
upward trajectory driven by the increasing importance of geospatial technologies in urban
planning and management, smart city investments, and growing private ventures.

(Source: Management of RedPlanet)

RISK FACTORS

5.1.

Non-completion risk

The Proposed Acquisition is subject to, amongst others, the fulfilment of the conditions
precedent and the performance by the relevant parties of their respective obligations within
the stipulated timeframe as set out in the SPA. In the event that any of the conditions
precedent are not fulfilled or waived, the SPA will lapse and the Company will not be able
to complete the Proposed Acquisition.

In addition, the Proposed Acquisition is also conditional upon the approval of RedPlanet’s
non-interested shareholders and other relevant authorities. There is neither assurance that
the Company would be able to obtain all the requisite approvals nor ensure all parties fulfil
the respective obligations as set out in the SPA. If any of the conditions precedent of the
SPA are not fulfilled or waived, as the case may be, within the stipulated timeframe, the
SPA may be terminated. Consequently, the Proposed Acquisition will not be completed
and the potential benefits arising thereon may not materialise.
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5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

Notwithstanding this, the Company and the Vendors will take all reasonable steps to
ensure that the conditions precedent are fulfilled and their obligations as set out in the SPA
are performed in accordance with the provisions of the SPA as well as to obtain all requisite
approvals for the Proposed Acquisition.

Achievability of the Profit Guarantee

As set out in Section 2.2 of this Circular, the Profit Guarantee is deemed reasonable and
realistic by the Board (save for the Interested Parties), but nevertheless subject to certain
uncertainties and contingencies which are often outside of AZTI's control. While the
Company has taken reasonable steps to assess the achievability of the Profit Guarantee,
there can be no assurance that AZTI will not face potential issues which may result in the
Profit Guarantee not being met.

Investment and integration risk

Although the Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute positively to the future
earnings of the Company, there is no assurance that the anticipated benefits from the
Proposed Acquisition will be realised or that the Company will be able to generate sufficient
returns from the projects of AZTI to offset the associated cost of investment and/or the
upfront costs incurred. In addition, any decline in economic conditions may affect the
potential benefits to be derived from the Proposed Acquisition and the duration required
for RedPlanet to recoup its investment could be longer than anticipated.

Nevertheless, the Company has exercised due care in considering the potential risks and
benefits associated with the Proposed Acquisition and believes that the Proposed
Acquisition will be earnings accretive and synergistic to the enlarged RedPlanet group,
after taking into consideration, among others, the Profit Guarantee and the prospects of
AZTI.

Political, economic and regulatory considerations

Adverse changes in political, economic, regulatory and social conditions in Malaysia
include inter-alia, changes in labour laws, introduction of new rules or regulation, fiscal and
monetary policies and method of taxation, could materially and adversely affect the
financial prospects of the Proposed Acquisition directly or indirectly. Furthermore, in the
event of a resurgence of a pandemic or a prolonged uncertainty, this may materially affect
the Malaysian economy, the industry in which the Company operates in and the potential
benefits arising from the Proposed Acquisition. These factors are generally beyond the
management’s control and affects all the players within the industry.

The Company will seek to mitigate such risk through implementing prudent management
policies, careful planning and allocation of resources as well as maintaining cordial
relationship with the relevant authorities.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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6. EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION
6.1. Share capital

The pro forma effect of the Proposed Acquisition on the share capital of RedPlanet is set

out below:
No. of RedPlanet Shares (RM)
Issued share capital of 159,396,700 1) 5,544,129
RedPlanet as at the LPD
To be issued pursuant to 10,928,571 2,295,000
the Proposed Acquisition
Enlarged share capital 170,325,271 7,839,129
Note:

(1) After offset with listing expenses of RM135,271.
6.2. NA, NA per share and gearing
For illustration purposes only, based on the latest audited consolidated financial results of

RedPlanet for the FYE 30 June 2023, the pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on
the consolidated NA and gearing of RedPlanet are shown below:

Audited

as at After Proposed

30 June 2023 Acquisition

(RM) (RM)

Share capital 5,544,129 7,839,129
Reorganisation deficit (1,318,043) (1,318,043)
Foreign exchange translation reserve 1,824 1,824
Retained profits 14,622,847 M) 14,322,847
Total equity/NA 18,850,757 20,845,757
No. of RedPlanet Shares in issue 159,396,700 170,325,271
NA per share (RM) 0.12 0.12
Total borrowings - 6,405,887
Gearing (times)®@ - 0.31

Notes:

(1) After incurring estimated expenses in relation to the Proposed Acquisition of
approximately RM300,000.

(2) Computed based on total borrowings divided by total equity.
(3) RedPlanet has no external borrowing. After incorporating the impact of AZTI’s

borrowings of RM6.41 million as at 30 September 2022 with RedPlanet upon
completion of the Proposed Acquisition.
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6.3.

6.4.

Earnings and EPS

Barring any unforeseen circumstances and on the assumption that the Proposed
Acquisition will be completed by the end December 2023, the Proposed Acquisition is not
expected to have any material effect on the consolidated earnings and EPS of RedPlanet
for the FYE 30 June 2024.

The Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute positively to the future earnings and
EPS of RedPlanet, after taking into consideration the Profit Guarantee provided as well as
the outlook of the ICT industry as set out in Section 4.2 of this Circular.

However, the Group’s EPS will be diluted accordingly as a result of the Consideration
Shares to be issued.

The pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the Group’s earnings and EPS based
on its audited consolidated financial statements for the FYE 30 June 2023 (assuming that
the Proposed Acquisition had been completed 1 July 2021 and assuming the achievement
of 1st Guaranteed Profit) are as follows:

Audited as at 30 After Proposed

June 2023 Acquisition

RM RM

PAT attributable to the owners of the 4,160,936 4,160,936
Company

Add: 51% of 1st Guaranteed Profit - 637,500("

Less: Estimated expenses in relation to - (300,000)

the Proposed Acquisition

Proforma earnings 4,160,936 4,498,436

Number of shares in issue 159,396,700 170,325,271

EPS (sen) 2.61 2.64

Note:

(1) Assuming AZTI achieved a PAT of at least RM1,250,000 which is the 1st Guaranteed
Profit for the 1st Guarantee Period. Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition,
AZTI will become a 51% owned subsidiary of RedPlanet. Hence, RedPlanet will be
able to share the 51% of PAT of AZTI.

Convertible securities

As at the LPD, the Company does not have any existing convertible securities.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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6.5. Substantial shareholders’ shareholding

For illustrative purpose, the pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the shareholdings of the substantial shareholders of RedPlanet are
set out in the table below:

As at the LPD After Proposed Acquisition
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Substantial shareholders No. of % No. of % No. of % No. of %
RedPlanet RedPlanet RedPlanet RedPlanet
Shares Shares Shares Shares
Pksen Ventures Sdn. Bhd. 48,813,300 30.62 - - 48,813,300 28.66 - -
Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd. 39,845,800 | 25.00 - - 39,845,800 23.39 - -
Steve & Co Capital Sdn. Bhd. 25,159,700 15.78 - - 25,159,700 14.77 - -
Fajar Muda Sdn. Bhd. 16,554,900 10.39 - - 16,554,900 9.72 - -
Panjetty Kumaradevan Senthil - - 148,813,300 30.62 - - | (48,813,300 28.66
Kumar
LWS - - (39,845,800 25.00 2,458,928 1.44 | (48,315,443 28.37
Steve Wan Siew Kum - - 425,159,700 15.78 - - | 25,159,700 14.77
Mohamad Azhar Bin Ahmad - - (16,554,900 10.39 - - | ©16,554,900 9.72
NCSB - - - - 5,737,500 3.37 - -
PPSB - - - - 2,732,143 1.60 - -
LTT - - - - - - 65,737,500 3.37
Notes:

(1) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of his shareholding in Pksen Ventures Sdn. Bhd.

(2) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of his shareholding in Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd.

(3) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of his shareholding in Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd., NCSB and PPSB.
(4) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of his shareholding in Steve & Co Capital Sdn. Bhd.

(5) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of his shareholding in Fajar Muda Sdn. Bhd.

(6) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act by virtue of her shareholding in NCSB.
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10.

APPROVALS REQUIRED
The Proposed Acquisition is subject to the following being obtained:

() the approval of Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the Consideration
Shares on the LEAP Market of Bursa Securities;

(i)  the approval of the shareholders of RedPlanet at the EGM to be convened;

(i) a waiver by the shareholders of the Company of their pre-emptive rights pursuant to
Section 85(1) of the Act to be first offered the Consideration Shares which will result in a
dilution to their shareholdings in the Company; and

(iv) the approval, consent and/or sanction of any other relevant authorities/parties, if required.

CONDITIONALITY

The Proposed Acquisition is not conditional upon any other corporate proposals of RedPlanet.

PERCENTAGE RATIO

The highest percentage ratio pursuant to Rule 7.02(f) of the LMLR, based on the latest audited
financial statements of RedPlanet for FYE 30 June 2023, is 40.58%, being the aggregate value
of the consideration given to AZTI against the NA of RedPlanet as at 30 June 2023.

For information, AZTI had on 23 May 2023 changed their financial year end from 30 September
to 30 June.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND/OR
PERSON CONNECTED WITH THEM

LWS is the Non-Executive Chairman and major shareholder of RedPlanet. He is also the director
and major shareholder of AZTI. Presently, LWS holds the entire equity interests of AZTI via his
personal capacity as well as his shareholdings in NCSB and PPSB and indirect shareholdings
via his spouse, LTT in NCSB.

LTT is the spouse of LWS. She is a director and major shareholder of NCSB, the holding
company of AZTI. LTT is also an alternate director of Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd. which holds
25% equity interest in RedPlanet.

LWS, LTT and Newventures Equity Sdn. Bhd. are collectively known as the “Interested Parties”.

Save for the Interested Parties, none of other Directors and/or major shareholders and/or chief
executive of RedPlanet and/or persons connected with them have any interest, whether direct or
indirect, in the Proposed Acquisition.

LWS has abstained and will continue to abstain from all deliberations and voting in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition at the relevant Board meetings. The Interested Parties and person
connected with them will also abstain from voting in respect of his/her direct and/or indirect
shareholdings in RedPlanet on the resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled
at the EGM to be convened.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT AND RECOMMENDATION

After taking into consideration the rationale, terms, conditions, evaluation from the Independent

Adviser and effects of the Proposed Acquisition, the Board (save for the Interested Parties who

have abstained from deliberating and voting in respect of the Proposed Acquisition at the relevant

Board meetings) is of the opinion that the Proposed Acquisition is in the best interest of

RedPlanet and not detrimental to the interest of the non-interested shareholders of RedPlanet.

Accordingly, the Board recommends that you vote in favour of the resolution to give effect to the

Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming of EGM.

ADVISER

SCA has been appointed as Approved Adviser to RedPlanet for the Proposed Acquisition.

Strategic has been appointed as the Independent Adviser to provide the following:

0] an independent evaluation of the Proposed Acquisition;

(ii) an opinion as to whether the Proposed Acquisition is fair and reasonable and on normal
commercial terms as well as not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the
Company; and

(iii) a recommendation as to whether the non-interested shareholders of the Company
should vote for or against the resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be
tabled at the forthcoming EGM.

CORPORATE EXERCISES ANNOUNCED BUT PENDING COMPLETION

Save for the acquisition of AZTI, there is no other corporate exercise that has been announced

by the Company which are pending completion prior to the issuance of this Circular.

ESTIMATED TIMEFRAME FOR COMPLETION

Subject to all required approvals being obtained, the Board expects the estimated timeframe for
the completion of Proposed Acquisition to be as follows:

Tentative dates Events

Mid November 2023 EGM
Early December 2023 | Listing of the Consideration Shares

End December 2023 Completion of the Proposed Acquisition

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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15.

16.

EGM

The EGM, the notice of which is enclosed in this Circular, will be held fully virtually through live
streaming via an application known as Zoom from No. 1-8, Level 8, The Boulevard, Mid Valley
City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia on Friday, 17
November 2023 at 11.00 a.m. or immediately upon the conclusion of the Fourth Annual General
Meeting (“4" AGM”) of the Company scheduled to be held on the same day at 10.30 a.m.,
whichever is later or at any adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit,
passing with or without modification, the resolution to give effect to the Proposed Acquisition.

If you are unable to attend the EGM, you may appoint one or more proxies to participate and vote
on your behalf. If you wish to do so, you should complete and lodge the Form of Proxy enclosed
in this Circular at:

a) the Share Registrar's Office situated at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah
Persekutuan; or

b) its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah
Persekutuan; or

c) by electronic means via email to is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com,

not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the stipulated time fixed for holding the EGM or at any

adjournment thereof. The lodging of the Form of Proxy will not preclude you from participating
and voting at the EGM should you subsequently wish to do so.

FURTHER INFORMATION

The shareholders of RedPlanet are requested to refer to the attached appendices for further
information.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board of
REDPLANET BERHAD

PANJETTY KUMARADEVAN SENTHIL KUMAR
Executive Director
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PART B

IAL TO THE NON-INTERESTED SHAREHOLDERS OF REDPLANET IN RELATION TO THE
PROPOSED ACQUISITION
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ALL DEFINITIONS USED IN THIS EXECUTIVE SUMMARY SHALL HAVE THE SAME MEANING AS THE
WORDS AND EXPRESSIONS PROVIDED IN THE “DEFINITIONS” SECTION OF THE CIRCULAR, EXCEPT
WHERE THE CONTEXT OTHERWISE REQUIRES OR WHERE OTHERWISE DEFINED IN THIS IAL.

THIS EXECUTIVE SUMMARY HIGHLIGHTS ONLY THE PERTINENT INFORMATION OF THE PROPOSED
ACQUISITION. NON-INTERESTED SHAREHOLDERS ARE ADVISED TO READ CAREFULLY THE
CONTENTS OF THIS IAL IN ITS ENTIRETY FOR FURTHER INFORMATION AND THE
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STRATEGIC, BEING THE INDEPENDENT ADVISER IN RELATION TO THE
PROPOSED ACQUISITION. THIS IAL SHOULD ALSO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH PART A OF THE
CIRCULAR, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES THEREIN, FOR ANY OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION
BEFORE VOTING ON THE RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION AT THE
FORTHCOMING EGM OF THE COMPANY.

1. INTRODUCTION

On 7 September 2023, the Approved Adviser, on behalf of the Board, announced that the
Company, had on the same date entered into the SPA with the Vendors for the Proposed
Acquisition. In conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition, RedPlanet, had on the same date,
entered into the SHA with the Vendors and AZTI for the purpose of regulating their relationship
with each other upon completion of the SPA.

In view of the interests of the Interested Parties as set out in Section 10, Part A of the Circular,
the Proposed Acquisition is deemed to be a related party transaction pursuant to Rule 7.06 of
the LMLR.

In this respect, the Board (save for the Interested Directors) had on 4 August 2023 appointed
Strategic as the Independent Adviser to advise the non-interested directors and non-interested
shareholders of the Company on the fairness and reasonableness of the terms of the Proposed
Acquisition.

The purpose of this IAL is to provide the non-interested directors and non-interested
shareholders of the Company with an independent evaluation on the fairness and reasonableness
of the Proposed Acquisition and whether the Proposed Acquisition is to the detriment of the non-
interested shareholders as well as to provide a recommendation thereon on the voting of the
resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM.

2. EVALUATION OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

In arriving at our opinion and recommendation on the Proposed Acquisition, we had taken into
consideration the following bases and analysis:

Consideration Section | Our evaluation

factors

(a) Rationale and | 5.1 AZTI Group is principally involved in the same industry as
justification RedPlanet, which is the provision of ICT solutions, offering the
of the PIES system, which mainly serves the railway industry, and GIS
Proposed solutions, which have wide-ranging applications, respectively.
Acquisition The Proposed Acquisition will allow the enlarged RedPlanet

Group to expand and provide additional services to its existing
customers and vice versa.

Further, the consolidation of the PIES system into RedPlanet’s
ICT solutions offered, coupled with the proven track record of
AZTI Group and the PIES System, which has been successfully
implemented in four (4) countries, shall provide AZTI Group
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Consideration Section

factors

Our evaluation

with a better recognition and competitive advantage to secure
future railway related projects.

The Proposed Acquisition will enable RedPlanet and AZTI
Group to leverage on each other’s expertise, technology and
create synergies; and expanding its business operation,
providing a more extensive range of value-added services to
its existing and potential customers.

Premise on the above, we are of the opinion that the rationale
for the Proposed Acquisition is reasonable and not detrimental
to the non-interested shareholders of the Company.

(b) Evaluation of the Proposed

Acquisition

(i) Basis and 5.2.1
justification
of the
Purchase
Consideration

The Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a willing-buyer
and willing-seller basis after taking into consideration the
following, amongst others:

(i) The rationale of the Proposed Acquisition as set out in
Section 3, Part A of the Circular;

(ii) The Profit Guarantee; and

(iii) The existing secured project and tender book of AZTI
Group.

In establishing our opinion on the fairness of the Purchase
Consideration, Strategic had considered various
methodologies, which are commonly used for valuation and
took into consideration AZTlI Group’s future earnings
generating capabilities, projected cash flows, its sustainability
as well as various business considerations and risk factors
affecting its business. We have also taken note that the
Purchase Consideration implies a PE multiple of six (6) times
based on the average Profit Guarantee per annum of RM2.50
million.

Based on the RVA, the implied PE multiple of 6.00 times is
lower than the average and range of PE multiple of the
Comparable Companies.

We have also benchmarked the implied PE multiple of AZTI
Group against all companies listed under the “Technology”
sector, “Software” subsector of Bursa Securities. The broad-
based multiples indicated above reflects the general market
expectations for the technology software industry. We note
that the implied PE multiple of 6.00 times is below the
average, median and range of PE multiple indicated above.

In our assessment on the reasonableness of the Profit
Guarantee, we take note of the followings:

- AZTI Group’s existing secured project with a total contract
sum of RM31.27 million with outstanding billings of
approximately RM12.16 million as at the LPD;

- AZTI Group’s tender book of approximately RM35.71 million
as at the LPD; and

- The Profit Guarantee is backed by collateral in the form of
the Retained Cash Consideration, which will be held by the
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Consideration
factors

Section

Our evaluation

purchaser as a security for AZTI to achieve the Profit
Guarantee, and shall be paid to the Vendors in three (3)
tranches upon AZTI achieving the guaranteed profit in
accordance with the Profit Guarantee mechanism as
stipulated in Section 1.5 of the Appendix | of the Circular.

Premised on the above evaluation, we are of the opinion that
the Profit Guarantee and the Purchase Consideration are fair
and reasonable, and not detrimental to the non-interested
shareholders of the Company.

(ii) Basis and 5.2.2 In assessing the fairness and reasonableness of the Issue Price
justification of the Consideration Shares, we have compared the Issue Price
for the Issue against the last transacted price as at the LTD and the
Price of the respective VWAMP for five (5)-day, one (1)-month, three (3)-
Consideration month, six (6)-month and twelve (12)-month up to the LTD.
Shares

The Issue Price represent a premium of 5.00% over the closing
market price on the LTD but are at a discount of 8.66%, 8.38%,
8.38%, 8.91% and 10.42% over the VWAMP for five (5)-day, one
(1)-month, three (3)-month, six (6)-month and twelve (12)-
month up to the LTD.

We are of the opinion that the aforesaid discount to the Issue
Price is fair considering that RedPlanet Shares have not been
actively traded over the past one (1) year up to the LTD.
Premised on the above, we are of the opinion that the Issue
Price of the Consideration Shares is fair and not detrimental to
the non-interested shareholders of the Company.

(iii) Salient 5.2.3 We are of the view that the overall terms and conditions of the

terms of the | 5.2.4 SPA and the SHA are fair and reasonable and not detrimental
SPA and the to the non-interested shareholders of the Company.
SHA

(c) Industry 5.3 The enlarged RedPlanet Group is expected to increase its ICT
overview, solutions offerings to the enlarged customer base, which in
outlook and turn, barring unforeseen circumstances, is expected to
prospects contribute positively to the earnings of the enlarged RedPlanet

Group. Moving forward, the enlarged RedPlanet Group with its
combined resources will have enhanced access to larger scale
business opportunities and have better opportunities to access
to a wider range of customers as well as a platform to compete
more competitively with other industry players (by offering the
GIS technology to wider customers by leveraging on AZTI
Group’s presences in Canada, the United States, Australia and
Taiwan).

Premised on the above, we are of the view that the prospects
of the enlarged RedPlanet Group following the Proposed
Acquisition will be favourable and barring unforeseen
circumstances, is poised to improve its financial performance
in the future.
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Consideration Section Our evaluation

factors

(d) Risk factors 5.4 We take note of the risk factors as disclosed in Section 5, Part
relating to the A of the Circular.
Proposed
Acquisition The Company is not expected to be exposed to new business

risks as a result of the Proposed Acquisition.

We also wish highlight that despite efforts and measures taken
by the Company to mitigate the risks associated with the
Proposed Acquisition, no assurance can be given that one or a
combination of risk factors as stated above and in Section 5,
Part A of the Circular will not occur and give rise to material
and adverse impact on the business and operations of the
Company, its financial performance, financial position or
prospects thereon.

(e) Financial 5.5 The financial effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the
effects of the Company are as follows:
Proposed
Acquisition (i) The Proposed Acquisition will result in an increase in the

Company’s share capital from 159,396,700 RedPlanet
Shares to 170,325,271 RedPlanet Shares following the
issuance of the Consideration Shares upon completion of
the Proposed Acquisition;

(i) The shareholdings of the existing substantial
shareholders, save for LWS, will collectively decrease
from 56.79% to 53.15% whilst LWS’ direct and indirect
shareholdings will increase from 25.00% to 29.81% upon
completion of the Proposed Acquisition;

(i) The gearing of the enlarged RedPlanet Group will increase
from nil to 0.31 times after the Proposed Acquisition after
consolidating the borrowings of AZTI Group. As a result, it
would be at a higher financial risk due to higher interest
expense exposure and potentially higher interest rate for
future bank borrowings.

(iii) The Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute
positively to the earnings of the Company after taking into
consideration, amongst others, the Profit Guarantee and
the outlook of the ICT industry.

The financial effects of the Proposed Acquisition are fair and
reasonable and not to the detriment of the non-interested
shareholders of the Company.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

Premised on our overall assessment of the Proposed Acquisition, we are of the opinion that the
terms of the Proposed Acquisition are fair and reasonable and are not detrimental to the
interests of the non-interested shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, we recommend that the non-interested shareholders to vote in favour of the

resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM of the
Company.
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We have not taken into consideration any specific investment objective, financial situation or
particular need of any individual non-interested shareholders. We recommend that any non-
interested shareholders who require advice in relation to the Proposed Acquisition in the
context of their individual investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs,
consult their respective stockbrokers, bank managers, accountants, solicitors or other
professional advisers.

NON-INTERESTED SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ARE ADVISED TO READ BOTH THIS IAL
AND PART A OF THE CIRCULAR TOGETHER WITH THE ACCOMPANYING APPENDICES AND
CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDATION CONTAINED HEREIN BEFORE VOTING ON THE
RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION TO BE TABLED AT THE
FORTHCOMING EGM OF THE COMPANY.
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Strategic Capital Advisory Sdn Bhd

(Registration No. 199901003253 (478153-U))
Investment Advisers — Corporate Finance (CMSL/A0124/2007)
(Licensed by Securities Commission)

Unit TO5, Tower Block, Plaza Dwitasik,

Jalan Tasik Permaisuri 1, Bandar Sri Permaisuri,

56000 Kuala Lumpur

Strateqic CAPIEAL | 5 1e: 603 9171 9600 Our Fax : 603 9173 7600

Date: 1 November 2023

To: The Non-Interested Shareholders of RedPlanet Berhad

Dear Sir/Madam,

REDPLANET BERHAD (“REDPLANET” OR “COMPANY”)

INDEPENDENT ADVICE LETTER (“IAL”) IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

This IAL is prepared for inclusion in the Circular and should be read in conjunction with the same.
All definitions used in this IAL shall have the same meaning as the words and expressions provided
in the definitions section of the Circular, except where the context otherwise requires or where
otherwise defined herein.

1.

INTRODUCTION

On 7 September 2023, the Approved Adviser, on behalf of the Board, announced that the
Company, had on the same date entered into the SPA with the Vendors for the Proposed
Acquisition. In conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition, RedPlanet, had on the same date,
entered into the SHA with the Vendors and AZTI for the purpose of regulating their relationship
with each other upon completion of the SPA.

In view of the interests of the Interested Parties as set out in Section 10, Part A of the Circular,
the Proposed Acquisition is deemed to be a related party transaction pursuant to Rule 7.06 of
the LMLR.

In this respect, the Board (save for the Interested Parties) had on 4 August 2023 appointed
Strategic as the Independent Adviser to advise the non-interested Directors and non-interested
shareholders of the Company on the fairness and reasonableness of the terms of the Proposed
Acquisition.

The purpose of this IAL is to provide the non-interested Directors and non-interested
shareholders of the Company with an independent evaluation on the fairness and
reasonableness of the Proposed Acquisition and whether the Proposed Acquisition is to the
detriment of the non-interested shareholders as well as to provide a recommendation thereon
on the voting of the resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the
forthcoming EGM.

Other than for this intended purpose, this IAL should not be used for any other purpose and/or
by any other persons and/or reproduced, wholly or partially, without our express written
consent.

Non-interested shareholders of the Company are advised to read this IAL and Part A of the
Circular together with the appendices thereon, and to carefully consider the
recommendations contained herein before voting on the resolution pertaining to the
Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM of the Company. If you are in
doubt about the course of action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker, bank
manager, accountant, solicitor or other professional advisers immediately.
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DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

The details of the Proposed Acquisition are set out in Section 2, Part A of the Circular and
should be read in their entirety.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, AND/OR PERSONS CONNECTED WITH
THEM

The interests of the Interested Parties and/or persons connected to them are set out in Section
10, Part A of the Circular.

The interested Director has abstained and will continue to abstain from all deliberations and
voting for the Proposed Acquisition at the relevant Board meetings. The Interested Parties and
persons connected with them will also abstain from voting in respect of their respective direct
and/or indirect shareholdings in the Company, if any, on the resolution pertaining to the
Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM.

LIMITATIONS TO THE EVALUATION OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

Strategic was not involved in the formulation of the Proposed Acquisition or any deliberation
and negotiation on the terms and conditions of the Proposed Acquisition.

The terms of reference of our appointment as Independent Adviser are in accordance with the
requirements relating to independent adviser as set out in Rule 7.06 of the LMLR and the Best
Practice Guide in relation to IAL issued by Bursa Securities.

Our role as an Independent Adviser does not extend to expressing an opinion on the commercial
merits of the Proposed Acquisition, which is solely the responsibility of the Board, although we
may draw upon their views in arriving at our opinion. As such, where comments or points of
the consideration are included on matters, which may be commercially oriented, these are
incidental to our overall financial evaluation and concern matters, which we may deem
material for disclosure. Further, our terms of reference do not include us rendering an expert
opinion on legal, accounting and taxation issues relating to the Proposed Acquisition. Our terms
of reference as Independent Adviser is limited to expressing our independent evaluation of the
Proposed Acquisition which is based on the sources of information as highlighted below.

In rendering our advice, we have taken note of the pertinent issues which we have considered
important in enabling us to assess the implication of the Proposed Acquisition, and therefore
of general concern to the non-interested shareholders of the Company, as such:

(i) the scope of the Independent Adviser’s responsibility regarding the evaluation and
recommendation contained herein is confined to the assessment of the fairness and
reasonableness of the Proposed Acquisition and other implications of the said proposal
only. Comments or points of the consideration which may be commercially oriented such
as the rationale and potential benefits of the Proposed Acquisition are included in our
overall evaluation as we deem it necessary to enable the non-interested shareholders
of the Company to consider and form their views thereon;

(ii) the Independent Adviser’s views and advice as contained in this IAL only caters to the
non-interested shareholders of the Company at large and not to any non-interested
shareholders individually. Hence, in carrying out our evaluation, we have not given
consideration the specific investment objectives, risk profiles, financial and tax
situations and particular needs of any individual non-interested shareholder or any
specific group of non-interested shareholders; and
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(iii) we recommend that any individual non-interested shareholder or group of non-interested
shareholders of the Company who is in doubt as to the action to be taken or required
advice in relation to the Proposed Acquisition in the context of their individual objectives,
risk profiles, financial and tax situations or particular needs, shall consult their respective
stockbrokers, bankers, solicitors, accountants or other professional advisers immediately.
We shall not be liable for any damage or loss sustained or suffered by any individual
shareholders or any group of shareholders.

In performing our evaluation, we have relied on the following sources of information:

(i) The Company’s announcement on 7 September 2023 in relation to the Proposed

Acquisition;

(ii)  The SPA;

(iii) The SHA;

(iv) The audited consolidated financial statements of AZTI for the FYE 30 September 2021
and 2022;

(v) Information contained in Part A of the Circular and the appendices attached thereto;
(vi) Other relevant information furnished to us by the management of the Company; and
(vii) Other publicly available information which we deemed relevant.

We have made all reasonable enquiries and have relied on the Board and management of the
Company to exercise due care to ensure that all information, documents as mentioned above
and relevant facts, information and representation for our evaluation of the Proposed
Acquisition had been disclosed to us and that such information is accurate, reasonable,
complete, valid and there is no omission of material facts, which would make any information
provided to us incomplete, misleading or inaccurate.

We have not undertaken an independent investigation into the business of the Company and
AZTI Group and are not aware of any fact or matter not disclosed which renders any such
information untrue, inaccurate or misleading or the disclosure of which might reasonably affect
our evaluation and opinion as set out in this IAL. We have also assumed that the Proposed
Acquisition will be implemented based on the terms as set out in Appendix | of the Circular,
without material waiver or modification.

The Board has, individually and collectively, accepted full responsibility that all material facts,
financial and other information essential to our evaluation have been disclosed to us, that they
have seen this IAL, and for the accuracy of the information in respect of the Proposed
Acquisition (save for those in relation to our evaluation and opinion pertaining to the same) as
prepared herein and confirmed that after making all reasonable enquiries and to the best of
their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission, of which would make any
statement herein incomplete, false and/or misleading.

We are satisfied with the disclosures from the Board and management of the Company and
that sufficient information has been obtained, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
the information is accurate, reasonable, complete, valid and there is no omission of material
facts. We have also performed our reasonableness check and where possible, corroborating
such information with independent sources. Our evaluation and recommendation expressed
herein are based on prevailing economic, market and other conditions, and the information
and/or documents made available to us, as at the LPD. Such conditions may change over a
short period of time.

Accordingly, our evaluation and recommendation expressed herein do not take into account
the information, events and conditions arising after the date hereof. After the dispatch of this
IAL, should Strategic become aware of any significant change affecting the information
contained in this IAL or have reasonable grounds to believe that there is material omission in
this IAL, we will immediately notify the shareholders. If circumstances require, a
supplementary IAL will be sent accordingly to the shareholders.
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Strategic confirms that there is no conflict of interest or any circumstances which exist or likely
to give rise to a possible conflict of interest situation for Strategic to carry out the role as the
Independent Adviser in connection with the Proposed Acquisition. Strategic also confirms that
it has not had any professional relationship with the Company, and their related parties in the
past two (2) years.

Strategic is permitted to carry on the regulated activity of advising on corporate finance under
the Capital Markets and Services Act, 2007. Strategic has undertaken the role as an
independent adviser for corporate exercises in the past two (2) years before the date of this
IAL, which include amongst others:

(i)

(if)

(ifi)

the private placement of up to 167,999,993 new ordinary shares in Mieco Chipboard
Berhad (“Mieco”) representing approximately 20% of the existing total number of
issued shares of Mieco, to independent third party investor(s) and the acquisition of
the entire equity interest in Seng Yip Furniture Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SYF Resources Berhad, for a total purchase consideration of RM50,000,000 to be
satisfied entirely via cash based on a conditional share sale agreement dated 6 October
2021, as per our independent advice letter dated 29 November 2021;

the disposal of 3 pieces of vacant freehold lands located at Bandar Baru Enstek, Tempat
Bandar Baru Enstek, Daerah Seremban, Negeri Sembilan by Signature Realty Sdn Bhd,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature International Berhad to Ace Logistic Sdn Bhd
for a total cash consideration of RM54,567,000 via 3 conditional sale and purchase
agreements, all dated 13 September 2021, as per our independent advice letter dated
6 December 2021;

the joint ventures between Amverton Prop Sdn Bhd (formerly known as AMJ
Construction Sdn Bhd), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL Industries Berhad with Unik
Sejati Sdn Bhd, Pembinaan Kesentosaan Sdn Bhd and Amverton Carey Golf & Island
Resort Sdn Bhd to undertake residential developments on 5 parcels of land located in
Mukim Sungai Buloh, Mukim Klang and Mukim Jugra, via 4 conditional joint venture
agreements, all dated 20 April 2021, as per our independent advice letter dated 28
December 2021;

the acquisition by BKG Development Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHGP of
the entire equity interest in Quaver Sdn Bhd for a cash consideration of RM1.25 million
as well as the acceptance by Kayangan Kemas Sdn Bhd, another subsidiary of CHGP, of
the letter of award from Ace Logistic Sdn Bhd for the related party project involving
the design, construction and completion of a proposed single-storey factory with 3-
storey office and hostel at Mukim Labu, Bandar Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan for a
contract sum of RM57.09 million, as per our independent advice letter dated 15
December 2022;

the acquisition by Radiant Globaltech Berhad of the remaining 20% equity interest in
Grand-Flo Spritvest Sdn Bhd, an 80% owned subsidiary of Radiant Globaltech Berhad,
for a total purchase consideration of RM12,605,000 to be satisfied entirely in cash, as
per our independent advice letter dated 7 June 2023; and

the acquisition by W T K Holdings Berhad of 70% equity interest in Durafarm Sdn Bhd
for a total cash consideration of RM132.20 million, as per our independent advice letter
dated 19 October 2023.

Premised on the foregoing, Strategic is capable and competent in carrying out its role and
responsibilities as the Independent Adviser to advise the non-interested Directors and non-
interested shareholders in relation to the Proposed Acquisition.
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5.1

5.2

5.2.1

EVALUATION OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION
In evaluating the Proposed Acquisition, we have considered the following:

(i) Rationale of the Proposed Acquisition;
(ii)  Evaluation of the Proposed Acquisition:
(a) Basis and justification of the Purchase Consideration;
(b) Basis and justification for the Issue Price of the Consideration Shares;
(c) Salient terms of the SPA; and
(d) Salient terms of the SHA;
(ifi)  Industry overview, outlook and prospects;
(iv) Risk factors relating to the Proposed Acquisition; and
(v)  Financial effects of the Proposed Acquisition.

The views expressed by Strategic in this IAL are based on, amongst others, current economic,
market and political conditions prevailing as at the LPD. In this respect, the non-interested
shareholders of the Company should take further note of any announcements relevant to their
consideration of the Proposed Acquisition which may be released after the LPD.

Rationale of the Proposed Acquisition
The rationale of the Proposed Acquisition is as set out in Section 3, Part A of the Circular.

We note that AZTI Group is principally involved in the same industry as RedPlanet, which is the
provision of ICT solutions. Although both AZTI Group and RedPlanet are involved in the same
industry, the type of ICT solutions offered are different, wherein AZTI Group is principally
involved in the provision of PIES system, which mainly serves the railway industry, whilst the
RedPlanet specialises in GIS solutions, which have wide-ranging applications. Hence, the
Proposed Acquisition will allow the enlarged RedPlanet Group to expand and provide additional
services to its existing customers and vice versa.

Further, the consolidation of the PIES system into RedPlanet’s ICT solutions offered, coupled
with the proven track record of AZTI Group and the PIES System, which has been successfully
implemented in four (4) countries, shall provide AZTI Group with a better recognition and
competitive advantage to secure future railway related projects.

The Proposed Acquisition will enable RedPlanet and AZTI Group to leverage on each other’s
expertise, technology and create synergies; and expanding its business operation, providing a
more extensive range of value-added services to its existing and potential customers. The
Proposed Acquisition would also allow the enlarged RedPlanet Group to further grow and
expand its business and is expected to contribute positively to the earnings of the enlarge
RedPlanet Group and correspondingly enhance the value of the Company.

Premised on the above, we are of the opinion that the rationale for the Proposed
Acquisition is reasonable and not detrimental to the interests of the non-interested
shareholders of the Company. Nevertheless, the non-interested shareholders of the
Company should note that the potential benefits arising from the Proposed Acquisition are
subject to certain risk factors as disclosed in Section 5, Part A of the Circular. Our
assessment and evaluation of the risk factors are also being discussed in Section 5.4 of this
IAL.

Evaluation of the Proposed Acquisition
Basis and Justification of the Purchase Consideration

The basis and justification of arriving at the Purchase Consideration is set out in Section 2.5,
Part A of the Circular.

The Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a willing-buyer and willing-seller basis after
taking into consideration the following, amongst others:
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i) The rationale of the Proposed Acquisition as set out in Section 3, Part A of the Circular;
ii) The Profit Guarantee; and
iii) The existing secured project and tender book of AZTI Group.

In establishing our opinion on the fairness of the Purchase Consideration, Strategic had
considered various methodologies, which are commonly used for valuation and took into
consideration AZTI Group’s future earnings generating capabilities, projected cash flows, its
sustainability as well as various business considerations and risk factors affecting its business.

We have also taken note that the Purchase Consideration implies a PE multiple of six (6) times
based on the average Profit Guarantee per annum of RM2.50 million.

Based on the above, we are of the opinion that the Relative Valuation Analysis (“RVA”) is the
most suitable valuation methodology as RVA compares the value of an asset based on traded
multiples of similar assets, based on current sentiment of the market. Hence, we have applied
the PE Multiple in our assessment of the fairness of the Purchase Consideration. We have
considered the Enterprise Value/Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA”) multiple and have concluded that this valuation multiple was not suitable as the
Profit Guarantee is based on the PAT and not the EBITDA levels of the AZTI Group.

We have also considered the Price to Book (“PB”) Multiple and have concluded that this
valuation multiple is also not suitable as PB Multiple values a company based on the value of
its assets, net of all liabilities at a specific point in time and does not take into consideration
the future income stream of a company. Considering that AZTI Group provides ICT solutions,
the PB Multiple may not accurately reflect the potential and market value of AZTI Group.

Further, we have also considered other valuation methodologies and found that the following
methodologies are not suitable in the assessment of the fairness of the Purchase Consideration
based on the following factors:-

Valuation Methodologies | Discussion

Discounted cash flow (“DCF”) | DCF Methodology is an investment appraisal technique which
Methodology considers both the time value of money and the projected net cash
flow generated discounted at a specified discount rate to derive at
the valuation of the subject matter. AZTI Group is not able to
accurately project its long term future cash flows considering the
nature of AZTI Group’s business being mainly projects/contracts
related which typically lasts from one (1) to three (3) years,
rendering a long term cash flow projections subject to various
uncertainties.

Whilst the Profit Guarantee provided by the Vendors may provide
some element of predictability in the earnings or cash flows of AZTI
Group, the Profit Guarantee only covers two (2) calendar years.
Hence, Strategic has concluded that this methodology is not
suitable in the determination of the fairness of the Purchase
Consideration.

Revalued Net Asset Valuation | RNAV method seeks to adjust the net asset of a company to take
(“RNAV”) into consideration the valuation of assets of a company to
determine the adjusted value of the firm’s financial value.
Considering that AZTI Group provides ICT solutions, RNAV may not
accurately reflect the potential and market value of AZTI Group.

Comparable Transaction | CTA is a valuation method which seeks to compare against other
Analysis (“CTA”) recent comparable transactions undertaken by companies listed on
the local and/or regional stock exchanges that had entered into
proposed acquisitions of similar assets. It also reflects a reasonable
estimate of multiples or premiums that others have paid for similar
companies in the past.
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Valuation Methodologies | Discussion

We have conducted our searches on precedent transactions for the
past three (3) years from S&P Capital 1Q as at the LTD, with the
criteria that the subject company involves in the provision of
software solutions for the railway industry in Malaysia.

As there was no precedent transaction for the past three (3) years,
we are of the view that CTA is not suitable in the determination of
the fairness of the Purchase Consideration.

RVA

RVA seeks to compare a company’s implied trading multiple to that of comparable companies
to determine the firm’s financial worth. Under the RVA, reference was made to the valuation
statistics of companies listed on Bursa Securities with principal activities that we consider
broadly comparable to AZTI Group, i.e. principally involved in software solutions for the
railway industry, to get an indication of the current market expectation with regards to the
fairness of the Purchase Consideration.

As there is only one (1) comparable company, namely EVD Berhad (“EVD”), we have expanded
our search to include global listed companies. Based on the above criteria, a total of three (3)
companies that we consider broadly comparable to AZTI Group (“Comparable Companies”)
were selected, details of which are as follows:-

Comparable Companies | Principal activities

EVD Provides ICT system solutions for transportation infrastructure in Malaysia
and Philippines. It offers transportation system solutions to, amongst
others, the railways, urban rail transit, roads, and highways.

IVU Traffic Technologies Develops, installs, maintains, and operates integrated ICT solutions for
AG (“IVU”) buses and trains worldwide. It also provides integration, implementation,
support, and cloud hosting and maintenance services.

Zhengzhou Jiean Hi-Tech Engages in the research, development, and technical services of computer
Co., Ltd. (“Jiean”) simulation training systems in rail transit, emergency safety, and other
fields in China.

It is important to note that the Comparable Companies tabulated herein are by no means
exhaustive and may differ from AZTI Group in terms of, inter alia, composition of business
activities, scale of operations, geographical location of operations, profit track record,
financial profile, risk profile, prospects, capital structure, marketability of their securities and
other criteria.

One should also note that any comparisons made with respect to the Comparable Companies
are merely to provide a comparison to the implied valuation of AZTI and the selection of
Comparable Companies and adjustments made are highly subjective and judgmental and the
selected companies may not be entirely comparable due to various factors.

The table below sets out the valuation statistics of the Comparable Companies based on the
closing market prices as at the LTD as extracted from S&P Capital IQ:

. . Market Capitalisation ["] PE multiple [2]
Comparable Company | Closing market price (RM million) (times)
EVD RMO0.15 61.84 49.42 Bl
IVU EUR14.60 1,278.71 26.37
Jiean CNY20.35 1,449,47 49.29
Average 41.70
Maximum 49.42
Minimum 26.37
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Notes:

[1] Computed based on the closing market prices and the outstanding ordinary shares as at the LTD,
translated at an exchange rate of RM5.0159/EUR and RM0.6399/CNY for IVU and Jiean
respectively as extracted from S&P Capital 1Q.

[2]  Calculated based on the closing market prices and the trailing twelve (12) months financial
results on a diluted earnings basis as at the LTD as extracted from S&P Capital IQ.

[3]  For information purposes, the PE multiple of EVD, on a non-dilutive earnings basis as at the LTD
as extracted from S&P Capital 1Q, is 11.87 times.

The implied PE multiple based on the Purchase Consideration and the average Profit Guarantee
per calendar year is as follows:-

Implied PE multiple

Value of 100% equity interest in AZTI [1] RM15.00 million
Average Profit Guarantee per calendar year RM2.50 million
Implied PE multiple 6.00 times
Comparable Companies:

Average 41.70
Maximum 49.42
Minimum 26.37

Notes:

[1]  Calculated using the Purchase Consideration divided by 51%.

Based on the above, the implied PE multiple of 6.00 times is lower than the average and range
of PE multiple of the Comparable Companies.

We have also benchmarked the implied PE multiple of AZTI Group against all companies listed
under the “Technology” sector, “Software” subsector of Bursa Securities as at the LTD as
follows:

Description Range of PE multiple
(times)
Bursa Securities - The companies listed under the Technology 6.13 - 252.36
Technology sector - sector, Software subsector of Bursa Securities (Average: 53.57)
Software subsector comprises 31 companies (excluding 1 company (Median: 25.22)
computed multiple classified under Guidance Note 3 of Bursa | (as extracted from S&P
Securities’ listing requirements). Capital 1Q)

The broad-based multiples indicated above reflects the general market expectations for the
technology software industry. We note that the implied PE multiple of 6.00 times as computed
above is below the average, median and range of PE multiple indicated above.

Based on the above assessment where the implied PE multiple of 6.00 times is lower than
the average and range of PE Multiple of the Comparable Companies and all companies listed
under the “Technology” sector, “Software” subsector of Bursa Securities, we are of the
opinion that the Purchase Consideration is fair, reasonable and not detrimental to the non-
interested shareholders of the Company.

In our assessment on the reasonableness of the Profit Guarantee, we take note of the

followings:

- AZTI Group’s existing secured project with a total contract sum of RM31.27 million with
outstanding billings of approximately RM12.16 million as at the LPD;

- AZTI Group’s tender book of approximately RM35.71 million as at the LPD; and

- The Profit Guarantee is backed by collateral in the form of the Retained Cash Consideration,
which will be held by the purchaser as a security for AZTI to achieve the Profit Guarantee,
and shall be paid to the Vendors in three (3) tranches upon AZTI achieving the guaranteed
profit in accordance with the Profit Guarantee mechanism as stipulated in Section 1.5 of
the Appendix | of the Circular.
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Premised on the above, we are of the opinion that the Profit Guarantee is reasonable and
not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the Company.

5.2.2 Basis and Justification for the Issue Price of the Consideration Shares

Section 2.6, Part A of the Circular sets out the basis and justification for the Issue Price of the
Consideration Shares.

In assessing the fairness and reasonableness of the Issue Price of the Consideration Shares, we
have compared the Issue Price against:

i) The last transacted price as at the LTD; and
ii) The respective VWAMP as set out in the table below:-

Basis of comparison based on VWAMP/ Premium/(discount) over
closing price VWAMP/closing price
RM
Last transacted price as at the LTD 0.200 0.010 5.00
VWAMP for the five (5)-day up to the LTD 0.230 (0.020) (8.66)
VWAMP for the one (1)-month up to the LTD 0.229 (0.019) (8.38)
VWAMP for the three (3)-month up to the LTD 0.229 (0.019) (8.38)
VWAMP for the six (6)-month up to the LTD 0.231 (0.021) (8.91)
VWAMP for the twelve (12)-month up to the LTD 0.234 (0.024) | (10.42)

(Source: S&P Capital 1Q)

Based on the table above, we noted that the Issue Price represent a premium of 5.00% over
the closing market price on the LTD but are at a discount of 8.66%, 8.38%, 8.38%, 8.91% and
10.42% over the VWAMP for five (5)-day, one (1)-month, three (3)-month, six (6)-month and
twelve (12)-month up to the LTD.

We are of the opinion that the aforesaid discount to the Issue Price is fair considering that
RedPlanet Shares have not been actively traded over the past one (1) year up to the LTD as
shown in the graph below.
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From on the above, we noted the following:-

i) The market price of RedPlanet Shares was between RM0.200 to RM0.31 for the past one
(1) year between September 2022 to September 2023; and

ii) The average market price of RedPlanet Shares was RM0.2729.

Based on the above, we are of the opinion that the Issue Price of the Consideration Shares is
fair and not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the Company.
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5.2.3 Salient terms of the SPA

The salient terms of the SPA are as disclosed in Appendix | of the Circular. Non-interested
shareholders of the Company are advised to read Appendix | of the Circular in the entirety.

Our comments on the salient terms of the SPA are as follows:

| salient terms

Sale and Purchase of Sale Shares

Subject to the terms and conditions of the SPA, the Vendors as
legal and beneficial owner agree to sell and RedPlanet agrees to
purchase the Sale Shares representing 51% of the total share
capital of AZTI in the proportion as set out in Column 2 of the table
within Section 2.1 of the Circular, free from all claims, liens,
pledges, charges, encumbrances and any equities whatsoever
together with all rights attached and all dividends, rights and
distributions declared, paid or made in respect of the same on the
terms and conditions of the SPA.

| Strategic Comments

This term is fair and a common
commercial term for
transactions of this nature and
will ensure that the Company
will have legal, beneficial and
unencumbered ownership of the
Sale Shares upon completion of
the Proposed Acquisition.

Conditions Precedent

i. The sale and purchase of the Sale Shares is conditional upon
the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent within 4
months from the date of the SPA or such other date(s) the
parties may mutually agree (“Conditional Period”). The
conditions precedent includes the following:-

a. The approval of Bursa Securities for the listing of and
quotation for the Consideration Shares to be issued
pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition on the LEAP Market;

b. The results of the due diligence review (including but not
limited to legal due diligence review) into AZTI and its
affairs being satisfactory to RedPlanet;

c. The approval of the board of RedPlanet and approval of
the shareholders of RedPlanet at a general meeting to be
convened in respect of the Proposed Acquisition and the
issuance of the Consideration Shares; and

d. Such other consents or approvals as may be necessary
from any governmental or regulatory body or competent
authority, or third-party having jurisdiction over the sale
of the Sale Shares, having been granted, waived or
obtained.

ii. Unless specifically waived by the parties, if any of the
conditions precedent above are not fulfilled before the
Conditional Period, the SPA shall cease and determine and
other than costs and expenses in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition, neither party shall have any claims against the
other for costs, damages, compensations or otherwise, save for
any antecedent breach of any representation, undertaking
and/or any of the terms of the SPA. The Deposit shall be
immediately refunded to RedPlanet by the Vendors.

We are of the view that this term
is reasonable as RedPlanet is a
listed company and approval is
required in compliance with the
LMLR.

We are of the view that this term
is reasonable as it protects the
Company from any adverse
findings during the due diligence
review.

We are of the view that this term
is reasonable as RedPlanet is a
listed company and approval is
required in compliance with the
LMLR.

This term is reasonable as the
approvals from the respective
parties are required for the
completion of the Proposed
Acquisition.

This term is reasonable as it
serves to protect the interest of
the Company in the event the
Proposed Acquisition is aborted.
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| salient terms | Strategic Comments

Purchase Consideration

3.

The Purchase Consideration shall be satisfied by RedPlanet via:-

payment of cash consideration; and

allotment and issuance of the Consideration Shares of the
value equivalent to the share consideration.

to the Vendors, in the amount and proportion in accordance with
the respective payment milestones set out in the table within
Section 2.3 of the Circular.

The issuance of the
Consideration Shares allows the
Company to conserve its cash
resources and not incur
additional borrowings to enable
requisite funding being available
to the enlarged RedPlanet Group
and enhances the Group’s
financial position via a larger
equity base. The justification of
the Purchase Consideration has
been discussed in Section 5.2.1
of this IAL whilst the justification
for the Issue Price of the
Consideration Shares have been
discussed in Section 5.2.2 of this
IAL.

The payment milestones are fair
considering that the Retained
Cash Consideration shall be paid
to the Vendors wupon AZTI
achieving the guaranteed profit
in accordance with the Profit
Guarantee mechanism.

Retained Cash Consideration

Notwithstanding Completion, the parties agree that a total sum of
RM2,550,000 from the Cash Consideration shall be retained by
RedPlanet as a security for AZTI to achieve the Profit Guarantee
set out in Section 1.5 of Appendix | of the Circular. The Retained
Cash Consideration may be released and paid to the Vendors in 3
tranches upon AZTI’s fulfilment of the Profit Guarantee.

This term is fair considering that
the Retained Cash Consideration
shall be paid to the Vendors upon
AZTI achieving the guaranteed
profit in accordance with the
Profit Guarantee mechanism.

Profit Guarantee

ifi.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the SPA to the contrary

and notwithstanding Completion, the Vendors jointly and

severally guarantee to RedPlanet that AZTI shall achieve:

a. unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1,250,000 (being the 15t
Guaranteed Profit) for the 15t Guarantee Period;

b. audited consolidated PAT of RM2,500,000 (being the 2"
Guaranteed Profit) for the 2" Guarantee Period; and

c. unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1,250,000 (being the 3
Guaranteed Profit) for 3" Guarantee Period,

or a minimum aggregate consolidated PAT of not less than

RM5,000,000 (being the Total Guaranteed Profit) for the total

24-month period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025,

(being the All Guarantee Periods), on a combined basis based

on the consolidated financial results of AZTI.

For avoidance of doubt, in view that RedPlanet shall hold 51%
equity interest in AZTI upon Completion, the Total Guaranteed
Profit attributable to the 51% equity interest held by RedPlanet
amounts to RM2,550,000 only (i.e. RM5,000,000 x 51%).

The parties agree that the Retained Cash Consideration shall
be paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in three (3) tranches upon
AZTI achieving the guaranteed profit for the following periods
in accordance with the Profit Guarantee mechanism stipulated
as follow:-

These terms are reasonable as it
serves as additional comfort to
the Company in respect of the
financial performance of AZTI
Group, whereby the Retained
Cash Consideration shall be paid
to the Vendors upon AZTI
achieving the guaranteed profit
in accordance with the Profit
Guarantee mechanism.
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| salient terms | Strategic Comments

a. Inrespect of 15t Guarantee Period;

(i) If the AZTI’s unaudited consolidated PAT during the
1st Guarantee Period (“1%t Profit”) achieves the 1
Guaranteed Profit, RedPlanet shall proceed to
release and pay RM637,500 from the Retained Cash
Consideration (“1%t Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration”) to the Vendors.

(ii) For avoidance of doubt, in the event AZTI’s 1st
Profit exceeds the 1st Guaranteed Profit, such
excess of unaudited consolidated PAT shall be
carried forward to 2nd Guarantee Period and form
part of the audited consolidated PAT of AZTI for
the 2nd Guarantee Period.

(iii) In the event where the 1st Profit achieves or
exceeds the Total Guaranteed Profit, the Retained
Cash Consideration shall be released and paid in
full by RedPlanet to the Vendors.

(iv) In the event the 1st Profit is lower than the 1st
Guaranteed Profit, the amount to be released and
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors shall be
calculated as follow:-

Amount to be 15t Profit
released to = x RM637,500
the Vendors 15t Guaranteed
for the 1% Profit
Guarantee
Period

(v) In the event where AZTI records an unaudited
consolidated loss after tax, RedPlanet is not
required to release or pay any sum to the Vendors
for the 1st Guarantee Period.

(vi) The parties agree that the deficiency in the 1st
Profit of AZTI (i.e. where the 1st Profit is less than
the 1st Guaranteed Profit) or where AZTI records
an unaudited consolidated loss after tax, such
difference between the 1st Profit and 1st
Guaranteed Profit shall be carried forward to 2nd
Guarantee Period and/or 3rd Guarantee Period for
the purpose of calculating the aggregate
audited/unaudited consolidated PAT of AZTI for
2nd Guarantee Period and 3rd Guarantee Period.

(vii) In the event where the parties dispute over the
calculation of the unaudited consolidated PAT or
the unaudited consolidated financial statement of
AZTI, the parties shall jointly appoint an external
auditor (“External Auditor”) to approve and
certify the unaudited consolidated financial
statement.

(viii) For avoidance of doubt, any amount from the 1st
Tranche Retained Cash Consideration which is not
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors (“Balance of 1st
Tranche”) shall be carried forward to the 2nd
Guarantee Period and be payable if the Aggregate
Profit Up To 2nd GP achieves the sum of 1st
Guaranteed Profit and 2nd Guaranteed Profit. If
there is deficiency in the Aggregate Profit Up To
2nd GP, or where AZTI| records an aggregate
audited consolidated loss after tax during the 2nd
Guarantee Period, the Balance of 1st Tranche shall
be further carried to the 3rd Guarantee Period and
be payable if the Total Aggregate Profit achieves
the Total Guarantee Profits.

(ix) For further clarity, any amount from the 1st
Tranche Retained Cash Consideration which has
been paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in respect
of 1st Guarantee Period shall not be refunded in
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| salient terms | Strategic Comments

the event AZTI experiences deficiency or records
audited/unaudited consolidated loss after tax for
the 2nd Guarantee Period and/or 3rd Guarantee
Period.

b. In respect of the 2" Guarantee Period;

(i) If AZTI’s aggregate consolidated PAT for the 15t
Guarantee Period and 2" Guarantee Period
(“Aggregate Profit Up to 2"d GP”) achieves the sum
of 15t Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit,
RedPlanet shall proceed to release and pay an
additional RM1,275,000 from the Retained Cash
Consideration (“2"@ Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration”) to the Vendors. The Balance of 15t
Tranche (if any) shall also be paid by RedPlanet to
the Vendors.

(ii) For avoidance of doubt, in the event AZTI’s
Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP exceeds the sum of
the 15t Guaranteed Profit and 2™ Guaranteed
Profit, such excess of audited consolidated PAT
shall be carried forward to the 3™ Guarantee Period
and form part of the unaudited consolidated PAT of
AZTI for the 3™ Guarantee Period.

(iii) In the event where the Aggregate Profit Up To 2™
GP achieves or exceeds the Total Guaranteed
Profit, the Retained Cash Consideration (or its
balance) shall be released and paid in full by
RedPlanet to the Vendors.

(iv) In the event the Aggregate Profit Up To 2™ GP is
lower than the sum of 15t Guaranteed Profit and 2"
Guaranteed Profit, the amount to be released and
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors shall be
calculated as follows:-

Amount to A
be = __ X RM1,912,500*- C
released B
to the
Vendors
for the 2™
Guarantee
Period
Whereas:
“A” means the Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP;
“B” means RM3,750,000, which is the sum of the 15t
Guaranteed Profit and the 2" Guaranteed Profit;
* the sum of 1* Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration and 2" Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration; and
“C” means the amount paid by RedPlanet to the
Vendors for fulfilling or part-fulfilling of profit
guarantee for the 1%t Guarantee Period.

(v) In the event where AZTI records an aggregate
audited consolidated loss after tax for 15t
Guarantee Period and 2" Guarantee Period,
RedPlanet is not required to release or pay any sum
from the 2" Tranche Retained Cash Consideration
to the Vendors for the 2" Guarantee Period.

(vi) The parties agree that the deficiency in AZTI’s
Aggregate Profit Up To 2™ GP (i.e. where the
Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP is less than the sum
of 15t Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit)
or where AZTIl records an aggregate audited
consolidated loss after tax, such deficiency or loss
shall be carried forward to the 3™ Guarantee Period
for the purpose of calculating the aggregate
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| salient terms | Strategic Comments

unaudited consolidated PAT of AZTI for 3™
Guarantee Period.

(vii) In the event where the parties dispute over the
calculation of the aggregate audited consolidated
PAT or audited consolidated financial statement of
AZTI, the parties shall jointly appoint an External
Auditor to approve and certify the audited
consolidated financial statement.

(viii) For avoidance of doubt, any amount from the 2
Tranche Retained Cash Consideration which is not
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors (“Balance of 2"
Tranche”) shall be carried forward to the 3
Guarantee Period and be payable if the Total
Aggregate Profit achieves the Total Guaranteed
Profit.

(ix) For further clarity, any amount from the 2"
Tranche Retained Cash Consideration which has
been paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in respect
of 2" Guarantee Period shall not be refunded in the
event AZT| experiences deficiency or records
aggregate unaudited consolidated loss after tax for
the 3 Guarantee Period.

c. Inrespect of the 3 Guarantee Period;

(i) If AZTI’s aggregate consolidated PAT for All
Guarantee Periods (“Total Aggregate Profit”)
achieves the Total Guaranteed Profit, RedPlanet
shall proceed to release and pay an additional
RM637,500 from the Retained Cash Consideration
(“3 Tranche Retained Cash Consideration”) to
the Vendors. The Balance of 1%t Tranche and the
Balance of 2" Tranche ,if any, shall also be paid by
RedPlanet to the Vendors.

(ii) In the event the Total Aggregate Profit is lower
than the sum of Total Guaranteed Profit for All
Guarantee Periods, the amount to be released and
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors shall be
calculated as follows:-

Amount to A
be = _________ x RM2,550,000* - C
released B
to the
Vendors
for the 3™
Guarantee
Period
Whereas:
“A” means the Total Aggregate Profit;
“B” means RM5,000,000, which is the Total
Guaranteed Profit;
* the Retained Cash Consideration; and
“C” means the amount paid by RedPlanet to the
Vendors for fulfilling or part-fulfilling of profit
guarantee for the 15t Guarantee Period and 2
Guarantee Period.

(iii) In the event where AZTI records an aggregate
unaudited consolidated loss after tax at the end of
All Guarantee Periods, RedPlanet is not required to
release or pay any sum from the 3 Tranche
Retained Cash Consideration, Balance of 1t
Tranche and/or Balance of 2™ Tranche to the
Vendors for the 37 Guarantee Period.

(iv) In the event where the parties dispute over the
calculation of the aggregate unaudited
consolidated PAT or unaudited consolidated
financial statement of AZTI, the parties shall
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jointly appoint an External Auditor to approve and
certify the unaudited consolidated financial
statement.

i.

iii.

6. Completion

Completion shall take place within 30 days from the date the

SPA becomes unconditional (i.e. upon all the conditions

precedent are fulfilled or waived) or such other date as the

parties may mutually agree otherwise (“Completion Date”).

On the Completion Date, the Vendors shall deliver to

RedPlanet, amongst others:

a. the duly executed and registrable transfer forms of the
Sale Shares in favour of RedPlanet together with all the
respective original share certificates relating thereto; and

b. a copy of the resolution of the board of AZTI (duly
certified) approving (i) the transfer of the Sale Shares from
the Vendors to RedPlanet; (ii) the appointment of the
nominees of RedPlanet as the new directors of AZTI.

On the Completion Date, RedPlanet shall pay the balance of
Cash Consideration (i.e. RM2,040,000) and deliver to the
Vendors, amongst others:

a. deliver to the Vendors copies of the statement/evidence
evidencing the payment of the balance of Cash
Consideration (i.e. RM2,040,000) to the Vendors; and

b. deliver to the Vendors a copy, certified as true by the
company secretary of RedPlanet, of the resolution or
minutes of meeting of the board of directors of RedPlanet
approving the issue and allotment of the Consideration
Shares by RedPlanet to the Vendors.

We are of the opinion that these
terms are fair and reasonable
whereby the Company and the
Vendors must fulfil their
respective obligations in
ensuring the timely completion
of the Proposed Acquisition. We
also note that these terms are
commonly seen in contracts of
this nature.

i

iii.

7. Default

In the event RedPlanet fails to complete the purchase of the
Sale Shares, or if prior to Completion, it shall be found that
any of RedPlanet’s warranties was, when given, or will be or
would be, at Completion (as if they had been given again at
Completion) not complied with or otherwise untrue or
misleading in a material respect, the Vendors shall be entitled
to the right to seek specific performance against RedPlanet, or
by notice in writing to RedPlanet to terminate the SPA.

In the event the Vendors fail to complete the sale of the Sale
Shares, or if prior to Completion, it shall be found that any of
the Vendors’ warranties was, when given, or will be or would
be, at Completion (as if they had been given again at
Completion) not complied with or otherwise untrue or
misleading in a material respect, RedPlanet shall be entitled
to the right to seek specific performance against the Vendors,
or by notice in writing to the Vendors to terminate the SPA.

Unless otherwise expressly provided in the SPA, RedPlanet
acknowledges and agrees that after Completion, the only
remedy it has against the Vendors for any breach of the
warranties or any breach of its covenants or obligations shall
be only the right to claim damages against the Vendors for
actual loss suffered.

This term is reasonable as it sets
out the events of default, where
the Company has to fulfill its
obligations pursuant to the SPA,
together with the repercussion
terms.

This term is reasonable as it sets
out the events of default, where
the Vendor has to fulfill its
obligations pursuant to the SPA,
together with the repercussion
terms.

This term is reasonable as it sets
out the remedy available to the
Company against any breach of
the warranties by the Vendors.

Premised on the above, we are of the view that the abovementioned salient terms of the
SPA are fair and reasonable and not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the
Company.
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5.2.4 Salient terms of the SHA

The salient terms of the SHA are as disclosed in Appendix Il of the Circular. Non-interested
shareholders of the Company are advised to read Appendix Il of the Circular in the entirety.

Our comments on the salient terms of the SHA are as follows:

| salient terms

Capital Call

In the event of any capital call by AZTI involving new issuance of
shares or other form of securities by AZTI, all shareholders shall
first be offered a right to subscribe for such new securities in
proportion proportionate to their respective shareholding
proportions and upon the same proportionate terms.

| Strategic Comments

This term is fair and a common
commercial term for
transactions of this nature and
will ensure that the respective
shareholdings are at all times be
maintained in the same
proportion.

Shareholders’ Advance

In the event where only RedPlanet provides a shareholder’s loan
to the Company or its subsidiaries, the shareholder’s loan shall be
imposed with an interest at a rate to be mutually agreed upon by
the Board, subject to the compliance with prevailing laws and,
where applicable, the listing requirements of Bursa Securities.

This term is fair as it serves to
safeguard RedPlanet’s interest
in the event of provision of any
shareholder’s loan by RedPlanet
to AZTI Group.

Directors

The board of directors of AZTI shall consist of a maximum of three
directors where RedPlanet shall be entitled to nominate two
directors while LWS shall be entitled to nominate one director:-

This clause is reasonable and will
ensure RedPlanet has control
over AZTI’s board.

Quorum and voting for Board Meetings

A quorum for board meetings for the transaction of any business of
AZTI shall consist of any two directors.

Other than the board’s reserved matters which shall be passed by
unanimous votes from all the directors, all other matters for
decision by the board shall be decided by simple majority vote of
the directors present and voting at the board meeting. Each
director shall have one vote.

This clause is reasonable, and
coupled with RedPlanet’s
entitlement to nominate two
directors, will ensure RedPlanet
has control over AZTI’s board.

Quorum and voting for Shareholders’ Meetings

The quorum for any general meeting shall be two shareholders (one
of whom shall be the corporate representative of RedPlanet),
attending by proxy, attorney or corporate representative.

Other than the shareholders’ reserved matters which shall be
passed by unanimous votes from all the shareholders, all matters
arising at any general meeting shall, unless otherwise required by
law, be decided by resolution passed by a simple majority of the
votes cast by the shareholders present in person, by corporate
representative, by attorney or by proxy, at the general meeting
sufficient to form quorum and entitled to vote.

This clause is reasonable and will
ensure RedPlanet’s interests as a
shareholder is protected.

Management

LWS shall (subject to his willingness) be appointed as the chief
executive officer (“CEO”) to manage and administer the day-to-
day operations of AZTI and its subsidiaries, provided that LWS shall
hold not less than 25% of equity interest (the aggregate of direct
and indirect interest) in AZTI at any point of time. In the event
where LWS decides to relinquish his position as the CEO of AZTI
and/or its subsidiaries, the board of AZTI shall appoint a new CEO
to fill up the vacancy.

This clause is reasonable and will
allow RedPlanet to leverage on
LWS’ experience in managing
AZTI Group’s day-to-day
operations and ensure LWS’
interests is aligned with
RedPlanet.
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7.

Board’s Reserved Matters and Shareholders’ Reserved Matters

Unless a resolution has been passed with the unanimous vote from

all the directors (in respect of board’s resolution) or shareholders

(in respect of shareholders’ resolution), as the case may be, the

shareholders shall procure for AZTI to refrain from passing any

board’s or shareholders’ resolution in respect of the reserved
matters, including (but not limited to):

i. any increase in the share capital of AZTI, or the issuance and
allotment of new shares, or the issue of any new class of shares
in the capital of AZTI or the issuing of any convertible
securities by AZTI.

ii. the formation of and change to the term of reference and/or
authorities of the CEO of AZTI and its subsidiaries; and

iii. The dissolution, liquidation, winding-up or the reduction or
restructuring of share capital of AZTI.

These clauses are reasonable
and will ensure that important
issues to be considered that will
affect the business operation of
AZTI be determined unanimously
by the parties and act as a
guidance for directors and
shareholders of AZTI prior to any
matters and decisions being
made and approved by the
relevant parties.

Right of First Refusal

In view that LWS is the founder of AZTI, RedPlanet agrees to grant
LWS (or his nominee) a right of first refusal (“ROFR”) to acquire
the AZTI Shares held by RedPlanet, prior to offering the AZTI
Shares it holds to any third party.

If RedPlanet desires to transfer all or any part of the AZTI Shares
to any third party, RedPlanet shall make an ROFR offer by giving
to LWS a notice (“ROFR Notice”) in writing of such desire, where
the ROFR Notice shall specify: (a) the name and details of the third
party purchaser (“Third Party Purchaser”); (b) the number of AZTI
Shares proposed to be sold and transferred (the “ROFR Shares”);
(c) the price for the sale of each AZTI Share (“ROFR Price”); and
(d) where applicable, the other material terms and conditions of
such offer (“ROFR Terms”).

If LWS wishes to accept the ROFR offer, LWS shall notify RedPlanet
of his acceptance (“ROFR Acceptance Notice”) within thirty (30)
days of the date of the ROFR Notice. RedPlanet and LWS shall
complete the transfer of ROFR Shares to LWS, and payment for the
same, within thirty (30) days of receipt of ROFR Acceptance Notice
by RedPlanet.

In the event that:

i. LWSrejects the ROFR offer or fail to send RedPlanet the ROFR
Acceptance Notice within thirty (30) days of the date of the
ROFR Notice; or

ii. where LWS fails to complete the transfer of the ROFR Shares
within thirty (30) days from the receipt of the ROFR
Acceptance Notice and such failure is not caused by any delay
on the part of RedPlanet;

then, RedPlanet may dispose of the ROFR Shares to the Third Party

Purchaser on the following terms:

i. the Third Party Purchaser must be a bona fide third party
purchaser;

ii. the sale to the Third Party Purchaser must be at a price which
is the same or more than the ROFR Price and on terms no more
favourable than the ROFR Terms;

iii. the Third Party Purchaser has first agreed to sign a deed of
ratification and accession (in the form agreed by all the Parties)
agreeing to be bound by all the terms of this SHA, assuming all
the rights and obligations of RedPlanet; and

iv. the sale to the Third Party Purchaser must complete within a
period of three (3) months from the date of the ROFR Notice,

failing which the sale to the Third Party Purchaser is prohibited.

These terms are reasonable as it
sets out the conditions that
RedPlanet needs to comply with
prior to the disposal of its
shareholdings.
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9. Termination
The parties agree that this SHA will automatically be terminated: | These terms are reasonable as
i. by mutual agreement in writing of the parties; they give the parties the rights
ii. in relation to any shareholder when it ceases to hold, directly | to terminate the SHA as well as
or indirectly, any shares in AZTI; to safeguard the interests of the
iii. when AZTI cease to carry on any business; shareholders of AZTI.
iv. when AZTI only have one shareholder; or
v. in the event that the SPA fails to complete on or before 17
January 2024 or such other date as may be agreed in writing
among the parties to the SPA.
Premised on the above, we are of the view that the abovementioned salient terms of the
SHA are fair and reasonable and not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the
Company.
5.3 Industry overview, outlook and prospects

We take note of the industry overview, outlook and prospects as disclosed in Section 4, Part A
of the Circular.

Overview and prospects of the Malaysian Economy

The Malaysian economy expanded moderately in the second quarter of 2023 (2.9%; 1Q 2023:
5.6%), weighed mainly by slower external demand. Domestic demand remained the key driver
of growth, supported by private consumption and investment. Household spending was
supported by further growth in employment and wages. Meanwhile, investment activity was
underpinned by capacity expansion, progress of multi-year projects and higher fixed asset
spending by the government. Continued recovery in inbound tourism partially offset the slower
goods export growth. Growth during the quarter was also affected by the high base effect in
the second quarter of 2022 when the economy experienced strong growth from reopening
effects and policy measures. On the supply side, the services and construction sectors
continued to support growth. Meanwhile, production in the agriculture and mining sectors were
affected by hot weather and plant maintenance. On a quarter-on-quarter seasonally-adjusted
basis, the economy grew by 1.5% (1Q 2023: 0.9%).

Headline inflation during the quarter continued to moderate to 2.8% (1Q 2023: 3.6%). The
moderation was recorded in both non-core inflation and core inflation. For non-core inflation,
fresh food and fuel contributed to the decline. Core inflation, while declining, remained
elevated relative to its long-term average (2011-2019 average: 2.0%). The moderation in core
inflation (2Q 2023: 3.4%; 1Q 2023: 3.9%) was largely contributed by selected services. These
included food away from home, telephone and telefax services, and personal transport repair
and maintenance. Inflation pervasiveness declined as the share of Consumer Price Index items
recording monthly price increases moderated to 42.7% during the quarter (1Q 2023: 56.0%),
below the second quarter long-term average (2011-2019) of 43.9%. Notably, inflation
pervasiveness dropped in June after a transitory uptick in May following the festive season

(Source: Economic and Financial Developments in Malaysia in the Second Quarter of 2023,
Bank Negara Malaysia)

Despite the softened global growth, Malaysia’s economy recorded a strong growth of 8.7% in
2022, exceeding the initial projection of 6.5%-7%, whereby real output value reached above
the pre-pandemic level. Malaysia’s economic growth is projected to moderate amid the signs
of weakness in the global growth momentum. The growth will be mainly supported by steady
domestic demand primarily private expenditure as well as initiatives under the Budget 2023
and development expenditure under the Twelfth Malaysia Plan, 2021-2025. On the supply side,
all economic sectors are expected to remain in the positive growth trajectory in 2023, driven
by services and manufacturing sectors. However, downside risks such as prolonged geopolitical
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conflict, climate-related disasters and persistently high inflation are expected to further
hampering the global economy growth, hence, affecting Malaysia’s performance. Overall, the
nation’s gross domestic products is forecast to grow approximately 4.5% in 2023.

(Source: Updates on Economic & Fiscal Outlook and Revenue Estimates 2023, Ministry of
Finance, Malaysia)

Overview and outlook of ICT industry

The services sector grew by 10.9% in 2022, mainly supported by the wholesale and retail trade;
transportation and storage; as well as real estate and business services subsectors. The
performance was attributed to the upswing in tourism-related activities following the
reopening of international borders, increased consumer spending, higher adoption of
digitalisation across all sectors as well as improved demand for professional services.

The information and communication subsector expanded by 5.2% in 2022, backed by
telecommunication segment following soaring usage of e-commerce services and subscription
to media streaming including entertainment and sport packages. The expansion of the segment
was also attributed by the broadband’s wider coverage and better internet speed through the
National Digital Network (JENDELA) initiative.

The services sector is projected to expand by 5.3% in 2023 driven by domestic demand amid
moderate global activities. The growth will continue to be buoyed by wholesale and retail
trade; transportation and storage; information and communication; food & beverages and
accommodation; and finance and insurance subsectors.

The wholesale and retail trade subsector is expected to grow and will remain as the key
subsector, following greater usage of e-commerce and rapid transition to digitalization. The
expansion of online transaction is in line with the aim towards creating a cashless society
ecosystem. The motor vehicles segment is also projected to support the subsector’s growth
with the introduction of new electric vehicle (EV) models.

The information and communication subsector is anticipated to further expand, mainly led by
the wider digital adoption by businesses and individuals particularly the utilisation of Fixed
Wireless Access and other fit-for-purpose technologies. In addition, efforts to attract high-
quality investment in digital-related infrastructures such as data centres and cloud computing
services along with continued surge of online streaming activities will further boost the
subsector.

(Source: Updates on Economic & Fiscal Outlook and Revenue Estimates 2023, Ministry of
Finance)

Prospects of RedPlanet

As set out in Section 4.3, Part A of the Circular, the management of RedPlanet is of the view
that the growth prospects of the Company are positive.

The enlarged RedPlanet Group is expected to increase its ICT solutions offerings to the enlarged
customer base, which in turn, barring unforeseen circumstances, is expected to contribute
positively to the earnings of the enlarged RedPlanet Group. Moving forward, the enlarged
RedPlanet Group with its combined resources will have enhanced access to larger scale
business opportunities and have better opportunities to access to a wider range of customers
as well as a platform to compete more competitively with other industry players (by offering
the GIS technology to wider customers by leveraging on AZTI Group’s presences in Canada, the
United States, Australia and Taiwan).

Premised on the above, we are of the view that the prospects of RedPlanet following the
Proposed Acquisition will be favourable and barring unforeseen circumstances, is poised
to improve its financial performance in the future. As such, we are of the opinion that the
Proposed Acquisition is in the best interest of the Company.
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5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

Further, upon the completion of the Proposed Acquisition, the benefits from the merger
of RedPlanet and AZTI Group appears realisable as both RedPlanet and AZTI Group are in
the similar business, i.e the provision of ICT business but in different industries and will
result in enhanced scale and synergies through amongst other, the increased services
offering from capitalising the growing landscape of GIS technology that has a wide range of
applications in various field, i.e. transportation of which AZTI Group is currently focusing
on. In addition, the Proposed Acquisition will also improve operational efficiencies,
resulting from economies of scale and integration, and the ability to increase range of
value-added services for its existing and future customers. The customer base of the
enlarged RedPlanet Group will also be expanded following the completion of the Proposed
Acquisition. Nonetheless, we wish to highlight that the above is subject to uncertainties
which are not within the Board’s control such as change in Government policies, pandemic
risk, changes in consumers preferences and changes in financing conditions. The
occurrence of any of such events may materially impact the businesses and may adversely
affect the Group’s revenue and profitability to be derived from the Proposed Acquisition.

Risk factors relating to the Proposed Acquisition

As the Group is already involved in the ICT industry, the Group is already exposed to the risks
associated with the said industry of which AZTI Group is also operating in. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, you are advised to consider carefully the risk factors pertaining to the Proposed
Acquisition as set out in Section 5, Part A of the Circular as well as the following:-

Completion risk

We are of the view that the completion risk of the Proposed Acquisition is a common aspect of
similar proposals. We noted that in the event any of the conditions precedent of the SPA are
not able to be fulfilled, some of which are beyond the control of the Company, the Company
will not be able to complete the Proposed Acquisition, thus resulting non-materialisation of
the potential benefits expected from the Proposed Acquisition.

Achievability of the Profit Guarantee

We wish to highlight that the Profit Guarantee, despite being deemed reasonable by the Board,
is subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies which are often outside AZTI’s control,
including but not limited to, potential delays and/or cancellation of projects as well as
crystallisation of its existing tender book and projects currently being pursued which will result
in the Profit Guarantee not being met.

Additional financial risk

After the Proposed Acquisition, the enlarged RedPlanet Group’s debt level will increase
following the consolidation of the exiting borrowings of AZTI Group, i.e. an increase from zero
borrowing to approximately RM6.41 million. Such increase in bank borrowing will increase
financial risks of the enlarged RedPlanet Group as it will be required to service and incur higher
interest expenses, whilst ensuring that it also generates sufficient cash flow to repay the bank
borrowings in due course. Any future adverse fluctuation in interest rates may also adversely
impact the enlarged RedPlant Group.

We also wish highlight that despite efforts and measures taken by the Company to mitigate the
risks associated with the Proposed Acquisition, no assurance can be given that one or a
combination of risk factors as stated above and in Section 5, Part A of the Circular will not
occur and give rise to material and adverse impact on the business and operations of the
Company, its financial performance, financial position or prospects thereon.

In evaluating the Proposed Acquisition, non-interested shareholders of the Company should

carefully consider the said risk factors and their respective mitigating factors before voting on
the resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition at the forthcoming EGM of the Company.
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5.5

Non-interested shareholders of the Company should also note that the risk factors mentioned

therein are not meant to be exhaustive.

Financial effects of the Proposed Acquisition

The financial effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the Company as disclosed in Section 6,

Part A of the Circular are as follows:-

(@

(i)

(iii)

Issued share capital and substantial shareholders’ shareholdings

The Proposed Acquisition will result in an increase in the Company’s share capital from
159,396,700 RedPlanet Shares to 170,325,271 RedPlanet Shares following the issuance
of the Consideration Shares upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition.

The shareholdings of the existing substantial shareholders, save for LWS, will
collectively decrease from 56.79% to 53.15% whilst LWS’ direct and indirect
shareholdings will increase from 25.00% to 29.81% upon completion of the Proposed
Acquisition. Nonetheless, the non-interested shareholders of RedPlanet should note
that the issuance of the Consideration Shares pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition is
expected to result in dilution to the shareholdings of the non-interested shareholders.

NA and gearing

The proforma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the NA, NA per Share and gearing
of the Group, based on the latest audited consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2023 is set out below:

Audited as at  After completion of the

30 June 2023 Proposed Acquisition

RM’000 RM’000

Total equity 18,851 20,846 2]
Total borrowings (RM’000) Nil 6,406
Gearing (times)* Nil 0.31
NA per Share (RM)* 0.12 0.12

Notes:
~ Calculated based on NA over number of Shares.
* Calculated based on total borrowings over NA.

(a) After deducting the estimated expenses of approximately RM0.30 million in relation to
the Proposed Acquisition.

The gearing of the Group will increase from nil to 0.31 times after the Proposed
Acquisition after consolidating the borrowings of AZTI Group. As a result, the Group
would be at a higher financial risk due to higher interest expense exposure and
potentially higher interest rate for future bank borrowings.

Earnings and EPS

Barring any unforeseen circumstances, the Proposed Acquisition is expected to be
completed by the end December 2023. The Proposed Acquisition is expected to
contribute positively to the earnings of the Group after taking into consideration,
amongst others, the Profit Guarantee and the outlook of the ICT industry. However,
the Group’s EPS may be diluted due to the issuance of Consideration Shares.

Based on the above, we are of the opinion that the effects of the Proposed Acquisition are
fair and reasonable and not to the detriment of the non-interested shareholders of the
Company.
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CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

We have assessed and evaluated the Proposed Acquisition and have set out our evaluation in
Section 2 through Section 5 of this IAL. We summarised the potential advantages and
disadvantages of the Proposed Acquisition as follows:

Potential Advantages Potential Disadvantages

The enlarged RedPlanet Group is expected to
enjoy synergistic benefits in terms of
operation, cost as well as platform to source
for sizeable contracts, resulting from the

The Company would be at a higher financial
risk due to higher interest expense exposure
and potentially higher interest rate for
future bank borrowings subsequent to the

implementation of efficient operational | consolidation of existing borrowings of AZTI
strategies, which amongst others include | Group.

delivery capacity, ICT solutions offerings, and
procurement which will bode well for the
enlarged RedPlanet Group.

Upon completion of the Proposed
Acquisition, the shareholdings of the
existing non-interested shareholders will be
diluted.

We have taken cognisance of the rationale and justification, financial evaluation, effects and
risk factors of the Proposed Acquisition. Based on our evaluation and comments on the
Proposed Acquisition, we are of the opinion that the Proposed Acquisition is fair and
reasonable and is not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, we recommend that the non-interested shareholders to vote in favour of the

resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM of
the Company.

Before arriving at the decision to vote on the resolution pertaining to the Proposed Acquisition,
it is pertinent that the non-interested shareholders of the Company to consider the issues and
implications raised in this IAL as well as other considerations as set out in Part A of the Circular
carefully and the Directors’ statement and recommendation (save for the Interested Parties)
in respect to the Proposed Acquisition as set out in Section 11, Part A of the Circular.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
STRATEGIC CAPITAL ADVISORY SDN. BHD.

NG WOON LIT TAN DAI LIANG, CFA
Director Director

Investment Representative Investment Representative
eCMSRL/B5412/2015 eCMSRL/B6239/2015
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APPENDIX | = SALIENT TERMS OF THE SPA

SPA

The salient terms of the SPA are as follows: -

1.1.

1.2

1.3

Sale and Purchase of Sale Shares

111

1.1.2

Subject to the terms and conditions of the SPA, the Vendors as legal and beneficial
owners agree to sell and RedPlanet agrees to purchase the Sale Shares
representing 51% of the total share capital of AZTI in the proportion as set out in
Column 2 of the table within Section 2.1 of this Circular, free from all claims, liens,
pledges, charges, encumbrances and any equities whatsoever together with all
rights attached and all dividends, rights and distributions declared, paid or made in
respect of the same on the terms and conditions of the SPA.

The number of Sale Shares to be acquired by RedPlanet from the respective
Vendors are set out in the table within Paragraph 2.1 of this Circular.

Conditions Precedent

121

1.2.2

The sale and purchase of the Sale Shares is conditional upon the satisfaction of
certain conditions precedent within 4 months from the date of the SPA or such other
date(s) the parties may mutually agree (“Conditional Period”). The conditions
precedent includes the following:

(a) The approval of Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the
Consideration Shares to be issued pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition on
the LEAP Market;

(b) The results of the due diligence review (including but not limited to legal due
diligence review) into AZTI and its affairs being satisfactory to RedPlanet;

(©) The approval of the board of RedPlanet and approval of the shareholders
of RedPlanet at a general meeting to be convened in respect of the
Proposed Acquisition and the issuance of the Consideration Shares; and

(d) Such other consents or approvals as may be necessary from any
governmental or regulatory body or competent authority, or third-party
having jurisdiction over the sale of the Sale Shares, having been granted,
waived or obtained.

Unless specifically waived by the parties, if any of the conditions precedent above
are not fulfilled before the Conditional Period, the SPA shall cease and determine
and other than costs and expenses in relation to the Proposed Acquisition, neither
party shall have any claims against the other for costs, damages, compensations or
otherwise, save for any antecedent breach of any representation, undertaking
and/or any of the terms of the SPA. The Deposit (defined herein) shall be
immediately refunded to RedPlanet by the Vendors.

Purchase Consideration

131

The Purchase Consideration shall be satisfied by RedPlanet via:

(@) payment of Cash Consideration; and

48
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1.4

15

(b) allotment and issuance of the Consideration Shares of the value equivalent
to the share consideration;

to the Vendors, in the amount and proportion in accordance with the respective
payment milestones set out in the table within Section 2.3 of this Circular.

Retained Cash Consideration

1.4.1 Notwithstanding Completion, the parties agree that a total sum of RM2,550,000 (i.e.

the Retained Cash Consideration) from the Cash Consideration shall be retained by
RedPlanet as a security for AZTI to achieve the Profit Guarantee set out in Section
1.5 of this Appendix |. The Retained Cash Consideration may be released and paid
to the Vendors in 3 tranches upon AZTI’s fulfiiment of the Profit Guarantee.

Profit Guarantee

1.5.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in the SPA to the contrary and notwithstanding

152

153

Completion, the Vendors jointly and severally guarantee to RedPlanet that AZTI
shall achieve:

€) unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1,250,000 (being the 1St Guaranteed
Profit) for the 1st Guarantee Period,;

(b) audited consolidated PAT of RM2,500,000 (being the 2" Guaranteed Profit)
for the 2" Guarantee Period; and

(© unaudited consolidated PAT of RM1,250,000 (being the 3 Guaranteed
Profit) for 3 Guarantee Period,

or a minimum aggregate consolidated PAT of not less than RM5,000,000 (being the
Total Guaranteed Profit) for the total 24-month period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2025, (being the All Guarantee Periods), on a combined basis based on
the consolidated financial results of AZTI.

For avoidance of doubt, in view that RedPlanet shall hold 51% equity interest in
AZTI upon Completion, the Total Guaranteed Profit attributable to the 51% equity
interest held by RedPlanet amounts to RM2,550,000 only (i.e. RM5,000,000 x 51%).

The parties agree that the Retained Cash Consideration shall be paid by RedPlanet
to the Vendors in three (3) tranches upon AZTI achieving the guaranteed profit for
the following periods in accordance with the profit guarantee mechanism stipulated
as follow: -

€) In respect of 1st Guarantee Period: -

0] If the AZTI's unaudited consolidated PAT during the 1st Guarantee
Period (“1%t Profit”) achieves the 1t Guaranteed Profit, RedPlanet
shall proceed to release and pay RM637,500 from the Retained
Cash Consideration (“1%t Tranche Retained Cash Consideration”)
to the Vendors.

(i) For avoidance of doubt, in the event AZTI's 1t Profit exceeds the
1st Guaranteed Profit, such excess of unaudited consolidated PAT
shall be carried forward to 2" Guarantee Period and form part of
the audited consolidated PAT of AZTI for the 2" Guarantee Period.

(iii) In the event where the 1%t Profit achieves or exceeds the Total

Guaranteed Profit, the Retained Cash Consideration shall be
released and paid in full by RedPlanet to the Vendors.
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

In the event the 15t Profit is lower than the 1t Guaranteed Profit, the
amount to be released and paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors shall
be calculated as follow:-

Amount to be 18t Profit
released to = x RM637,500
the Vendors
for the 1st 1st
Guarantee Guaranteed
Period Profit

In the event where AZTI records an unaudited consolidated loss
after tax, RedPlanet is not required to release or pay any sum to the
Vendors for the 15t Guarantee Period.

The parties agree that the deficiency in the 1t Profit of AZTI (i.e.
where the 18t Profit is less than the 1t Guaranteed Profit) or where
AZTI records an unaudited consolidated loss after tax, such
difference between the 1st Profit and 15t Guaranteed Profit shall be
carried forward to 2" Guarantee Period and/or 3™ Guarantee
Period for the purpose of -calculating the aggregate
audited/unaudited consolidated PAT of AZTI for 2" Guarantee
Period and 3 Guarantee Period.

In the event where the parties dispute over the calculation of the
unaudited consolidated PAT or the unaudited consolidated financial
statement of AZTI, the parties shall jointly appoint an external
auditor (“External Auditor”) to approve and certify the unaudited
consolidated financial statement.

For avoidance of doubt, any amount from the 15t Tranche Retained
Cash Consideration which is not paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors
(“Balance of 1%t Tranche”) shall be carried forward to the 2nd
Guarantee Period and be payable if the Aggregate Profit Up To 2nd
GP (as defined in Section 1.5.3(b)(i) of this Appendix) achieves the
sum of 1st Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit. If there is
deficiency in the Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP, or where AZTI
records an aggregate audited consolidated loss after tax during the
2nd Guarantee Period, the Balance of 1st Tranche shall be further
carried to the 3 Guarantee Period and be payable if the Total
Aggregate Profit achieves the Total Guarantee Profits.

For further clarity, any amount from the 1st Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration which has been paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in
respect of 18t Guarantee Period shall not be refunded in the event
AZT| experiences deficiency or records audited/unaudited
consolidated loss after tax for the 2" Guarantee Period and/or 3™
Guarantee Period.
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(b)

In respect of the 2" Guarantee Period: -

(i)

(vii)

If AZTI's aggregate consolidated PAT for the 1st Guarantee Period and 2
Guarantee Period (“Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP”) achieves the sum of 1st
Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit, RedPlanet shall proceed to
release and pay an additional RM1,275,000 from the Retained Cash
Consideration (“2"® Tranche Retained Cash Consideration”) to the Vendors.
The Balance of 15t Tranche (if any) shall also be paid by RedPlanet to the
Vendors.

For avoidance of doubt, in the event AZTI's Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP
exceeds the sum of the 1t Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit, such
excess of audited consolidated PAT shall be carried forward to the 3™
Guarantee Period and form part of the unaudited consolidated PAT of AZTI for
the 3" Guaranteed Period.

In the event where the Aggregate Profit Up to 2" GP achieves or exceeds the
Total Guaranteed Profit, the Retained Cash Consideration (or its balance) shall
be released and paid in full by RedPlanet to the Vendors.

In the event the Aggregate Profit Up To 2™ GP is lower than the sum of 1st
Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit, the amount to be released and
paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors shall be calculated as follows: -

Amount to be A
released to = x RM1,912,500* - C
the Vendors
for the 2nd B
Guarantee
Period

Whereas:
“A” means the Aggregate Profit Up To 2™ GP;

“B” means RM3,750,000, which is the sum of the 1t Guaranteed Profit and
the 2nd Guaranteed Profit;

* the sum of 1%t Tranche Retained Cash Consideration and 2" Tranche
Retained Cash Consideration; and

“C” means the amount paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors for fulfilling or part-
fulfilling of profit guarantee for the 1t Guarantee Period.

In the event where AZTI records an aggregate audited consolidated loss after
tax for 1st Guarantee Period and 2" Guarantee Period, RedPlanet is not
required to release or pay any sum from the 2" Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration to the Vendors for the 2" Guarantee Period.

The parties agree that the deficiency in AZTI's Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP
(i.e. where the Aggregate Profit Up To 2" GP is less than the sum of 1st
Guaranteed Profit and 2" Guaranteed Profit) or where AZTI records an
aggregate audited consolidated loss after tax, such deficiency or loss shall be
carried forward to 3@ Guarantee Period for the purpose of calculating the
aggregate unaudited consolidated PAT of AZTI for 3 Guarantee Period.

In the event where the parties dispute over the calculation of the aggregate
audited consolidated PAT or the audited consolidated financial statement of
AZTI, the parties shall jointly appoint an External Auditor to approve and certify
the audited consolidated financial statement.
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APPENDIX | — SALIENT TERMS OF THE SPA (contd)

(viii)

(ix)

For avoidance of doubt, any amount from the 2" Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration which is not paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors (“Balance of 2
Tranche”) shall be carried forward to the 3" Guarantee Period and be payable
if the Total Aggregate Profit achieves the Total Guaranteed Profit.

For further clarity, any amount from the 2" Tranche Retained Cash
Consideration which has been paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors in respect of
the profit guarantee for 2" Guarantee Period shall not be refunded in the event
AZTI experiences deficiency or records aggregate unaudited consolidated loss
after tax for the 3 Guarantee Period.

(c) In respect of the 3 Guarantee Period: -

(i)

(i)

If AZTI's aggregate consolidated PAT for All Guarantee Periods (“Total
Aggregate Profit”) achieves the Total Guaranteed Profit, RedPlanet shall
proceed to release and pay an additional RM637,500 from the Retained Cash
Consideration (“3™ Tranche Retained Cash Consideration”) to the Vendors.
The Balance of 1st Tranche and the Balance of the 2" Tranche, if any, shall
also be paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors.

In the event the Total Aggregate Profit is lower than the Total Guaranteed Profit
for All Guarantee Periods, the amount to be released and paid by RedPlanet
to the Vendors shall be calculated as follows: -

Amount to be A
released to = x RM2,550,000+ - C
the Vendors
for the 3 B
Guarantee
Period

Whereas:

“A” means the Total Aggregate Profit;

“B” means RM5,000,000, which is the Total Guaranteed Profit;
* the Retained Cash Consideration; and

“C” means the amount paid by RedPlanet to the Vendors for fulfilling or part-
fulfilling of profit guarantee for the 15t Guarantee Period and 2" Guarantee
Period.

In the event where AZTI records an aggregate unaudited consolidated loss
after tax at the end of All Guarantee Periods, RedPlanet is not required to
release or pay any sum from the 3™ Tranche Retained Cash Consideration,
Balance of 1st Tranche and/or Balance of 2" Tranche to the Vendors for the 31
Guarantee Period.

In the event where the parties dispute over the calculation of the aggregate
unaudited consolidated PAT or the unaudited consolidated financial statement
of AZTI, the parties shall jointly appoint an External Auditor to approve and
certify the unaudited consolidated financial statement.

1.6 Completion

1.6.1 Completion shall take place within 30 days from the date the SPA becomes
unconditional (i.e. upon all the conditions precedent are fulfilled or waived) or such
other date as the parties may mutually agree otherwise (“Completion Date”).
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1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.6.2

1.6.3

On the Completion Date, the Vendors shall deliver to RedPlanet the documents and
items set out in Section 1.7 of this Appendix I.

On the Completion Date, RedPlanet shall pay the balance of Cash Consideration
(i.e. RM2,040,000) and deliver to the Vendors the documents set out in Section 1.8
of this Appendix I.

Vendors’ Obligations on Completion Date

171

On the Completion Date, the Vendors shall deliver, amongst others:

(@) the duly executed and registrable transfer forms of the Sale Shares in favour
of RedPlanet together with all the respective original share certificates relating
thereto; and

(b)  a copy of the resolution of the board of AZTI (duly certified) approving (i) the
transfer of the Sale Shares from the Vendors to RedPlanet; (i) the
appointment of the nominees of RedPlanet as the new directors of AZTI.

Purchaser’s Obligations on Completion Date

181

On the Completion Date, in exchange for the documents listed in Section 1.7 (of this
Appendix 1) from the Vendors, RedPlanet shall, amongst others:

(a) deliver to the Vendors copies of the statement/evidence evidencing the
payment of the balance of Cash Consideration (i.e. RM2,040,000) to the
Vendors; and

(b) deliver to the Vendors a copy, certified as true by the company secretary of
RedPlanet, of the resolution or minutes of meeting of the board of directors of
RedPlanet approving the issue and allotment of the Consideration Shares by
RedPlanet to the Vendors.

Default

191

1.9.2

1.9.3

In the event RedPlanet fails to complete the purchase of the Sale Shares, or if prior
to Completion, it shall be found that any of RedPlanet’s warranties was, when given,
or will be or would be, at Completion (as if they had been given again at Completion)
not complied with or otherwise untrue or misleading in a material respect, the
Vendors shall be entitled to the right to seek specific performance against
RedPlanet, or by notice in writing to RedPlanet to terminate the SPA.

In the event the Vendors fail to complete the sale of the Sale Shares, or if prior to
Completion, it shall be found that any of the Vendors’ warranties was, when given,
or will be or would be, at Completion (as if they had been given again at Completion)
not complied with or otherwise untrue or misleading in a material respect, RedPlanet
shall be entitled to the right to seek specific performance against the Vendors, or by
notice in writing to the Vendors to terminate the SPA.

Unless otherwise expressly provided in the SPA, RedPlanet acknowledges and
agrees that after Completion, the only remedy it has against the Vendors for any
breach of the warranties or any breach of its covenants or obligations shall be only
the right to claim damages against the Vendors for actual loss suffered.

Governing Laws

1.10.1 The SPA shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of

Malaysia.
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SHA

LWS, NCSB and PPSB and RedPlanet entered into a SHA to regulate their mutual rights,
liabilities and obligations in relation to AZTI. The salient terms of the SHA are set out below:

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

Capital Structure of AZTI

1.1.1 The issued and paid-up share capital of AZTI immediately after the completion of
the Proposed Acquisition shall be held in the following manner and proportions by
the following shareholders:

Shareholders No. of ordinary shares in AZTI | Proportion (%)
RedPlanet 1,020,000 51.000
NCSB 514,500 25.725
PPSB 245,000 12.250
LWS 220,500 11.025
TOTAL 2,000,000 100.000

Capital Call

1.2.1 The shareholding proportion of AZTI as set out in the table in Section 1.1.1 of this
Appendix Il shall continue to be maintained by the parties save as otherwise
expressly contemplated by the SHA.

1.2.2 In the event of any capital call by AZTI involving new issuance of shares or other
form of securities by AZTI, all shareholders shall first be offered a right to subscribe
for such new securities in proportion proportionate to their respective shareholding
proportions and upon the same proportionate terms.

Shareholders’ Advance

1.3.1 In the event where only RedPlanet provides a shareholder’s loan to the Company
or its subsidiaries, the shareholder’s loan shall be imposed with an interest at a rate
to be mutually agreed upon by the Board, subject to the compliance with prevailing
laws and, where applicable, the listing requirements of Bursa Securities.

Directors

1.4.1 The board of directors of AZTI shall consist of a maximum of three directors where
RedPlanet shall be entitled to nominate two directors while LWS shall be entitled to
nominate one director.

Quorum and Voting for Board Meetings

1.5.1 A quorum for board meetings for the transaction of any business of AZTI shall
consist of any two directors.

1.5.2 Other than the board’s reserved matters which shall be passed by unanimous votes
from all the directors, all other matters for decision by the board shall be decided by
simple majority vote of the directors present and voting at the board meeting. Each
director shall have one vote.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Quorum and Voting for Shareholders’ Meetings

16.1

The quorum for any general meeting shall be two shareholders (one of whom shall
be the corporate representative of RedPlanet), attending by proxy, attorney or
corporate representative.

1.6.20ther than the shareholders’ reserved matters which shall be passed by
unanimous votes from all the shareholders, all matters arising at any general
meeting shall, unless otherwise required by law, be decided by resolution passed
by a simple majority of the votes cast by the shareholders present in person, by
corporate representative, by attorney or by proxy, at the general meeting sufficient
to form quorum and entitled to vote.

Management

171

LWS shall (subject to his willingness) be appointed as the chief executive officer
(“CEO”) to manage and administer the day-to-day operations of AZTI and its
subsidiaries, provided that LWS shall hold not less than 25% of equity interest (the
aggregate of direct and indirect interest) in AZTI at any point of time. In the event
where LWS decides to relinquish his position as the CEO of AZTI and/or its
subsidiaries, the board of AZTI shall appoint a new CEO to fill up the vacancy.

Board’s Reserved Matters and Shareholders’ Reserved Matters

1.8.1

Unless a resolution has been passed with the unanimous vote from all the directors
(in respect of board’s resolution) or shareholders (in respect of shareholders’
resolution), as the case may be, the shareholders shall procure for AZTI to refrain
from passing any board’s or shareholders’ resolution in respect of the reserved
matters, including (but not limited to):

(@) any increase in the share capital of AZTI, or the issuance and allotment of
new shares, or the issue of any new class of shares in the capital of AZTI or
the issuing of any convertible securities by AZTI;

(b)  the formation of and change to the term of reference and/or authorities of the
CEO of AZTI and its subsidiaries; and

(c)  The dissolution, liquidation, winding-up or the reduction or restructuring of
share capital of AZTI.

Right of First Refusal

191

1.9.2

193

In view that LWS is the founder of AZTI, RedPlanet agrees to grant LWS (or his
nominee) a right of first refusal (“ROFR”) to acquire the AZTI Shares held by
RedPlanet, prior to offering the AZTI Shares it holds to any third party.

If RedPlanet desires to transfer all or any part of the AZTI Shares to any third party,
RedPlanet shall make an ROFR offer by giving to LWS a notice (‘ROFR Notice”) in
writing of such desire, where the ROFR Notice shall specify: (a) the name and
details of the third party purchaser (“Third Party Purchaser”); (b) the number of
AZTI Shares proposed to be sold and transferred (the “ROFR Shares”); (c) the price
for the sale of each AZTI Share (“ROFR Price”); and (d) where applicable, the other
material terms and conditions of such offer (‘ROFR Terms”).

If LWS wishes to accept the ROFR offer, LWS shall notify RedPlanet of his
acceptance (“ROFR Acceptance Notice”) within thirty (30) days of the date of the
ROFR Notice. RedPlanet and LWS shall complete the transfer of ROFR Shares to
LWS, and payment for the same, within thirty (30) days of receipt of ROFR
Acceptance Notice by RedPlanet.
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1.9.4 In the event that:

(@)

(b)

LWS rejects the ROFR offer or fail to send RedPlanet the ROFR Acceptance
Notice within thirty (30) days of the date of the ROFR Notice; or

where LWS fails to complete the transfer of the ROFR Shares within thirty
(30) days from the receipt of the ROFR Acceptance Notice and such failure
is not caused by any delay on the part of RedPlanet;

then, RedPlanet may dispose of the ROFR Shares to the Third Party Purchaser on
the following terms:

1)
)

3

(4)

the Third Party Purchaser must be a bona fide third party purchaser;

the sale to the Third Party Purchaser must be at a price which is the same or
more than the ROFR Price and on terms no more favourable than the ROFR
Terms;

the Third Party Purchaser has first agreed to sign a deed of ratification and
accession (in the form agreed by all the Parties) agreeing to be bound by all
the terms of this SHA, assuming all the rights and obligations of RedPlanet;
and

the sale to the Third Party Purchaser must complete within a period of three
(3) months from the date of the ROFR Notice,

failing which the sale to the Third Party Purchaser is prohibited.

1.10 Termination

1.10.1 The parties agree that this SHA will automatically be terminated:

@)
(b)

(©)
(d)
(e)

by mutual agreement in writing of the parties;

in relation to any shareholder when it ceases to hold, directly or indirectly, any
shares in AZTI;

when AZTI cease to carry on any business;
when AZTI only have one shareholder; or

in the event that the SPA fails to complete on or before 17 January 2024 or
such other date as may be agreed in writing among the parties to the SPA.

1.11 Governing Law

1.11.1 This SHA shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of
Malaysia.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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1.0

Background Information on AZTI

AZTI was incorporated in Malaysia on 4 June 2014 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act 1965 and is deemed registered under the Act.

AZTI is principally engaged in the business of research and development of platform safety
system through the PIES system, which utilises a series of flexible mounted sensor panels
located between running rail in front of platforms and attached a proprietary strain sensitive
cable to these sensor panels and developed electronic circuitry to eliminate environmental
effects while still able to detect human intrusion. The PIES system has been successfully
implemented in 4 countries, namely 20 stations in Canada, 14 stations in the United States, 8
stations in Australia and 88 stations in Malaysia. In addition, AZTI is undertaking a pilot railway
project in Taiwan.

AZTl is also engaged in business development and licensing of intellectual property rights as
well as investment holding.

Details of AZTI’s intellectual property rights are as follows:

(i) As atthe LPD, there are 20 trademarks registered by AZTI in countries such as Malaysia,
China, Vietnam, Australia, Indonesia, Thailand, and Hong Kong;

(i) As at the LPD, there are 7 trademarks registered by Alpha Zaicon in countries such as
Malaysia, Canada and the United States of America; and

(i) As at the LPD, AZTI has registered 6 patents in respect of the invention under the title “A
System To Detect Human Intrusion” in 6 countries, namely Malaysia, Australia, Indonesia,
Singapore, China and Philippines. Further, AZTI is in the midst of applying for registration
of another 2 patents in respect of the same invention in Vietham and Thailand.

AZT/I’s cost on research and development expenditure for FYE 30 September 2020 to FYE 30
September 2022 and 6-month FPE 31 March 2023, are as follows:

6-month

FYE 30 FYE 30 FYE 30 FPE 31

September September September March

2020 2021 2022 2023

(A1) (RM) (RM) (RM)

R&D expenditure® 231,663 123,458 29,589 184,097
R&D manpower 437,371 429,444 435,842 235,887
Total 669,034 552,902 465,431 419,984

Note:

(1) R&D expenditure including expenses incurred for jobs and tasks as follows:

PIES SMS Alert Module;

AZTI Video Analytical Trackside Intrusion Detection system;

AZTI Virtual Screen Door and Passenger Flow Management System; and
Laser scanner in horizontal and 2 zones version for barrier PIES development.
Incurred for a PIES pilot project in Taiwan.

P20 To

For information, there is an average of 4 R&D personnel employed for the last 3 financial years.
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2.0 Share Capital

As at the LPD, the issued share capital of AZTI is RM2.0 million, comprising of 2.0 million
ordinary shares.

3.0 Directors and Substantial Shareholders

As at the LPD, the director and shareholders of AZTI are as follows:

Vendors Director/ Nationality/Place No. of ordinary | Shareholdings
Shareholder | of incorporation shares held (%)

LWS Director and Malaysian 450,000 22.50
shareholder

NCSB Shareholder Malaysia 1,050,000 52.50

PPSB Shareholder Malaysia 500,000 25.00

Total 2,000,000 100.00

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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4.0 Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries of AZTI as at the LPD are as follows:

Malaysia

2017

services

Commencement Shareholdings
Subsidiary Date/Place of date of business Share Capital | No. of issued held by AZTI
company incorporation operations Principal activities (RM) shares (%)
Azti Engineering 22 May 2006/ 30 October 2014 | Turnkey engineering 2,000,000 2,000,000 100.00
Malaysia design integration,
installation, testing,
commissioning,  project
management marketing
and procurement,
engineering services for
the rail industry
Alpha Zaicon 25 July 2014/ 15 November Intellectual property 243,632 75,000 100.00
British 2014 licensing
Columbia
GBTEK 23 March 2016/ 31 December IT development support 2,450,000 2,450,000 100.00

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]

59




APPENDIX Il - INFORMATION ON AZTI GROUP (contd)

5.0

6.0

Date and Original Cost of Investment

The respective original costs and dates of investment in the ordinary shares of AZTI are as

follows:

Vendors Original date of No. of ordinary Original cost of
investment shares held investment

(RM)

LWS 9 January 2018 266,667 266,667
14 January2018 100,000 110,000

12 March 2021 83,333 428,569

NCSB 27 March 2015 800,000 800,000
14 January 2018 250,000 250,000

PPSB 12 March 2021 500,000 2,571,431
Total 2,000,000 4,426,667

Material Contracts, Contingent Liability and Material Commitment

6.1

6.2

6.3

Material Contracts

Save as disclosed below, AZTI Group has not entered into any material contracts (not
being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) within the 2 years
immediately preceding the date of this Circular.

On 4 October 2021, Azti Engineering (a wholly owned subsidiary of AZTI) has entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Sinny Properties Sdn. Bhd. ("Sinny") to acquire a
property held under individual titte HSD 296642, PT 5934, Pekan Puchong Perdana,
Daerah Petaling, Selangor measuring approximately 793 sqg. metres land area together
with a 3 storey semi-detached industrial factory building (with mezzanine floor) erected
thereon, for a consideration of RM6.65 million which was paid using bank borrowings. The
transaction was completed on 8 August 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities incurred or known to be incurred by our Group as at the
LPD, which upon becoming due or enforceable, may have a material impact on the
financial position or business of our Group.

Material Commitments

There are no material commitments incurred or known to be incurred by our Group as at

the LPD, which upon becoming due or enforceable, may have a material impact on the
financial position or business of our Group.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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7.0

8.0

Audit Qualification and Accounting Policies

The audited combined financial statements for AZTI Group from FYE 30 September 2019 to
FYE 30 September 2022 were prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards
in Malaysia - Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS") and International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

The audited financial statements of the companies within AZTI Group from FYE 30 September
2019 to FYE 30 September 2022 were not subject to any audit qualification, modification and
disclaimer.

There are no accounting policies which are peculiar to AZTI Group because of the nature of
the business or industry which AZTI Group is involved in. For further details on the accounting
policies of AZTI Group, see Note 4 of the audited financial statements of AZTI for 30 September
2022 set out in Appendix V of this Circular.

Material Litigation

As at the LPD, AZTI Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims and/or arbitration,
either as plaintiff or defendant, and the board of directors of AZTI is not aware and does not
have any knowledge of any proceedings, pending or threatened against AZTI Group, or of any

facts likely to give rise to any proceedings, which might materially or adversely affect the
financial position of the business of AZTI.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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9.0 Historical Financial Information

A summary of the financial information of AZTI for FYE 30 September 2019 to FYE 30 September 2022 and 6-month FPE 31 March 2023 are as

follows:
Audited FYE 30 September Unaudited
6-month
FPE 31 March
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(RM) (RM) (RM) (RM) (RM)
Revenue 8,019,413 8,868,170 5,936,984 8,427,289 379,470
Gross profit/(loss) 2,446,256 5,104,466 1,743,017 2,404,155 (1,987,051)
PBT/(LBT) (5,687,329) 649,391 (1,469,878) (656,471) (3,780,507)
LAT (6,234,218) (604,806) (599,210) (1,222,153) (2,816,288)
Shareholders’ equity/ NA 15,804,456 15,329,847 10,048,911 5,075,030 2,257,800
Interest bearing borrowings 593,246 1,019,093 863,185 6,405,887 6,554,802
Gross profit margin (%) 30.50 57.56 29.36 28.53 (523.64)
EPS (RM) (3.12) (0.30) (0.30) (0.61) (1.41)
NA per share (RM) 7.90 7.66 5.02 2.54 1.13
Current ratio (times) 2.61 2.82 1.83 1.32 0.82
Gearing ratio (times) 0.04 0.07 0.09 1.26 2.90

For information, AZTI had on 23 May 2023 changed their financial year end from 30 September to 30 June.

The audited financial statements for FYE 30 September 2021 and FYE 30 September 2022 of AZTI, are set out in Appendix V of this Circular.

62




APPENDIX Il - INFORMATION ON AZTI GROUP (contd)

Financial commentary:
FYE September 2020 vs FYE September 2019

The revenue for AZTI increased by 10.58% or RM0.85 million, from RM8.02 million in the FYE
30 September 2019, to RM8.87 million in the FYE 30 September 2020. The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the delay in recognition of revenue in relation to LRT3 contract
which was terminated in FYE 30 September 2019 (“Old LRT3 Project") whereby the work
performed up to the termination date only been agreed by the customer in FYE 30 September
2020. AZTI was subsequently awarded a new LRT3 contact in August 2020 (“New LRT3
Project”).

The gross profit for AZTI showed an increase of RM2.66 million or 108.66% from RM2.45
million for FYE 30 September 2019 to RM5.10 million for FYE 30 September 2020. The
increase was mainly attributable to the higher revenue recorded for the Old LRT3 Project that
has high profit margin.

For FYE 30 September 2020, AZTI recorded a PBT of RM0.65 million as compared to a LBT
of RM5.69 million for FYE 30 September 2019. This was primarily due to increase in gross
profit for FYE 30 September 2020 coupled with absence of one-off impairment losses on
intangible assets of RM2.94 million incurred in FYE 30 September 2019.

FYE 30 September 2021 vs FYE 30 September 2020

The revenue for AZTI decreased by 33.05% or RM2.93 million, from RM8.87 million in the
FYE 30 September 2020, to RM5.94 million in the FYE 30 September 2021. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to slower work progress for the New LRT3 Project in FYE 30
September 2021 due to the Covid-19 pandemic and completion of Ampang Extension Line
project in March 2021.

The gross profit for AZTI showed a decrease of 65.85% or RM3.36 million from RM5.10 million
for the FYE 30 September 2020 to RM1.74 million for the FYE 30 September 2021, mainly
attributed to lower revenue recognised. For FYE 30 September 2021, there is no high margin
project such as Old LRT3 Project.

For FYE 30 September 2021, AZTI recorded a LBT of RM1.47 million as compared to a PBT
of RMO0.65 million for FYE 30 September 2020. This was primarily due to lower gross profit.
AZTI recorded a LAT of RM0.60 million for both financial years under review despite recorded
higher LBT for FYE 30 September 2021 mainly due to recognition of net deferred tax asset of
RMO0.87 million in FYE 30 September 2021.

FYE 30 September 2022 vs FYE 30 September 2021

The revenue for AZTI increased by 41.95% or RM2.49 million, from RM5.94 million in the FYE
30 September 2021, to RM8.43 million in the FYE 30 September 2022. The increase in
revenue was mainly due to higher percentage of completion for the on-going New LRT3
Project.

The gross profit for AZTI showed an increase of 37.93% or RM0.66 million from RM1.74
million for the FYE 30 September 2021, to RM2.40 million for the FYE 30 September 2022.
This increase is mainly attributed to higher revenue recognition. The gross profit margin
remained consistent at approximately 29% for these 2 financial years under review.

For FYE 30 September 2022, AZTI recorded a lower LBT of RM0.66 million as compared to

RM1.47 million for FYE 30 September 2021, representing a decrease of 55.34% or RM0.81
million. The lower LBT was primarily due to better gross profit achieved for the FYE 30

63



APPENDIX Il - INFORMATION ON AZTI GROUP (contd)

September 2022. AZTI recorded a LAT of RM1.22 million for FYE 30 September 2022 as
compared to RMO0.60 million for FYE 30 September 2021. The lower LAT for FYE 30
September 2021 was due to the recognition of a tax income of RM0.87 million that arising
from recognition of net deferred tax asset.

6-month FPE 31 March 2023 vs FYE 30 September 2022

AZTI recorded a revenue of RM0.38 million for the 6-month FPE 31 March 2023, which if
annualised was amounted to RMO0.76 million. As compared to the revenue for FYE 30
September 2022 of RM8.43 million, the lower revenue for 6-month FPE 31 March 2023 was
mainly due to slower work progress and the revision of budgeted project cost for the New
LRT3 Project to a higher estimate.

AZTl incurred a gross loss of RM1.99 million for the 6-month FPE 31 March 2023 as compared
to a gross profit of RM2.40 million recognised in FYE 30 September 2022, mainly due to lower
revenue and the revision of budgeted project cost for the New LRT3 Project to a higher
estimate.

For the 6-month FPE 31 March 2023, AZTI recorded a LBT of RM3.78 million as compared
to RMO0.66 million for FYE 30 September 2022, representing an increase of 475.88% or

RM3.12 million. This was primarily due to the gross loss incurred in the 6-month FPE 31 March
2023.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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10.0

11.0

Major Customers

Details of AZTI's major customers from FYE 30 September 2020 up to LPD are as follows:

Customer Principal Activities Project

Customer 1 A government - owned management and engineering consultancy, | Design, Supply, Delivery, Installation, Integration,
both locally and abroad, to undertake commercial and transit- | Testing and Commissioning of Passenger Intruder
oriented projects as the country’s major transport infrastructure | Emergency Stop System for the 25 existing stations of
projects through their key business arms. Owner-operator of the | Ampang Line and 11 new stations of Ampang Line
Malaysia's rail services, including LRT networks, KL Monorail, MRT | Extension Project.
lines and the stage bus services.

Customer 2 An engineering services provider as a government contractor in the | Prasarana/LRT 3 - Design, Manufacture, Supply,

areas of mechanical & electrical (M&E) engineering, civil
engineering, building and maintenance services, training systems,
software and equipment supply.

Delivery, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of
Signalling & Train Control System, Platform Screen
Door System, Intrusion Prevention System for LRT3
Bandar Utama - Johan Setia (Project).

On-going and Completed projects

Details of AZTI’s ongoing projects from FYE 30 September 2020 up to LPD are as follows:

Date of award Owner of Nature/ Contract Commencement | Completion Project
project details of project Value Date Date Status
(RM)
4 August 2020 Customer 2 Turnkey System for Design, | 31,274,178 4 August 2020 | 31 July 2024 On going
Manufacturing, Supply, Delivery, (estimated)
Installation, Testing & Commissioning of
20 Stations of Intrusive Prevention
System (“IPS”) (referred to as “New LRT3
Project”)
Total contract value (RM) | 31,274,178
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Details of AZTI’'s completed projects from FYE 30 September 2020 up to LPD are as follows:

Date of award Owner of Nature/ Contract Commencement | Completion Project
project details of project Value Date Date Status
(RM)
9 December 2014 | Customer 1 Ampang Line Extension - Design, Supply, | 65,000,000 | 19 December 2014 30 March | Completed
Delivery, Installation, Integration, Testing 2021

and Commissioning of Passenger
Intruder Emergency Stop System for the
25 existing Stations of Ampang Line and
11 New Stations of Ampang Line
Extension Project

Total contract value (RM) | 65,000,000

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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_ZL>> AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. s
@3 ._

Date: 31 October 2023

The Board of Directors
RedPlanet Berhad

Unit 30-01, level 30,

Tower A, Vertical Business Suite,
Avenue 3, Bangsar South,

No 8, Jalan Kerinchi,

59200 Kuala Lumpur,

Wilayah Persekutuan

Dear Sirs,

On behalf of the Board of AZTI Technology Sdn Bhd ("AZTI"), | wish to report that after making due
enquiries in relation to the period from 30 September 2022, being the date to which the last audited
financial statements of AZT| to 31 March 2023, being the date to which the last management accounts
of AZT| has been made up to the date hereof, being a date not earlier than 14 days before the issuance
of this Circular:

(U}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

The business of AZTI and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "AZTI Group”) has, in the
opinion of the board if AZTI, been satisfactorily maintained;

Since the last audited financial statements of AZTI, AZTI Group's net asset has reduced
from RM5,075,030 in financial year ended 30 September 2022 to RM2,257,800 in financial
period ended 31 March 2023, which changes the value of the assets of the AZT| Group;

The current assets of AZT| Group appear in the books as at 31 March 2023 ét values which
are believed to be realizable in the ordinary course of business;

There are no contingent liabilities which have arisen by reason of any guarantee of
indemnities given by the AZTI Group;

There have been, since the last audited financial statements as at 30 September 2022 and
management accounts as at 31 March 2023 of AZTI, no default or any known event that
could give rise to a default situation, in respect of payments of either interest and/or
principal sums in relation to any borrowings of the AZT| Group which the board of AZTI is
aware of; and

There have been no material changes in the published reserves or any unusual factors
affecting the profits of AZTI since the last audited financial statements of AZT| of 30
September 2022 and last management accounts of AZT| of 31 March 2023.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board of
AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN BHD

~

L

LIAN WAH SENG

DIRECTOR

3-8, The Boulevard Mid Vailey City, 59200 Kuaia Lumpur, Wilayah Persek ), Malaysia, ph 03-2712 9322

PIES® BLUCOR® IPS™  pROVEN. INFALLIBLE. EFFECTIVE. SIMPLE.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096410 - X}

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The director hereby submit the report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Comgpany for the financial year ended 30 Seplember 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of research and development of platform safety

system, business development and licensing of intellectual property rights as wel as Invesiment hoiding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set oul in Note 5 to the financlal statements.

RESULTS
The Group The Company
RM RM
Loss after taxation for the financal year {589,210) (283,193)
Altributable o5
Cwners of the Company (588.210) (283.193)
DIVIDENDS

Diviklends paid or dectared by the Company since 30 September 2020 are s follows:-

4
share, paid on 30 September 2021 4,300,000

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no materisl ranslers to or from resenas o pravisions during the financial year other than those
deciosed in the financal statemaents,

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the finarcial year:.

() there wera no changes in the issued and pasd-up share capltal of the Company; and

() there vwara no lssues of dabentures by the Company.

Page 1

70



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no opticns were grantad by the Company to any person to take up any unissued
shares in the Company.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial stalements of the Group and of the Company were made oul, the director took
ressonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation 1o the wiiting off of bad detits and the
making of allowance for impairment losses on receivables and salisfied himself that there are no known
bad debts and that adequate allowance had been made far mparment 08565 on recenvabies.

Al the date of this report, the direcior is not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of
bad debts, or the addsiona allowance for impairment sses on recaivables in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS

Bafore the financial statements of the Group ang of the Company were made aul, the director took
reasonable steps 1o ensure that any currenl asgets, which were uniikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of husiness, including their vaiue as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the
Company, have been wrtien down 1o an amount which they might be expectad so fo realise.

Al the date of this report, the director is nat aware of any dreumestances which woulkd render the values
atiributed 10 the current assets in the financial statements misleading,

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this reparl, the diractor Is not aware of any dreumstances which have anisen which render
adherence to the existing mathods of valuation of assets or lisbilitles of the Group and of the Company
misleading or impprophate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(@) any charge on the sssets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b) any contingent fiablity of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

No contingent or other fabilty of the Greup and of the Company has bocome enforceabla or is likely to
hecome enforceable within the period of twelve months afler the end of the fmancial year which, in the
opinion of the dractor, will or may substantially affect the abiity of the Group and of the Comgany 1o mest
their obligations when they fall due.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this repon, the director s not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this
repert or the financial stataments of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated
in the financial statements misteading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial yesr were not, in the
opinion of the director, substantially affected by any Rem, ransaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.

There has not ariaen In the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
ftem, transaction or ovent of a material and unusual nature likely, In the oginion of the director, to affect

substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which
this report is made.

DIRECTORS

The names of directors who served during the financial year anc up o the date of this report are 8s
fallows: -

Lian Wah Seng
Shahrd Khuzairl Bin Abdulah (Resigned on 16 March 2021)
DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ sharehokiings, the interests of directors hoding office at the enc of
the financial year in shares of the Company and its related corporations duing the financial year are as

follows:-

«—————— Number of Ordinary Shares ————————*

1.103020 Bought Sold 30.9’.“2021

The Company
Ovec! Interest
Lian Wah Seng 366,687 : . 366,657
Indirect Interest
Lian Wah Seng 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000

By virtue of his shareholdings in the Company, Lian Wah Seng i deamed 1o have intorests in shares in the
Company and its refaled caporations during the financial year to the extent of the Company's interests, n
accordance wih Section 8 of the Companies Act 2018,

Page 3
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated n Mataysia)
Regsiration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Snce the end of the previous financial year, no director hag recaied or bacome anttied to receive any benelil
(other than a beneflit induded in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and recelvable by
directors shown in the financial statements or the fixed sfary of a full-tme amployee of the Company or related
carporafions) by reason of a contract made by the Company or 8 related corporation with the director of with 3
firm of which the direclor s 3 member, or wilh a company in which the direcior has a substantial financial
imerest,

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any
arrangements whose object i 10 enable the direciors to acquire benefits by means of the acguisition of
shares in or debantures of the Company or any other body corporale.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The detalls of the directors’ remuneralion paid or payable to the direciors of the Company during the
financial year are disdosed in Note 25 1o the financial statements,

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST

The Company maintains a Directors' and Officers’ Liablity insurance Policy on 8 group basis. During the
financial year, the amount of indemnity coverage and insurance premium pad for e directors of the Group
weare RM3,000,000 and RM11,140 respectivaly. No indemnily was given 1o or insurance effected for auditors
of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s subsdianes are discosed in Nole 5 lo the financial stataments.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The significant event during the financial yeer Is disciosed n Note 33 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Tha significant events ocourring after the reporting period s disclosed In Note 32 to the firancial
statements.

Pago 4
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020332 (1086419 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

AUDITORS
The audiors, Crowe Malaysia PLT, have expressed ther wilingness to continue in office.

The details of the awditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Nate 25 fo the financal siatements.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the director dated 06 APR wn

5

Wah Seng

Page 5
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Na: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENT BY A DIRECTOR
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Lian Wah Seng, being the sole director of AZTI Technology Sdn. Bhd., state that, In my opinion, the
financial statemants set cut on pages 11 to 90 sre drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financal
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the reguiremeants of the Companies
Act 2016 = Malaysia so as 1o give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as of 30 September 2021 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
ended on that date

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the director dated () 6 APR 2022
7%

ah Seng

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Uan Wah Seng, MIA Membership Number: 17404, being the director primarily responsible for the
financial managemeant of AZTI Technology Sdn. Bhd., do solemnly and sincerefy dedare thal the financial
statameants set out on pages 11 to 90 are, 1o the best of my knowledge and belef, correct and | make this
solamn declaration consciantiously belleving the declaraton fo be true, and by virlue of the Statutory
Dectarations Act 1960

Subsicribed and solemnly deciared by the abovementioned
Lan Wah Seng, NRIC Number; 720524-10-5141

A

o 15
Lian Wah Seng
Before me

No 12, Jafan Yap Kwan Seng,
50450, Kuata Lumpur

Page 8
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

7~ Crowe T

FOOMICON (LU0 R T-LOA & AT 9018
Charterad Acoouriants

Luvwl 48, Tower C, Megan Averve §
12, Juan Yap KXwan Seng
S0450 Kuata Lumgur
Muaysa
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF Muby <8 03 2728 5009
AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. Fax 03 2788 9996

({Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1095419 - X)

W CTONS My

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

\We have audited the financial statemants of AZTI Technology Sdn, Bhd., which comprise the statements of
firanclg position as at 30 September 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of

1ha Group and of the Company for the financlg year then ended, and noles o the financial statements,
mcluding a summary of significant accounting policies, as set oul on pages 11 to 20,

In our oginion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and falr view of the financial position of
1he Geoup and of the Company a5 at 30 September 2021, and of ther financal pedformance and ther cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financia Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companias Act 2016 in Malaysa.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and Internasional
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are furthee described In the Auditors’
Razponsibililies for the Audll of the Financla! Statements section of our report, We beliove that the audit
avidencs we have obtained is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Indepandence and Other Ethical ResponsibWitiss

We are independent of the Group and of the Company In accordance with the By-Laws (on FProfessions(
Ethics, Canduct and Prachice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (*By-Laws”™) and the Intemationsl
Elhics Standards Board for Accountants' Infernations! Code of Ethics for Professional Accourdants
(including Intermational Independence Standards) (IESBA Cade”), and we have fulfiled our other athicsl
responsibiities in accordanca with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The directoes of the Company are responsible for tha other information, The other information comprises
the Direclors’ Repaort but does not indude the financial statements of the Group and of the Compary and
our sudilors’ report thereon,

Our opinfon on the financlad statements of the Group and of the Company does not caver the Direclors'
Report and we do not express any form of assurance candlusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Graup and of the Company, our responsibility
is to read the Directors’ Report and, i doing so, consider whether the Directors' Report is materially
inconsstent with the finandal statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obiained in
the sudit or otharwise appears to ba materially misstated.

¥, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Directors’ Roport, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing o report in this regard.

Crowe Nabaywa PLT i & onivioor of Srpws D00, & S saee. Laen manita S of Crawn Goted 8 & separsts xvd roecencest . G e
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

/. Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZT|I TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. (CONT'D)

({Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are respansibie for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
snd of tha Company that gve a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financiad Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirernents of the Companies Act 2016 In
Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internd control as the directors determine is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of financal statements of the Group and of the Compary that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the direciors are responsible for
sssessing the Group's and the Company’s ability to contirue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters ralated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or 10 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but {0 do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ouwr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financal statements of the Group
and of the Company &s a whole are frae from material misstatement, whather due to frawd o error, and to
issue an suditors’ report that indudes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, bt
is not & guarantea that an audit concucted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia
and International Standarde on Auditing wil always detect a materlal misststement whan it exists,
Mezstatements can arlse from fraud or eror and are considered matersl if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expecied to influence the sconomic dectsions of usars taken on the basis of
these financia stataments.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and Intemationsl
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professioral judgement and maintain professional skeplticism
throughout the audit We also:-

. Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstaterment of the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company, whether dus 10 fraud or ermor, dasign and perform audt procedures responsive o
those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approgpriate lo provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane
regulting from emor, as freud may iwolve oollusion, forgary, intentional  omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overide of internal control,

. Qbtain an understanding of internad conlrol relevant to the sudit in order to design sudit procedures
that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oginion on the
effactivenass of the Group's and of the Company's internal control,

. Evaluste the asppropristenass of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and redated disdosures maxde by the directors.

Page 8
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

/. Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZT|I TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD, (CONT'D)

(Incorgorated In Mataysia)

Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements (Cont'd)

. Conclude on the appeopriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Company's ability to coninue as
agomgwmm.tfwecomhdoﬂmamawumlwmm.wnmmwmamﬁm
in our auditors’ report to the refated disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company or, If such disdosures are inadequate, o modfy our opinion. Our conclusicns are based
on the audit avidence oblaned up to the date of cur auditors' repart. However, future events of
conditions may cause the Group or the Comipary to cease 0 coMinue as a going cancenm.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the finandial statements of the Group
and of the Company, induding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company represant the underlying transactions and eveats in a manner that achieves
f3ir prasentation,

. Obtain sufficient appropriate sudt evidence regarding the financial Information of the entfes o
business activities within the Group to express an oplreon on the financial statements of the Group,
We e responsibie for the direction, supervision and performance of the group awdit. We remain
solely responsible for our audi opirion. .

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matlers, the planned scope and fiming of the
audit and significant sudit findings, induding any significant deficlencies in internal condrol that we Identify
during our audit

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report thal the
subsidiaries of which we have not acted as audiors, are disclosed in Note 5 o the financial statements.
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Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. (CONT’D)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

OTHER MATTERS
Thbrepmlsmadesolefywmemunbersdm&xnm as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume respansibility to any
other person for the content of this report,

Crggo Malaysia PLT Chin hl Seong

201806000005 (LLP0O18817-L.CA) & AF 1018 172023 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumnpur
06 APR 2022
Page 10
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Regsiration No: 201401020333 (10968419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM RM RM RM
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment In subsidiaries 5 . . 2,000,000 2,000,000
Equipment 6 362,007 712,783 . 257,611
Right-of-use assels 7 346,992 268,645 11,502 80,513
Intangibie assets B . - . -
Deferrad tax assels 9 027 826 - - -
1,638 925 981,428 2,011,502 2,338,324
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 10 - 74216 - -
Trade receivables " 3,405,381 6,171,816 - -
Qther receivables, deposils
and prepayments 12 722911 1,555,267 42,862 35431
Contract assels 13 119,216 8,361,532 3845558 3,685 066
Ameount owing by
subsicaries 14 - . 7.30% 1,041,449
Shoret-tarm investimants 15 5,925,778 2625163 - -
Current tax assets 241,944 33,054 - 33,054
Fixed deposits wih licensed
banks 18 3966272 4,797,302 - .
Cash and bank balances 6.544 821 578,757 24832711 84,352
20,946,321 24 187 227 6,628,432 5,779,352
TOTAL ASSETS 22583248 25,178 655 8,839,934 8117676

Page 11
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(incorporated In Malaysia)
Regissration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021
Note R RM RM RM
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share captal 17 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained profits 8§ 267,138 13,186,348 361,708 4,944 901
Foreign exchange transiation
reserve 18 (238,227) 143,409 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 10,048,911 15,329 847 2,361,708 6,944,901
NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Other payable 22 120,141 . - .
Lease Sabites 19 70,464 15,025 - 12043
Tarm ans 20 702,811 880,204 - -
Deferred tax liabilites 9 167,236 385,815 - -
1,080,652 1,261,044 - 12042
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 21 976 475 1,528,215 - 453
Contract kablities 13 9,326,352 5,615,132 6,111,610 579,844
Other payables and accruals 22 703,080 594,203 153,850 160,046
Amount owing fo subsidiaries 14 - - 173,583 155,020
Lease ligbillties 19 283,329 284,881 12,043 71,368
Term loans 20 157,392 112,639 - .
Dividend payabies . 194,000 - 194,000
Curren tax inbilities 27,035 158,794 27,035 -
11,473,683 8,587,764 6,478,226 1,160,732
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,534,335 9,648 808 6,478,226 1172775
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES 22.533,246 25,178,655 BA30,834 B.117.678
Page 12
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM RM RM RM
REVENUE 23 5936.684 8,868,170 2,009,738 700,981
COST OF SALES (4,193,967) (3,763,704) {763,337) (734,374)
GROSS PROFITHLOSS) 1.743.017 5,104 465 1,246,401 (33,293)
OTHER INCOME 326,381 293128 15,026 18,734
2068,398 5,397 604 1,261 427 (13,659)
SELLING AND MARKETING
EXPENSES {75,050) (343 461) (2,437) {206,807)
ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (3,008,822) (3,326,767) (911,140) (1,038,200)
OTHER EXPENSES (743,298) (628,759) (469,733) {382.,629)
FINANCE COSTS (102,358) (47 404) (6.631) (11.688)
WRITEBACK OF/(NET)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND CONTRACT ASSETS 24 481,250 {401.812) (14,719) (17,350}
(LOSSNPROFIT BEFORE
TAXATION 25  (1,460.878) 649,301 (143,242) {1,678,533)
INCOME TAX INCOME/
{EXPENSE) 26 870,668 (1.254,187) (138,951) -
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (580,210) (604,806) (283,183) (1,678,533)
QOTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Itemn that May be Reclassified
Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Foreign currency transiation
diferonces (381,728) 130,197 - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR (980,936) (474 609) (283,193) (1.678.533)
Tha annaxed notas foem an Rlegral part of thase finandal stataments. Page 13
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
202 2020 2021 2020
RM RM M RM

LOSS AFTER TAXATION

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:~

Owners of the Company (599,210) (604,306) (283,193) (1,678.533)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

EXPENSES ATTRIBUTABLE

TO:-
Owners of the Company {980,234) (474,609) (283,193) (1,678,533)
The annexed notes form an integrad parn of these nancal statements. Page 14
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X}

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

Foraign
Exchange
Sharo Retaned Translation Tatal
Capital Profits Resarves Equity
Note RM RM RM RM

The Group
Balance at 1,.10.2018 2,000,000 13,791,154 13,302 15804 456
Loss aftar taxation for the
financial year . {604,806 . (604,806)
Other comprehensive mcome for
the financial year:
- Foreign currency translation

differences - - 130,197 130,197
Total comprehensive expenses
for the financial year - (G0<,808) 130,197 {474 .609)
Balance at 30.8.2020v1.10.2020 2,000,000 13,188,348 143,409 16,329 6847
Loss after taxation for the
financial year - (599,210) . (598,210}
Other comprahensive income for
the financial year:
- Foreign currency lranslation

differenceas . - (361.726) (381,726)
Total comprehensive sxpenses
for the financisl year - {598,210) (381.728) (980,936)
Distributions to owners of the
Company:
- Dwidend 31 - {4,300,000) - {4,300,000)
Balance at 30.8.2021 2,000,000 8287138 (238,227) 10,048,911
The annexed notes form an integral part of these fnancial statemaents. Page 1%

84



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1088419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 (CONT'D)

Share Retained Total
Capital Profils Equity
Note RM RM RM
The Company
Balance at 1,10,201¢ 2,000,000 6,623,434 8,623 434
Loss after texationTotal comprehensive
axpansas for the financial year - (1,678 533) (1,678,533)
Balance at 30.9.202(¢1.10.2020 2,000,000 4,944 901 6,944,901
Loss after taxationvTotal comprehensive
expanses for the financial yasr - (283,193) (283,193)
Distributions to owners of the Company:
- Dividend 3 - (4,200,000) (4,300,000)
Bslance at 3092021 2,000,000 361,768 2,361,706
Tha annexed notes farm an intagra part of thass inancal slatemants. Page 16
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporsted in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1098418 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

The Group The Company
021 2020 2021 2020
Noie RM RM RM R

CASH FLOWS FROM{FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)Profit before taxstion (1,469, 878) 549,391 (143,242) (1,678.523)

Adjusiments for-
COVID-18 related rent
cancessions {66,540) (12,025) (14,950) {12025)
Deprecation:

- equipment 280,034 297,131 82,551 5,992
« nght-of-use assets 381,233 339,010 69,011 69,011
Interest expense:

- lpase labllities 23,664 45,640 6,631 11,888
- others 151,197 70,780 - .
Inventones wrtien down 74218 -

invastments (120,584) (83,024) - .
Interast income (85,468) (185,299} - -
{Reversal of impairment
lossesimpalrment loss:

- amount owing by subsidianes
- cONtracl &85648

- trade recedvables

- other recevables

- equipmant 175,268
Witaback af allowance for

impairment 05565 on rade

recaivables (481,250) _ - =
Unrealised lossigain) an

fareign exchange - B4 o444 (2,908}

Oparating {losa)profil befors
working capilal changes (1,143,007) 1,533,490 209433 (1.499.226)
Decreasalinorease) n

contract assals 8242316 (469,105) (160,492) 2,437 803
IncraaselDecregse) in conlract
lisbit

Decrease/{increase) n lrade

and other recesvables 4,080,041 107,387 {7.43) 11,056
Dacrease In trade and other

paynbles {613,764) (35,754) (200,549) (362,612}
Decreasel{increase) i amount

owing by subsdiaries . - 1.914,825 (387.729)
Increasal{ Decrease) n

amount owing 1o subsidianes = . 18,568 (3,215)

CASH FROM{FOR)
OPERATIONS CARRIED
FORWARD 14,271,816 (154,150) 7,208,120 maan

- 14718 17.350
{481,280) - =
481,250 >
401,812 .

- 175268

3,711,230 (1,290,177) 54531,766 679 6544

The annexed notas form an odegral pan of thase finandcal statemsnts. Page 17
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporatad in Malaysia)
Registraton No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FROM{FOR)

OPERATIONS BROUGHT

FORWARD 14,271,816 (154,150) 7,306.120 7788921
Incorme tax paid (616,486) {349,201) . (43,937
Income tax refunded - 229,729 - 77,780
Interast pakd (97.169) (51,897) (79.862) >
NET CASH FROM{(FCR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 13,558,161 (325,519) 7,226,258 809,764
CASH FLOWS FROMIFOR)

INVESTING ACTIMITIES

Advances 1o subsidianes - . {4,840} =
DecreasedIncragsa) of fixed

deposils pledged with Scansad

banks 811,120 (165.278) . -
Incoma from shoet-tarm

imvestmants 120,584 93.034 - -
Interast incoms receved 85468 166299 - -
Purchasa of equipmant 6 (104,527) {13.787) (10,009) (14,738)
NET CASH FROMI(FOR)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 912,645 70268 (14,849) {11,738)
CASH FLOWS FOR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend pald (4,300,000) (589,752) {4,300,000) (589,752)
Drawdown of tarm loans 27(a) - 500,000 - -
Interest peid 27(8) (85,044) (62,878} (6,631) (10,243)
Repayment to halding campany - - . (54,042)
Repaymant of lease kabilities  27(8) (324,849) {206,876} (56.41%) (55,732)
Repaymant of term loans 27(s) {112,540) (27.802) - -
NET CASH FOR FINANCING

ACTIVITIES (4,822,433) (477,308) (4,363,050 (739,768)
The annexed notes form an imegral part of these financial slalements Page 18
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorparated in Mafayeia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1098419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 (CONTD)

The Group The Company
2021 2020 201 2020
Nota RM RM RM RM
NET INCREASENDECREASE)}
IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 8648373 (723.,559) 2,848 359 58,257
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE TRANSLATION {381,726) 130113 - (44)
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 3203950 3,797,398 B4.352 261719
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 27(¢) 12470597 3,203,950 293271t 84,352
Tha annexsd notes form an infegral pan of these MNnancial stxemants. Page 19
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tna Compeny Is a private limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The
regstered office and principal place of businees sre as follows:-

Registered office - No. 35-10, The Boulevard,
Mid Valley City,
Lingkaran Syed Pusra,
50200 Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Parsakutuan.

Principal place of business No. 3-89, The Bouevard,
Mid Vatey City,
Lingkaran Syed Putra,
56200 Kisala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan,

The financial stalements ware suthorisad for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
ragolution of the directors dated 6 April 2022,

2, PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Campany is principally engaged In the businesses of research and development of platform
safety system, business development and licensing of inteflectusd property rights as well as
Investmant holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are sat out In Note 5 to the financial
statements,

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the histoncal cost comvention and modfied
to include other bases of valuation as disclosed In other sections urder significant sccounting policies,
and in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs"), Intemasional Financial
Reporting Standards and the requiremeants of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Page 20

89



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incarporated in Malaysia)
Reglistration No- 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

31 During the currert financial year, the Group has adopted the folowing new accounting
standards andlor Inerpretations (ncluding the consequential amendments, if any)-

MFRSs andior IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments)
Amendmaents o MFRS 3; Definition of a Busihess

Amendments 1o MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7; Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendment to MFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Ranl Concassions beyond 30 June 2021
Amendments 1o MFRS 101 and MFRS 108: Definilion of Material

Amendments 1o References to the Concaplusl Framework In MFRS Standards

The adoption of the above accounting stardards andfor interpretations (induding the
consequential amendments, i any) did not have any material mpact on the Company’s
financial statements excepi as follows:-

The Company has eary adopted Amendment to MFRS 16 'Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021' which allows lessees 1o elect not to assess whether a
COVID-19-7alsted rent concession is a lease modification when conditions are met and o
recognise the rent concession directly in profit or loss. The Company has applied such
practice expediont %o all of its COVID-19-related rant concessions and the financial
impaclts are disclosed in Note 25 o the financlal statements,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporsted in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

32

The Group has not applied in advance the following accountng standards and'or
interpretations {including the consaquential amendments, If any) that have been Bsued by
the Malaysisn Accounting Standards Board MASB") but are nat yet effecive for the

current linancial year:-

MFRSs andlor IC Intarpretations (Including The Consequential
Amendments)

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to MFRS 3. Reference 10 the Conceptual Framewark

Amentments 1o MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS

16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Amendmants 1o MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale ar Contribution of
Assets batween an Investor and lis Assocate or Joint Venture

Amendments 1o MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

Amendment to MFRS 17; Initial Appscation of MFRS 17 and MFRS
9 - Comparative Informaton

Amendment to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Curent or
Non-cumant

Amendments {o MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Amendments 1o MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to MFRS 112- Deferrod Tax relaled Lo Assels and
Liabiites arising from a Single Transaction

Amendmenls 10 MFRS 116: Propesty, Plant and Equipment -
Praceeds before intended Use

Amandments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts - Cast of Fulfiting a
Cantract

Annual improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

Effective Date
1 January 2023
1 January 2022

1 January 2021

Defamad
1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 Janusary 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2022

1 January 2022
1 January 2022

The adoplion of the above accounting standards andfor interpretations (Incledng the
consequental amendments, if any) is expected 1o have no materal impact on the financial

statements of the Group upon is Initial application

91
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{incorporated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
LA CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The outbreak of the COVID-19 has brought unprecedented chalenges and added economic
unceriainties in Malaysia and markets i which the Group operates. Whie the Geoup has
conziderad the polentis finencal impact of the COVID-19 pendemic in the preparation of
these financial siatements, the full financial mpact to the Group remang uncertain
Accordingly, there is a possibility thal facioes not currently anticipated by management could
cccur in the future and therefore effect the recogntion and measurement of the Group's
assews and lisbites al the reporting date

Key Source of Estirnalion Uncertainly

Management believes that there are no key assumplions made conceming the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty al the reporting date, thal have a significant
risk of causing 8 material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of sssets and kabities within
the next finencial yaar other than as disclosed below:-

(a) Impalrment of Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

The Group uses the simplified approach to estimate a lifelime expacied credit loss
alowance far all trade receivables and contrect assets. The contract assats are
grouped with trade receivables for impairment assessment because they have
substartially the same risk characleristics as the trade receivables for the same
types of contracts, The Group develops ihe expecied losa rates based on the
payment profies of past sales (Including changes In the customer payment profile
in response 1o the COVID-19 pandernic) and the correspanding historical creot
losses, and adjusts for qualtative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information. If the expectation is different from the estimation,
such differance will émpact the carrying values of trade receivables and contract
assels.

(b)  Deferred Tax Assots

Deforred fax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses to the extent that if is probable that fudure taxable profits would
be available against which the deductble temporary differences and unused lax
losses could be utilised, Management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogrised, based on the assessment
of the probability of the future taxable profas
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
41 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTD)
(c) Revenue Recognition for Services Contracts

The Group recognises senvices ravenue by referance o the construction progress
usging the input method, datermined based on the preportion of construction cosls
ncurred for work perdormed to date over the estimated lotal construchon cosis.
The fotal estmated cosls ae based on approved budgels, which require
assessment and judgement to be made on changes in, for example, work scope,
changes in costs and costs to completion. In making the judgement, management
relios on past experience and the wark of specialists.

(d) Impairment of Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

The Group determines whether an ftem of 28 equipment and nght-ofuse assels
are impaired by evalusting tha exient 1o which the recoverable amount of the
ssset |s l9ss than its camying amount. This evaluation is subject 1o changes such
as market performance, economic and political s#uation of the country. A variety
of methods s used 0 delermine the recoverable amount, such ss valuation
reports and ¢iscounted cash flows.

Critical Judgements Made (n Applying Acoounting Palicies

Management believes that there are no instances of appication of critical judgement in
apphying the Group's sccounting policias which wil have a signficant effect on the amounts
recognised in tha financial statemants,

4.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consclidated financial statements include the financial staterments of tha Company
and #s subsidiaries mace up to the end of the reparting period.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an ertly when the
Group is exposed 10, or has rights to, vanable returns from its involvernent with the entity
and has the ability to affect those refums through ils power over the entity, Potential vating
rights are cansidered when assessing contro! only when such rights are substantive. The
Group also considers It has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the
majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the actvities of the mvesiee that
signfficantly affact the investee's return,

Subeidiaries are consoddated from the date on which contral s trensferred to the Group up
10 the effective date on which control cagses, as appropriate
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regstration No. 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
42  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTD)

Intragroup transactions, beances, income and expenses ane eliminaled on corsalication.
Intragroup losses may indicate an impaimment that requires recognition in the consolicated
financiad stalements. Wheve necassary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of
subsidiaries 10 ensure consistency of acoounting policies with those of the Group

(a) Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accourted for using the acquisition method, Under the
acquisition methad, the consideration transfered for acquisiion of a subsidiary is the
far value of the sssets transfemed, abilties incured and the equity Interasts issuad
by the Group &t the acquisition date. The consideraton trarsfered inclides the far
velue of any asset or liabiity resulting from a contingant considaration arangement.
Aoquisition-refated costs, other than the costs 1o issue debl or équity securities, are
recognisad in profit or loss when incurred,

In a businees combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the
acquree are remeaswred to fair value at the acquisition date and any comespondng
Qain or koss Is recognised in pealil of loss.

Non-controling Interasts in the acquires may be initially measured either a Fair value
or at the noncontroling interests’ propodionate share of the far value of the
acquiree'’s identifisble net assets al the date of acquisibon. The cheice of
measuramant besss s made on a transacton-by-fransachon basis.

{b) Non-controliing Interests

Non-controlling inferesss are presented within aquity i the consolidated statement of
financial posttion, separataly from the equity stiributable (o owners of the Company.
Profit or lees and asch component of other comprehensive ncome ane attnbuted o
she owners of the Comparty and to the non-controiling interests. Total comprehensive
income is atirbuted % non<controfing intorests ewven I this resulls in the non-
controlling interests having a defick balance,

(c) Changes in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries Without Change of Control

All changes in the parent's awnership interest n a subsidary that do nat result in a
loss of control are accountad for as equity transactions, Any difference between
the amount By which the non-controfiing Interest is adjusted and the fair vale of
consideration pald or recelved is recognised direclly in equity of the Group,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
42 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONT'D)
{d) Loss of Control

Upon the %55 of condrol of a subsidiary, ihe Group recognises any gain or l0ss on
disposal in profit of loss which is calculaied as the difference belween:-

n the aggregate of the fak value of the consideration received and the far
value aof any retained interest in the former subsidiary; and

(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (inciding goodwill), and liabslites
of the former subsidiary and any non-controlling inseresits.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation %o the
former subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required ¥ the
relovant sssels or liables were disposed of (.e, redassified to proft or loss or
transfermed directly to retained prafits). The fair value of any investments retaned in
the former subsidiary &t the data when control s lost s regarded as the far value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 8 or, when applicabla, the
cost on itial recognition of an investment in an associale o a joint venture,

4.3 FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES
(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

The ndividual financia statements of each entity in the Group are presented In the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the antity oparates, which
is the functional currency

The consalidated financal statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM7),
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are corverted into he respective functional
curmancies on Initisd recognion, using exchanga rales at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and labiities st the end of the reporting pesiod are vansiated & the
exchange rales ruling as of that date. Nen-monelsry assets and liabilties are
vransiated using exchange rates that existed when e values were determined. A1
exchange differences are recogrised in prefit or loss.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated n Malaysia)
Ragisiration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
4.3 FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONT'O)
(c) Foreign Operations

Assots and liabiities of foreign operations (Including any goodwil and fair value
adusiments arising on acquisition) are Fansfated 1o the Group's presentation
cufrancy at the exchange rates at the end of the reporting pariod. Income, expenses
and other comprehensive income of foreign operations are translated at axchangs
rales at the dates of the wanssctions. Al exchange diferences arising from
trarsiation are laken diectly %o other comprebensive income and accumulated in
equity; attributed to the cwners of the Compeny and non-controlling interests, as
appropriste

Goacaill and far value adjustments ansing from e acquistion of foregn operations
are treated as assets and RabiliSes of the foreign operations and are recorded in the
functional currency of the foreign operations and ransisted at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period.

On the disposal of a foraign operation (L.e. a disposa of the Group's enlire nbarest n
8 foreign subsidary, or a partial disposal nvolving foss of contro! over a subskliary
that inclides a forsign operation, or a pantial disposal of an interast in an associale
that includes & foraign operation of which the retained inlerest becomes a financial
assat), al of the exchange dfferences accumutated In equity In respect of that focesgn
operation atirbutable to the owners of the Company are reciassified Io profit or loes
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. The portion that related to non-controling
interests i derecognised but & not reclassified to profit or loss,

fn addition, in relation to a parital disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over e subsidiary, $he proportionate share of accumulated
axchanga dfferences wre realribuled %0 non-contoling Interests and are not
recagnised in prof or lees. When the Group disposes of only pat of its ivestment n
an assocate that ncludas a foreign operation while retaining significant influence, the
propartionate share of the accumulative exchange diferences s redassified to peofit
or %ss.

In the consolidated financial statements, when sattlemant of &n nfragroup loan is
neither plarned nor likely to occwr in the foreseaable future, the exchange differences
arisng from translating such monetary tem are considered o form part of a net
nvestment in the foresgn operation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorgoraled in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1088419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Firancial assels and finandial kablities are recognised in the stabements of financial position
whon the Group has become a party 10 the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments are classified as fmancidl assets, financial liabiliies or equty
nstruments in accordance with the substance of the confraciual arrangement and their
defintions in MFRS 132. Interest, dividends, gaine and losses relating to a financial
instrument clasefied as a fablity are reported as an expense of Income. Distributions to
holders of financial nstruments classified as aquity are charged directly 1o equity,

Financia! instruments are offsat when the Group has & legally enforceable right to offsat
and inlends to seltie either on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and setlle the Eability
simultanecusly.

A financial instrument s recognised inlially 8t 1ts fair value (othar than trade receivables
without significant financing component which are measured al transaction price as
defined In MFRS 15 - Reverne fram Canltracts with Customars at incepbon), Transaction
costs that are directly atirbutable lo the acquis®ion of issue of the finandal instrument
(other than a financial mstrument at fair valus through profit or kss) are added to/deducted
from the fair value on hnitial recognition, as sppeopeiate. Transaction costs on the financial
Instrument at fair value thraugh profit or loss are recognised immediaiely in profil or logs.

Financial instruments recognised In the statements of financial position are dsclosed in
the individual policy statement associsied with each item,

(a) Financlal Assets
Al recognised financial assels are measwed subsequently in thelr entirely at

either amartised cost or fak value {through peofit or loss, or other comprahensive
Income), depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT D)
{a) Financial Assets (Cont'd)
Dstit Instruments
] Amortised Coslt

The financial asset s bald for collection of contractual cash flows where
thosea cash flows rapresent solely payments of principal and nlesest. Intarast
income & recognised by applying the effective intereet rate 10 the gross
carrying amount of the financial ssset. When the assal has subsequently
become cradit-impared, the interest income is recognised by applying tha
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financal assel.

The effective interest method is a mathod of calculating the amartsad coet of
a financial asset and of allocating nierest income over the relevant penod.
The effective inderest rale & the rate that discounts estmated future cash
receipts (including sl fees and points paid o recaived that form an milegral
part of the affective nterest rate, ransaction costs and ofer premiums of
discounts), excluding expected credt keses, through the expected life of the
fnancial asset or a shorter period (where appropriate).

(i) Fair Value through Other Comprehansive Income

The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and
saling the financial asset, where the assel's cash flows represent solely
paymants of principal and inlerest Movements in the camying amount are
takan throwgh other comprahensive income and accumulated n the fai
value resesve, excapt for the recognition of Impairment, interest income and
foreign exchange differance which are recognised directly in profit or loss,
Inferest income is caloulated using the effective interest rate mathod.

{iil) Fair Vale through Profit or Loss

All other financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amarisad cost or
{8ir vale through other comprehensive income are measured at falr value
through profit or lees.

The Group reclassiftes debt instruments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets change.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT D)
{b) Financial Lisbilities
] Financlal Liabities at Far Value through Profit or Loss

Fair value through peofit or loss category comprises financial liabiities that
are efther heki for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly
reduce a8 measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
artse, The changes in fair value of these financla! labdities are recognised in
profit or oss.

(%) Other Fmancial Liabilities

Cther financial llabilities are subsequently measured 31 amorlised cost using
the effecive interest method,

The eflective Inerest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liabiity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant parod,
The effective inlerest rale is the rale that exactly dscounts estmated fulure
cash payments (including all fees and points paid o received that form an
integral part of the effeclive inlerest rate, transaction costs and other
premitene or discounts), through the axpected |ife of the fnancial kabiity or 8
sharler period (where spproprate).

(c) Equity Instruments

Equity instruments classified as equily are measured intialy at cost and are not
remeasured subsequendly.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at the procaeds recenved,
net of directfy atiributable ransaction cosis.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabdites when spproved for
appropriation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
(d) Derecognition

A tinancal asset or part of it s derecogrised when, and onty whan, the contrachuss
rights to the cash Slows from Ihe financial asset expirs or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantialy all the nisks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
anothar entity. On derecognition of a financial aseel measured 3t amanised cosl, the
differonce between the camying amourd of the assat and the sum of the
consideration recenved and recaivable 18 recognised in profit or loss. In addition, oa
derecogniion of a8 debl nstrument cassfied 2= far value through other
comprehansive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
fair value reserve is reclassified from equity to peofit or loss. In contrast, there s no
subsequent rociassilicaton of the fair value reserve %o profit or loss following the
derscooniton al an equity investmant

A Snancal Eabilty or @ part of It s derecognised when, and enly whan, the obligaton
spectiod In the contract Is discharged or cancelied or axpires. On derecognition of a
financial lsbiity, the diffarence between the carrying amount of the financial abiity
extinguished or transferred 10 another parly and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transfared or labeities assumed, = recognisad in profit or loss.

() Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guaraniee contract Is a contract that requires the Issuer to make
gpecified payments to reimburse the holder for & loss It incurs because a specific
deblor fals fo make payment when due In accordance with the original or modified
terms of & cabl Instrument.

Financial guarantee conlracts are recognised inltialy as labilites ot fair value, nat
of transaction costs. Subsequent to witial recognition, financial guarantee
contracts are recognised as income in profil or joss over the period of Ihe
guarantee or. when there is no specific contractual period, recognised in profit o
loss upon discharge of the guarantee. If the deblor fails 1o make payment refatng
to a financial guarantes contract when @ is due #nd the Group, as the issuer, =
requirad o reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liabdility is measured
at the higher of the amount of the credit koss determined in accordance with the
expecied cradit oss mode! and the amount iniligly recognised less cumuative
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
45  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments In subsidiaries are statad at cost in the statement of financial postion of the
Company, and are reviewed for Impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or
changes In croumstances indicade that the carrying values may not be recaverabie. The
cost of ihe nvestments includes transaction costs,

On the disposal of the invesirnents in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amaund of the investments is recognised in profit or loss,

46 EQUIPMENT

Al #ems of equipment are Initially measured 2t cost Cost includes expendhure that are
drectly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and other cosls directly atiibutable to
bringing the aseet o working condition for its inferded use.

Subsequent to nitial recogniion, all equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any imparment losses.

Subsaquent costs are induded in the assel's carmying amount or recognsed as a separale
assot. as appropriate, only when tha cost 15 Incured and & is probabie thal the fulure
aconomic benefits associated wieh the asset wil flow 1o the Group and the cost of the asset
can be measwed relisbly. The carrying amaount of parts that are replaced & derecognsed.
The costs of the daylo.day servicing of equpment are recognised in profit o loss as
incurred.

Degpreciation on squipment is charged to profit or loss (uness it is included in the carrying
amount of ancther asset) on a straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of
the assats over thelr estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an assat does not cease when
the asset bocomes idle or is retired from &clive use uniess the assel is fully depreciated.
The principal anmual rates used for this purpose are--

Advertising signboard 20%
Compuser and equpment 20% - 33%
Furniture and fitlings 20%
Meotor vahicles 20%
Office equipment 20%
Renovabon 20%
Tools and eguipment 20%

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting perod lo ensure that the amourts, methed and
periods of deprociation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of
consumption of the fulure aconomic benefts embodied i the items of the equioment. Any
changes are accounted for &5 a change in estimate,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

When significant parts of an tem of equpment have different usefud lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of eguipment.

An flem of equipment s derecognised upon disposal or when no fullre economic benefds are
oxpectod from its use. Any gain or loss ariging from devacogniion of the asset, baing the
difference between the net disposal proceeds end the carrying amount, is recogrised in profit
or loss,

47 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Research and Development Expenditura
Research expendilure is recognised as an axpense when it & incurred,

Development expenditure s recognised as 8n expense axcept that costs incurred on
development projects are capilafised as non-current assets to the extont that such
axpendture s expected to generate fulre economic benefits. Development
expendture is capitalised if, and orly If, an entity can demorstrate al of the
following -

(1) its abilty to measure redisbiy the expendilure atributable to the asset under
development,

(H) the product or process & technically and commercially feasible;

(i¥) ils fulure econamic benefis ara probable;

(V) Its intermion to complete and the abiity to use or sall the developed assel,
and

(v) the availability of adequale technical, firancal and other resources o
completa the asset under development

Capitalised development expenditre 15 measwed st cost less accumulasied
amortisation and mpairment losses, f any. Development expendiure intially
recognised a5 8n expense 5 not recognised as assets in the subsequent period.

The development expenditure is amortised on 3 straght-line method over a pefiod of
10 yasrs whan the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected
future economic benefits are no longer probable of being recovered, the
development expenditure is writlen dawn 1o 2 recoveratie amount.

The amortisation mathod, useful ife and residual value are raviewed, and adusted i
appropriae, at the end af each reparting peried.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
47 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTD)

(b)  Other Intangible Assets

Patents and trademarks and business goodwil which have indefinte useful live
are not amortised. At the erd of each reporting pericd, the usedd lives of the
brand names are reviewed to determing whether events and circumsiances
continue to support an indefinite useful lifo essessmont for the assets. Such
assals are testad for impalrment annualy and whenever there is an indication of
thal they may be impaired.

Other intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which
has finite usefid fves, are measured st cost less any accumuiated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other mtanglble assets are amortised on a straightdine meihod over their
estmated useful lives from the date they sre availlabie for use. The prncipal
annusl rates used for this purpose are:-

Trade secrets and knaw-how 10 years

In the event that the mxpected future ecanomic benefils are no longer prodable of
being recovered, the other imangible sesats are whitten down to s recoverable
amount,

The amorlisation method and uselul life and residusl value are reviewed, and
adpusted if sppropriste at the end of each reporting period.

48 LEASES

The Group assesses whether @ contract 8 or conlains a lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Group recogreses a nght-of-use asset and coresponding lease Eablity wih
respect to all laasa arangements in which it is the lesses, except for low-value assels and
shori-term leases with 12 months or less. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operaling expense on 8 straightdine method over e term of the lease
unkess another systematic basis Is more representative of tha Eme pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assels are consumed.

The Growp recognses a right-of-use asset and 3 leasa llablity st the iease commencement
date. The right-of-use assets and the assocarted lease linbilties are presented as a separate
line item n the statement of inancial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
48  LEASES (CONTD)

Tha rght-of-use asset is intially measured at cost. Cost Includes the nital amount of the

comesponding lease liablity adustod for any lease payments made at or befors the
commencement date, plus any indial direct costs incurred, 1288 any ncantves recened

The right-ofuse asset is subseguently measured at cost Jess accumulated depraciation and
any impairment lossas, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease Eabilty. The
depreciation slarts from the commencement date of the lease. if the lease transfers
ownership of the underying asset to the Company or the cost of the right-ol-use assel reflects
that the Group expects 1o exercse a purchase oplion, e related nghl-of-use asset s
dapcaciated over the usalu life of the underlying asset, Othenwise, the Group depreciates the
right-of-use asset 1o the carier of the end of the usefd ife of the rght-of-use asset or the end
of the laase term, The estmated useful lves of the right-of-use assets e determined on the
same basis as those equipment.

Tha lease liablity is intially measured al the presant value of the lease payments that are not
paii &t the commencement date, discounted by usng the rate mplct in the lease, If Ihis rate
cannot be raadily determined, the Group uses s incremental borrowing rade.

The lease labilily & subseguently measured al amortised cost using the effective nterest
method. i 15 remeasured when there is a change n the fulre lease payments (other than
lease modification that is not accounted for &5 a separate lease) with the comespondng
adiustiment is made 1o the camying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recognised in profit
or loss i the carrying amount has been reducad 1o zero,

49 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated &t the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 5 determined on the
first-mn, first-out basis method and comprises the purchase price and Incidentals Incumed in
bringing the invertorias to their present location and condition.

Net reaksable value represents the estimated sefing price less the estmated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

410 CONTRACT ASSET AND CONTRACT LIABILITY

A contract asset is recognised when the Group's right to consideration is conditional on
something other than the passage of ime. A contract asset is subject 1o impairment
requiraments of MFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.

A contract liability is stated at cost and represants the cbligation of the Group to transier
goods or services to a customer for which consideration has been received (or the amount
Is due) from the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
411 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalens comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposils,
ang shortdemm, highly liguid invesiments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value with odging
maturity periods of three manths or less. For the purpoae of the statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents are presenied net of bank overdrafts,

412 IMPAIRMENT
(a) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognisas a loss sllowanoce for expacted credit losses on investments in
debt instruments that are measured al amortised cost or &t {8l value through other
camprehansive income, trade racaivables and contract assets,

The expected credi! loss is estimated as the difference between all contractusl cash
flows that are due to the Group In accordanca with e contract and all the cash fows
that the Group expects 10 receive, discountad at the orginal effective inlarast rate.

The amount of expected cedit osses is updated at each reporting date lo reflect
changes in credit risk since nifial recognition of the respective financial Nsirument
The Group always recognises lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivebies
and cortract assels using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on
these financial sesels sre estimated using a provision malrx based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience and are adjusted for forward4ooking information
(incuding time value of monay whare appropriate).

For gl other fmanciad nstruments. the Group recognses lifetime expected crecit
losses when fhere has been & significent Increase in credit risk snce indis
recognition. However, I the credt risk on the finandial instrument has not Increased
significantly since inttial recognition, the Group measures the oss allowance for that
fnancial instrument at an amount equal 10 12-month expected credit losses.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss In profit or Joss for all finencial
Instruments with & comespending acdustment o her carying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for invesiments in debt instruments that are messured
fair value through other comprehansive income, for which the loss afiowance |5
recognised in ofher comprehensive income and accurnulated n the fair velue
ragerve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
statements of financial position.

Page 36

105



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysa)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1066418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
412  IMPAIRMENT (CONT'D)
(b) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying velues of assats, other than those to which MFRS 138 - Impairment of
Assets doas not apply, are reviewed ot the end of each reporting period for
impairment when an annual impairment sssessment s compulsory or there = an
indication that the assets might be impaired. Inpairment is measwred by companng
the carrying vaies of the sssets with ther recoverable amaounts. When the camying
smount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 5 written down to ils
recoverabls amount and an impairment loss shal be recognised, The recoverabile
amount of an assal Is tha higher of the asset's fair value less costs 1o sell and its
value in use, which & measured by referanca to discounted futura cash flows using &
pra-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific 10 the asset. Where it s not possible o estimate e
recoverable amount of an individual assel, (he Group determines the racoverable
amount of the cash.genarating unit 1o which the asset belangs.

An impssrmant loss I8 recognised in profit or loss immediately uniess the assel Is
carried at its revalued amount. Any imparment oes of 8 revalued asse! = treated
as a revalualion decrease to the extent of a previously recognised revaluation
surplus for the same asset. Any impairment lose recognised in respect of a cash-
generating unit is aliocaled first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwil
alocated lo the cash-genersating unit and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assats In the cash-generating unit on a pro rala basis.

In respect of assets olher than goodwil, and when there = a change in the
astimates used to determine the rocoverable amount, a subsequent Increase In
the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the pravious
impairment kss and s recognised 1o the extent of the carrying amourtt of the
asead that would have been cetermined (nat of amortsation and depreciation} had
no impairment loss been rocognised. The reversal s recognised in profit or loss
immediately, unless the assed is carried 8t &5 revalued amount, in which case the
raversal of the impairment loss ie lreated &2 & revalustion mcraase,

413 PROVISIONS

Pravisions are recognised when the Group has a present obiigation (legal or constructive)
as 3 result of past cvents, when it i probable that an outflow of resources embadying
econamic banafits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a refiable estimate of
the amount can be made, Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adpsted to reflect the current best sstimate, Where the effect of the time value of money
s material, the pravision is the present value of the estmated expenditure récuired to
satse the obligation. The discount rate shall be a pre-tax rate that reflects curent markel
assessments of the time vaue of money and the ncks specfic to the Kability. The
unwinding of the dscount 1s recegnised as internst expense in peoflil of loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
414 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a)  Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and bonuses ane measured on an undiscounted
basis and are recognised I profit or loss In the perod n which the assoclated
garvices &re randered by employees of the Group.

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

The Group's contributions to defined condribution ptans are recognised in profit o
loss in the peried to which they relate. Once the contrbutions have been pald, the
Group has no further lisollity in respect of the defined contribution plans.

415 INCOME TAXES
(@) Current Tax

Current tax agssals and lisblities are expected amount of income tax recoverable or
payable to the taxation authorities.

Current taxes are maasured using tax rates and 1ax laws that have been enacied
or substantively enacted al the end of the reporting penod and are recognisad in
profit or loss except fo the exteal that the 1ax relates to items recognised oulside
profit or loss {elther n other comprehansive income or directly 0 equity).

(b)  Deferred Tax

Daferred tax i recognised using the labiity method for al temporary differences other
than those that arse from goodwil of from e initial recognison of an asset or liability
i a transaction which = not a business combinaticn and al the §me of the transaction,
affects nelthar acoounting profit nor taxable profit

Deferred tax assets and lisbiities are measurad & the tax rates that are expecied
apply i the period whean the asset is realised or the [abiity is settled, based on the tax
rates that have been enacted or substanlively enacted at the and of the reporting
period,

Deferred tax sssets are recognised for all deductibie tempocary differences, unused
1ax losses and urused lax credits to the extent that it & probable that future laxable
profits wil be avaiabia sgainst which the deductible temporary dilferences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be ulilised. The camying amounts of defered Lax
assels are reviewed at the end of each reporting penad and reciuced 1o the extent that
it Is no longer probable (hat the related 1ax benefts wil be realxed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
415  INCOME YAXES (CONTD)

Currart and defarred tax tems are recognised in cofretation o the underying fransactions
ether in proft or loss, other comprehansve income o directly in equity. Dafarred tax arising
from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill or negatve goodwil.

Current 1ax assets and lisblities or deferred tax assets and Rabiities are offset when there is a
Ingally enforceable right to sel off current tax assets aganst curent tax fabiities and when
the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable antity (or on diferent tax onsties but they intend
to setfe current tax assels and liabiitles on a net basis) and the same taxation suthonty

416 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of one of moee uncertain future events
not whoty within the control of the Graup. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognisad because f {s not probable that an culflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured relisbly.

A contingent liability is not recognised bul Is declosed in the notes lo the financial
statements, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits s remote. Whon a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it wil then be
recognsed as a provision.

417 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are not directly stirbutable to the acquisiton, construction or production
of & qualifying 8556t are recognised in peofit o loss using the effective interest methad.

418  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be recaived o sell an asset ar paid to transfer 3 liablity in
an ordedy transaction between market paricipants at the maasurement date, regardless
of whetber that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation lechnique. The
measurement assumes that the transaction lakes place either in the principal market or 0
the abaence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. For nos-financial
gssel, the far value measurament tskes into account 8 marke: participants abilty to
genorale economic benafs by using the assel in its highes! and best use or by seiling i to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Mataysia)
Ragstration No: 201401020333 (1098419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
4.18 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D}

For financial reporting purposes, the fair velue measurements are analysed into level 1 1o
level 3 as follows:-

Level 1. Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of
Fability that the enlity can access at the measurament date:

Level 22 Inpuls &ra nputs, otner than quoted grices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liabiity, either directly or Indirectly; and

Level 3. Inpuls are unobservablm inguts for the asset or lisbildy.

The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

4.19 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue from confracts with customers is measured based on the consideration specified
in & contract with a customer in exchange for transferring goods or seevices Lo a8 customer
net of sales and service tax, returns, rebates and discounts, The Group recognises
revenue when (or ag} it ransfers control over @ product or sevvice to customer. An assel is
transferred when (or as) the customer oblens contral of the assel Depending on the
substance of the confract, revenue is recognised when the performanca obligation is
satsfied, which may be at a point in time or over tima.

(a) Rendering of Platform Intrusion Safety Services

Revenue from senvices is recognised over time in the penod in which the services
e rendered usng the input method, defermined based the proportion of costs
incurred for work performed 1o date over the estimated olal costs. Transaction prica
is computed based on the prica speciied In the contract and adjusted for any
variable consideration such as incentives and penalties. Past experience is used 1o
estimate and provide for the varable consideration, using most likely method and
rovenue is only recagnized 10 the extent that & is highly probable that a significant
reversal wil not occur.

A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as 1hs s the point in ime
that the consideralion is uncondiional because only the passage of time I8 requred
before the payment Is dua, If the services renderad exceed the emount invoiced, a
contract asset is recogrised. If the amount inveiced exceeds the services rendersd, a

corviract lisbfity is recognised,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
419 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTD)
(b) Rendering Ancillary Services of Platform Intrusion Safety

Revenue & recognsed at a point in time when the sanices have deen randered %
the customers and coincides with the delvery of services and acceptance by
cusiomers,

() Rendering of Technical Assistance

Revenue from prowiding techrical assistance is recognsed aver tme in the period in
which the senices are rendered using the input method, determined by reference 1o
the tabour days incurrad for work performed todate as @ percentage of the estimated
total labour days. Past experience s used % estimate and provide for the varisble
considaration, using most likely method and revenue & anly recognised to the extent
that it is highly probaiie that & significant reversal will not occur,

A recatvable Is recognised when (he services are randared as this is the paint in lima
hat the considaration is unoonditional because only tha passage of time = required

before the payment is due. If the services rendered exceed the amourk invoiced, 3
conract asset & recognsed, I the amount irnveicad axceeds the services rendaered, 3

cantract liability is recognised.
(d) Licence Fee

Revenue for licence fees is recognised on a straight-line basi over the length of the
licensing contract,

(8)  Sales of Goods
Revenue is racognised at a paint in Gme when the goods have been deliverad to

e customer and upon its acceptance, and it is probable that the Company will
collect the consikierations to which il would be entiled to in exchange for the

goods sold.
420 OTHER INCOME
Interest income
Interest Income 15 recognised an an accrual basis using the effective nterest method.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated n Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
2001 2020
RM R~M
Unguoted shares:-
Al cost 2243632 2,243,632
Less: Accumudated impairment keses 243.632) {243,632)
2,000,000 2,000,000
The detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:-
Principal Placa
of Business/  Percantage of Issued
Country of Share Capital Heid
Name of Subskilary Incarporation by Parent Principsl Activities
2021 2020
% %
AZT| Engineearing (M) Malaysia 100 100 Turnkey engineering dasigning,
Stn. Bad. integrating, instakalica, testing,
commissioning, project
managament, marketing and
DIOCUrement, engneanng Sarvioes
for the ral industry.
Alpha ZaconTechnology British 100 100 Infellectual propesty icansing.
International Inc. * Columbia
Note:-

A

- The financia! statements of Alpha Zaicon Technology infamational Inc. are inaudifed as
Business Corporations Act does not requirs the accounts 1o be audifed,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Maiaysla)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096413 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6. EQUIPMENT

As imparment Depreciation Al
1.10.2020 Additions Losses Charges 30.9.2021
RM RM RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Carrying Amount
Adveriising signboard 2,374 . {1,092) {1,282) -
Computer and eguipment 3ariz4 26,004 (23,223) (20.817) 19,178
Furmniture and fittings 06,205 55021 (63,588) {118,773) 178,867
Motor vehicles 8,167 - - (7,000) 1,167
Office equipment 45,416 15012 (12,834) (16,813) 30,781
Renovation 302,566 8,400 (74,534) (107,304) 128,128
Tools and equipmant 10,931 - - (B,045) 2,686 e
712,783 104,527 (175,268) (280,034) 362,007
As Dapreciation At
1.10.201% Additions Charge 30.9.2020
RM RM RM RM
2020
Carrying Amount
Advertising signboard 3,666 - (1,281) 2374
Computer and eguipment 63,166 3,698 {29,940) 37124
Furniture and fittings 422 605 2,572 (118,972) 306,205
Motor vehicles 15,167 . (7,000) 8167
Office equipment 86,168 2.067 {22.819) 45418
Renovation 403,553 5,250 (106,237) 302,566
Toals and equipment 21,813 - (10,832) 10,931
996,127 13,787 (297,131) 712,783
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No- 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6.  EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Accumuiated
A Accumuisted  Impairment Carrying
Cost Deprecation Losses Amount
RM RM RM RM

The Group
2021
Advestizing signboard $.408 (5.318) {1,092) -
Compusier and equipment 238 508 {196,107) (23,223) 19,178
Furniture and fitings 652,598 {410,135) (63,586) 178,887
Motor vehicles 35,000 (33.,833) - 1,187
Office equipment 171,514 (127 £99) (12,834) 30,781
Renovation 540,022 (336,360) (74.534) 129,128
Tools and egquipment 54,545 (52,059} - 2,686

1,696,985 (1,161,709) {175,269) 362,007
2020
Advertising signboard 6,408 (4,034) - 2374
Compuler and eguipment 219,164 (182,040) . 37,124
Fumiture and fittings 567 567 (281,362) - 306,205
Motor vehides 35,000 {28,833) - 8,167
Office oquipment 158,502 (111,086) . 45416
Renovation 531,622 (229,058) - 302,566
Tools and eguipment 54,845 (44.014) - 10,931

1,601,208 {888,425) . 72783
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated n Malaysia)
Regiatration No: 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6. EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

At Impairment  Depredcation At
1.10.2020 Addtons Losses Charges 0.9 2021
RM RM RM RM RM
The Company
2021
Carmying Amaunt
Advertising sicnboard 2374 . (1,082) (1,282) -
Computer and
equipment 21,847 10,008 (23,223) (8,633) -
Furniture and Mlings 88,790 - {63,586) (35,204) .
Office equipment 20,328 - {12,834) (7.494) .
Ranovation 114,472 - (74,534) (39,938) -
267 811 10,008 (175,269) (92.551) -
Al Depreciation AL
1102019  Additons Charges 30.9.2020
RM RM RM KM
2020
Carrying Amount
Advertising signboard 3,655 - (1,281) 2,374
Computer and equipment 28,035 3,690 (7.887) 21,647
Furniure and ftings 134,086 2,572 (37,868) 98,790
Office equipment 29,216 217 (9,105) 20,328
Ranovation 149,073 5,250 {38,851) 114,472
342,065 11,738 (95,992) 257,811
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(incorporated in Malaysia)
Ragstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6. EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Accumidated
Accumulated Impairment Carrying
At Cost Depreciaion Losses Amount
RM RM RM RM
The Company
2021
Advertising signboard 6,408 {5,316) (1,092)
Computer and aguipment 52833 (29,610) {23,223)
Fumniture and fitlings 180,550 (125,964} (63,586)
Office equipment 45,525 (32,691) (12,834) .
Renovation 199,692 (125,158) {74,534) -
494 008 (318,739) (175,269) -
2020
Advertising signbaard 6,408 {4.034) - 2,374
Computer and eguipment 42824 (20,977) . 21,847
Furniture and fittings 189,550 (80,760) - 98,790
Office equipment 45,525 (25.197) - 20,328
Reanovation 199,602 (85,220) - 114,472
483,999 (226,188) . 257 8611
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Modification
At of Lease  Depreciation AL
1.10.2020 Liablities Charges 30.8.2021
RM RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Carrying Amount
Motor vehicles 11,866 . (11,856) -
Office premises 256,778 439,680 (349 467) 346,902
268,645 438,680 {361,333) 346,992
Modfication
A of Lease Depreciation At
1102019 Liablities Charges 30.9.2020
RM RM RM RM
2020
Carrying Amownt
Motor vehicles 46 844 - {34,878) 11,866
Office premisas 560,811 - (304,0352) 256,779
607 655 - (335,010) 268,645
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)

A Depreciation At
1.10.2020 Charges 30.9.2021

RM RM RM

The Company

2021

Carrying Amount

Office premiges 80,513 (69.011) 11,602
A Deprecalion AL

1102019 Charges 30.9.2020

RM RM RM

2020

Carrylng Amount

Office premises 149,524 (68,011) 80,513

The Group and the Comgany keasaes motor vehicles and office premises of which the [easing activity
s summarised below:-

()  Motor vehicles The Group has leasad Hs motor vehides under hie purchese
arrangamants, The leases are secured by the leased assels

(i) Office premises  The Group and the Company have leased office premises batwean 18 1o
24 (2020 - 24 10 36) and 24 (2020 - 24) months respectively,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

({incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trade
Patants Sacrets
and and Business Davolapmant
Trademark  Know-how Gondwill Cosl Totsl
RM RM RM RM RM

The Group

Al Cost:-

At 1.10.2018 349,200 1,746,041 1,396 832 501,500 3993882
Foreign exchange

adjustments {7,095) (35,476} (28,381) - (70,852}
At 30.8.2020v1.10.2020 342,114 1,710,568 1,388,451 501,800 3922930
Foreign exchange

adjustiments 21,109 105,545 BAASS - 211,080
AL 30.8.2021 363,223 1,816,110 1,452 887 501,800 4134020
Accumutated Amorgsation:-

At 1.10.2019 (873.014) - (183,188) (1,062,189)
Foreign exchanga

sdjustments - 17,738 - - 17,738
AL 30.8.2020/1.10.2020 - (855,278) - (189,185) {1,044 461)
Foreign exchange

adjusiments - (52,772) - . (52,772)
Al 30.8 2021 - (808,048) - (185,188) (1,097,233)
Accumulated Impairment

Lossas:-
Az 1.10.2019 (349,208} (873,027) (1.386,832) (312,615)  (2,931,683)
Foreign excharge
adjusiments 7,095 17.738 28,31 - 53,214
At 30.9.2020/1.10.2020 (342 114) (855,283) (1,388,451) {312,615) (2.878.4488)
Foreign exchange
adjusiments (21,108) (52,773) (84,438) - (158,318)
AL 3092021 (353,223) (908,082} (1,452.4887) (312,615) (3,035,787)
Caerying Amount
At 30.9,2020 - - -
At 30.9.2021 - - =
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(ncorporated in Malaysia)
Rogstrason No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

B, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Development
Cost

The Company R
Al Cosl-
Al 2021/2020 501,800
Accurmulated Amortisation:-
At 2021/2020 (189,185)
Accumulated imparment Loss:-
At 202172020 {312.615)
Carrying Amount
Al 30.8.2020 -
Al 30.8.2021

The developmant cost Is in respect of the cost incurred for the developmant of Platform Intrusion
Emergency System (PIES").

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
Defarred tax assets 927 926 -
Deferred tax fabiites (167 236) (385,815)
760,690 (385,818)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated In Maaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1098418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)
The defarred tax asseis recognised &t the ond of the reporling pariod and before appropriate

offsetting are as folows:-
Recognised n
At Profil or Lose AL
1.10.2020 (Note 26) 30.9.2021
RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Defarred tax asssls .
- contract liabilities - 2,062,025 2062025
- unabsorbed capilal allowances - 17,761 17,781
« lemparary dilference on services contract 911N 223,755 314,926
g1,17 2,303,541 2394712
Deferred tax labilities:
- deferred cost - (1,468,786) (1,486,786)
- lemporary differenca on senvicas contract (476,986) 309,750 (167,238)
(476,986) (1,157.036) (1,634,022)
(385,815) 1,146 505 760,690
Recognised In
At Profit or Loss At
1.10.2019 (Nole: 26) 30.0.2020
RM RM RM
2020
Deferred tax ssseds:
« contract Eabiilies 920,768 (629, 7686) -
- tlemporary difference on services contract - a1n 91,171
920,766 (838,595) 91,171

Deferred tax labity:
- lemporary differance on sarvices contrac (525,311) 48325 (476 986)

404,455 (790,270) {385,815)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts of deferred tax assets not recognised (staled at
gross) due to uncertsinty of their realisation are as follows:

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Unused tax losses.
- expires in yoar of
assessment 2031 2,349, 513 . = -
Ploneer tax losses - 2,847 548 . 2,847 548
Unabsorbed captal
glowances 45,471 59,863 - 59,663
Contract lliabiinios 6,111,610 5,815,006 6,111,610 579,844
Impairment loss:
- devalopment cost 312,615 312,815 312,615 312615
- nvestment in
subsidiaries - 243,632 243632
- aquipment 80,566 . 80,568 -
- trade recelvables . 481,250 - .
- other receivables 401,812 401812 . -
- nventories 74,216 - - -
« amount awing by
subsidianes - - 6,514,187 6,490 468
Lease liabilities 6,801 31,261 541 2,699
E£xcess of deprecation
over capital allowancas 178,166 28,290 108747 -
Accelerated of capial
gllowances oyer
depreciation - (14,052) . (14,052)
9,560,770 8,963,583 13,371 8%8 10,531,617

The unused tax losses are allowed to be utilised for 10 (2020 - ¥) consecutive years of assessment
("YA") while the unatsorbed capital allowances are allowed 1o be carried forward indefinitely,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporaled in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096416 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

10.  INVENTORIES

The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
Spare parts - 74,216
Recognisad in profit or loss:-
Inventores written down 74,246 -
11. TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
Trade racawables 3,406,361 6,653,066
Allowance for mpairment losses - (481.250)
3,405,361 6171816
Allowance for impairment losses:-
Al 1 October 202002019 (481,250) -
Addition during the financial year (Note 24) - (481,250)
Writeback during the financial year (Nole 24) 481,250 -
Al 30 September . {481,250)

The Group's normal cradit tarms ranging from 20 to 101 (2020 - 30 lo 101) days, Other creck terms
are assessed and approved on a case-by-cage haslis.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.

(Incorporated in Mataysia)

Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Othar recewables
Alowance for imparment
losses

Goods and services tax
rocavable

Deposils

Prepayments

Allowance: for
impairment ksses: -

At 1 Cclober 202002019

Addition during the
financal yesr {Note 24)

Al 30 September

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
475,448 1,601.812 [ &
(401,812) (401.812) - -
73636 1,200,000 -

4,240 3,007 . :
480,756 299,306 19.500 18,800
164,253 52,604 23,362 15,631
722931 1,665,287 42,862 3543
(401,812) "

- (40%,812) -
(401,812) (401.812) - .

(s) In the previous financial year, ncduded in other recalvables of the Group is an amount of
RM1,200,000 pai¢ lo a reglstered Private Equity Management company under the
Securites Commission for seeking nvestment coportuny In private equity shares. During
the tinancial year, the amount of RM1,200,000 remains uninvested and has refunded to the

Group.

(b) Inciuded in the deposits of the Group = an amount of RM332,500 (2020 - Nil) related to
deposit paid for the purchasa of a8 property as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial

statements.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regstraton No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

13, CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The Group The Company

2021 2020 2021

RM RM RM RM
Contract Assets
Contract assets refating
10 sarvice confracts 119,218 8,361,532 3,845 658 3,685,066
Alowance for impairment
losses - - -

119,216 8.361,632 3,845,558 3,685 066
Allowancs for
mpairment losses -
Al 1 Cclober 2020/2018 - (481,250} -
Raversal during the
financial year {(Nole 24) - 481,250 -
At 30 September - = . =
Contract Liabliities
Contract liabilties
relaling to servica
contracts (9,326,362) (5,615.132) (6,111,610) (579.844)

(a) The conlract assats arimarily relate fo the Geoup's and Company’s nght to considarstion for
sarvices rendared completed on senvice contracts but nat yet billed as &t the reporting date.

The amourt wil be imvoiced within 1 (2020 - 1) yaar,

{b) The corgract liabilities primardy relate 1o agvance biling 1o & customer for the rendering of
services of which the revenue will be recognised over the remaning contract teem of the

specific contract it refates to wihin 3 {2020 - 2) years.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporatad in Malsysis)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

13. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)

{c)

()

The changes o contract asset and contract Fabiity balances during the financlal year are
summarsad below-

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM

At 1 October 2020¥2019 2,745,400 505,867 3,105,222 6,122,869
Revenue recognised

n praf or loss during

the financial yesr 5,431 484 8,010,619 2.009,738 700,981
Billings 10 customers

during the financial

year (17,385,030) (6.251,356) (7,381,012) {3,718,628)
Reversal of mparment

loss during the financial

year (Note 24) - 481,250 -

At 30 September (9,207,146) 2,746,400 (2,266.052) 3,105,222
Represented by

Contract assels 119,216 8,361,532 3,845,558 3685066
Contract liabilities (9,326,362) (5615,132) {6,111,610) (575,644)

T(9207,148) 2746400  (2266052)  3,105222

The folowing tsble summarses contract price allecated to unsstsfled performance obfigations
resuiting from contracts with cusiomers:-

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Senices conbracks with
remaning conlract
perods 27,718,078 33.149.512 10,291,218 4,026,359

The Group and tha Company will recegnize this revenue when the performance obligaton Is
completed, which Is expected %o accur within 1 to 3 (2020 - 1 to 3) years
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